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Corporate Mission

1 ¥ F

“GROWING
WITH YOU FOR
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has always been the mission of Hengan International. We

will continue to adhere to our corporate spirit of
“Integrity, Diligence, Innovation and Dedication”. Our goal

is “to build an effective corporate management and to
develop a high quality, ethical and enthusiastic staff
team”. By building an excellent corporate culture,
reinforcing our brand image, and focusing on consumer §
and market need, Hengan International will become <
China's leading corporation in manufacturing and ‘
distribution of fast moving family consumer products.
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Financial Highlights
MBHEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
EHER-BE+_-_A=+—HLEE

2023
—g-=
Net profit margin — based AL FEE - RIEA &

on profit attributable to A AEN

shareholders of the F 7 (%)

Company (%) 11.8 8.5 15.7 20.5 17.4
Earnings per share — basic &z - &R

(RMB) (AR%T) 2.415 1.657 2.786 3.864 3.285
Finished goods turnover B mBEEE(E)

(days) 42 43 50 49 43
Trade receivables turnover — JEUBR A HI (B)

(days) 42 48 56 57 53
Current ratio (times) B L& (15) 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.4 1.3
Gross gearing ratio (%) B &L & (%) 69.8 87.2 95.7 107.3 120.9
Net gearing ratio (%) F A A (%) (26.4) (23.2) (21.3) (16.1) (7.6)

EARNINGS PER SHARE
B R
RMB Cents
ARE ()
400
350
300
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY PRODUCT
BRERENESZWA
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/— 13.3%
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54.2%
57.8% 2022

Sanitary napkins products . Tissue paper products
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Disposable diapers products Others
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFMBER

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
EHEE-BE+-_A=+—HLEEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g-= —_E=-— —E-—F Z—ZE-TFE =—ETE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTL

Revenue A 23,767,936 22,615,878 20,790,144 22,374,001 22,492,845
Profit before income tax B& BT 13 %4 AT 7B 3,605,404 2,833,286 4,329,566 5,961,422 5,046,887
Income tax expense IRCEIE-8] (798,000) (883,986)  (1,039,362)  (1,352,980)  (1,129,784)
Profit for the year FEFH 2,807,404 1,949,300 3,290,204 4,608,442 3,917,103
Non-controlling interests FEE I MR B
J& {5 F1 ) (6,871) (24,051) (16,603) (13,627) (9,380)
Profit attributable to NAEFEA
shareholders of the JE A& A
Company 2,800,533 1,925,249 3,273,601 4,594,815 3,907,723
Earnings per share — basic R - EX
(RMB) (AR IT) 2.415 1.657 2.786 3.864 3.285
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
PN SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
RMB million ABHERHFE AESTE
AREBEHET RMB million
ARBEET
25,000 5,000
20,000 4,000
15,000 3,000
10,000 2,000
5,000 1,000
olm S | ol . |
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
[ ] - .
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AFEMBESH

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AS AT 31 DECEMBER
EHEERAR-R+ZA=+—H

2023 2022 2020 2019
—E-= —ET-— T oTFE T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-LEV ARETT AREKTT ARETRT ARETR
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 - # 28 & 3% 7,255,824 7,099,255 7,296,727 7,571,430 7,822,457
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 1,190,224 1,192,081 979,055 970,171 988,245
Construction-in-progress EETRE 1,710,626 969,210 509,647 489,052 543,534
Investment properties HEMEHE 163,360 166,696 216,293 213,609 226,233
Intangible assets BREE 640,498 656,976 724,778 755,444 724,620
Prepayments for non-current  3F7 B) & E B4 K
assets 239,560 460,660 468,652 327,989 120,293
Deferred income tax assets — IRIEFT/F R & & 498,460 532,204 544,762 435,853 213,211
Investments accounted for T mEANEZ
using the equity method ®"E 56,854 43,576 53,330 97,188 101,670
Financial assets at fair value AR BEFEER
through profit or loss HEHT AEH
BERfNemEE 212,370 212,572 194,342 156,593 =
Cash and bank balances e RRITIER 18,189,943 18,667,492 18,246,687 20,483,739 20,540,270
Long-term bank deposits RHRITHER 1,438,163 2,895,490 4,035,960 3,482,147 2,430,082
Other current and non- Hith 7R 8y R 3E R ED
current assets BE 8,620,019 9,441,030 9,022,515 9,457,710 9,528,160
Total assets BEE 40,215,901 42,337,242 42,292,748 44,440,925 43,238,775
Liabilities =N
Long-term borrowings R HEER 330,430 2,001,334 739,342 2,492,618 1,246,992
Deferred income tax RIEFEH AR
liabilities 182,386 149,433 224,633 216,222 171,467
Other current and non- H th 7% &) & 3E R &
current liabilities BE 19,073,234 20,410,738 22,048,323 22,070,611 23,668,438
Total liabilities mE & 19,586,050 22,561,505 23,012,298 24,779,451 25,086,897
Non-controlling interest IR 234,011 252,130 243,410 250,084 278,937
Net assets attributable to FEE - 2 F&EH
shareholders of the BEAEGLER
Company 20,395,840 19,523,607 19,037,040 19,411,390 17,872,941

7
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Company Product Series
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“ANERLE” AND “QeMO” BABY DIAPERS
[25E% %[ 2 K |58 5 4 R 18

“HEARTTEX”, “H'YEAS” AND “HOMELINE” HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS
M AEE ] THREIRIRRMIRERH&

“BANITORE” FIRST-AID PRODUCTS AND “BENDI” ENEMAS
[EFZISRERRMENEIZBR

“HEARTTEX”, “PINO” AND “BAMBOO T ” POCKET HANDKERCHIEFS, BOX
AND SOFT TISSUE PAPER, KITCHEN TOWELS/PAPER AND TOILET ROLLS
DOHEEN ] [REE IR IFRA SR REHA 554K M R & EK
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of Hengan International Group Company Limited (“Hengan
International” or the “Group”), | present its annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023. During the year under review, the global
economic recovery remained sluggish due to continued inflation,
tightening monetary policies of major economies and geopolitical
turmoil. China’s economy showed steady improvement with the
implementation of a series of policies to stabilise the economy. Despite
a decline in the price of wood pulp in the second half of the year,
frequent promotions further intensified market competition. Faced with
a challenging and fluctuating business environment, the Group focused
on enhancing profitability and adhered to a rational promotion strategy,
while steadily advancing product premiumisation and developing more
high-quality products. As a result, the Group’s gross profit margin
significantly improved in the second half of the year. Moreover, the
Group actively developed and optimised its e-commerce and new retail
channels to increase its market share. Despite the fierce competition
in the domestic daily necessities market, Hengan has continued to
strengthen its competitive advantages and seize the opportunity of
industry consolidation,

laying a solid foundation for high-quality
development.

Sze Man Bok
)]

BEMNRER:

AAMARZELZBEREEFR AR (MERERE]
EEADBE_T_=F+_A=T—RLFE
MEFEERE DEFE IHERK 2L
BREBBEFERRRMEBHADESHE  2HE
BEESRDAZE BEEER - RIIRBEBERE
MER FEKEZRARLIATRES -BEAEE
RRTHFEE  TIHNAEREE T NE TS
R o HHARARKBEZENLERE SERE
FEREBFEENRERE  AFREERENSIH
EEHAEEZREEEM  EEMNKFERTFEFE
NBENRE - I SEREBERLBLCER R

TERB - RAMSEAX -BEBERALEEAR™T
BEHEFHAN BLHEEREBFEY  METHE
EEWNED RERSEERREFT TREAR -




For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately RMB23,767,936,000 (2022:
RMB22,615,878,000), representing an increase of 5.1% compared to
the previous year. In particular, benefiting from the omni-channel sales
strategy and the continuous enhancement of the brand image, the
three core business segments (tissue paper, sanitary napkin, and
disposable diapers) maintained strong revenue growth over the past
two years, with a year-on-year growth of approximately 8.0%. Profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company rose of approximately
45.5% to RMB2,800,533,000 (2022: RMB1,925,249,000), reflecting that
the improvement in gross profit and its positive effect on operational
profitability. Basic earnings per share was approximately RMB2.415
(2022: RMB1.657). The Board of Directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of RMBO0.70 per share (2022: RMBO0.70 per share),
which together with the interim dividend of RMBO0.70 per share (2022:
RMBO0.70 per share), brings the total dividend for the year to RMB1.40
per share (2022: RMB1.40 per share).

To fully capitalise on the consumption potential released by the
emerging domestic consumption patterns, Hengan continues to
cultivate e-commerce platforms and actively expanding into new retail
markets. The Group has been focusing on developing its B2C
(business-to-consumer) business, leveraging data analysis to directly
engage with end customers, thereby enhancing market share and
profitability. On the other hand, Hengan has strengthened marketing in
traditional platforms and expanded channel coverage to continuously
optimise the effectiveness of the Group’s omni-channel sales. During
the year, leveraging on its effective omni-channel sales strategy and a
strong brand image, the Group further explored growth opportunities
in e-commerce and other new retail channels. As a result, the
proportion of sales from e-commerce and new
gradually rose to 30.1% of overall sales.

retail channels

dcker
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Chairman’s Statement
FTFHREE
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A AR #23,767,936,000L (T - —F: AR
22,615,878,0007T) ' A F EF#51% c HAF + %
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DEBRB M - FEMREKR A ER) BURAR
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2,800,533,0007t( = T — — F: A R ¥
1,925,249,0007T) - URMEEMELFEZERE
MekE - BREARAREHARE2M5L(ZTEZZ
FARK1657L) EEGERRERAREST
A R#0.707T » 5 R HR B &R ARK0.707T
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BRARBI40L(ZEZZF  8RARE1.40
JL) °
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REMHFTERBERTAE S ZEWMEREZRH
ERRMETERENHENUESRASHERH
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Despite facing external uncertainties, the domestic economy continues
to witness rising consumer demand for high-quality and diversified
products. Based on the consumption volume, the penetration rates of
tissue paper products and adult incontinence products in China are
still relatively low. With the rising health awareness in China and
soaring demand for product quality,
premiumisation and refined development of personal and household
hygiene product industry will be unleashed in the medium- to long-
term. As a key factor in establishing brand differentiation, Hengan
continues to its efforts in product upgrades, product
premiumization and brand building, enabling the Group to stand out in
the market competition and realising high-quality development.

the growth potential of

increase

Adhering to the “consumer-oriented” Hengan
continues to accelerate the process of product premiumisation and
improve its product mix by leveraging its innovative research and
development capabilities and in-depth understanding of consumer
preferences and needs to seize market opportunities brought by
domestic consumption upgrades. During the vyear, the hot-selling
premium tissue paper series “Cloudy Soft Skin” (£ &2 &) maintained
a strong sales momentum, resulting in a further increase in its sales
proportion. High-margin products such as the upgraded sanitary
napkin series “Sweet Dream Pants” (#5 B #%) and the newly launched
sanitary napkin series “Heavenly Mountain Cotton Series” (X LU 4% 18 %
5]) received an overwhelming response from the market with
increasing sales. Furthermore, the flagship premium diapers “Q ¢ MO”
achieved remarkable sales, helping the Group’s consolidate its market
share and increase the sales contribution of premium products,
providing impetus for long-term profit growth.

market principle,

Looking forward to 2024, the external environment will remain complex
and volatile, but the fundamentals of a stable and improving national
in place.
opportunities in the new market landscape, the Group will closely
monitor the change in the economic environment, geopolitical
situations and market competition, responding flexibly to various
challenges and changes. As logistics and the supply of raw materials
remain stable, the price of wood pulp is expected to remain at a
which is favorable to the Group’s business.
Benefiting from consumers’ increasing demand on improved quality of
life, the Group believes in the promising prospects of domestic
hygiene products and daily necessities market.
intensifying competition in the industry, the Group will continue to
prioritise profit improvement, prudently evaluate the effectiveness of
promotional expenses, and adopt appropriate measures to achieve
steady and progressive development.

economy are still Faced with new challenges and

relatively low level,

Despite further

BEAMKEERDERIME A EERER  BHEE
FHRME ZRALEMNTRFELIT -LEE
ENAERE BAITEANARRKARER®
BEERDENREKRF - BEEARGEEZTE M
BoMEEEERBERAYEREENER Bk
ZME EARREFLERRTESKCREAL
ERNOBRENEHEBRR -FRELAMERL
MEAREE BEXHENRERTRERESHIEMGR
BEREA BEREEDSHEFTHAML  BR
SEHENEE-

RANNDEEERERINMHES  ELBREER
MM BEENUARYBEEERTRFRNRAT
BoBBENMRSH(CERRRAERER  BitH
NEBEFRMEROTIEHE - FR —EXTH
RENSHAENRINNERZBEIRTRIHESD
- SRSEFEEGN  AREEDRYI[H5E
BIARMELEEDRINRILARISSENE
mE B WS RARNED  HEERE TR 2
= AKEI Qe MO ISHERR SR - By EEERE
MSMHBLREARKERNRATBRLY - SRS
BAERTIAE T -

RE_T_MF - IERREDAEHZE  EEK
REREMNFNEAEREGNRE -HEMSHTE
THHMEBEMNKE KSESEUEAREREE
£ HWEBARBETEHBFRY BARHER
BEMB(L -BEDRERVHAHEBERIZE R
EARERBGEEENBENEREAXRF  BIRE
EgE - XERARYRESEETRENTRFEE
B EEBE BABEREERAMSHERA
SAB - MATEBRFE—F B - B A S
RAMBEKFRENRY - FEFGREERRK
MBRLRBMAENER BERBPIENRR -



As a leading domestic daily products company, Hengan has always
focused on the long-term corporate development and continuously
explored the growth potential of the daily necessities market. In the
future, the Group will continue its in-depth implementation of the three
core strategies, including “pbrand
leadership”, and “long-termism”. The Group will increase its focus on

“focus on main businesses”,

the development of the three main businesses of tissue paper, sanitary
napkin and disposable diapers, actively promote the strategy of
product premiumisation and product upgrades to capture domestic
consumers’ demand for high-quality products. In addition to improving
profitability, the Group will increase its investment on branding,
building a strong brand image and strengthening its competitiveness.
To seize the opportunities in the new retail market, the Group will
increase its penetration into new retail channels while maintaining
stable growth in traditional channels. This will enhance the Group’s
omni-channel sales competitiveness, thereby fostering long-term
development and consolidating its leading position in the market.

Hengan International has always attached great importance to talent
development and firmly believes that talent is the cornerstone for the
long-term sound development of the company. During the year, the
Group actively enhanced the talent training management system, while
implementing reward programs to elevate staff performance and foster
a sense of belonging. In order to continuously enhance the value of
Hengan International, the Group encourages its teams to pursue
excellence, and strives to retain and attract more quality talent, thus
achieving the goal of mutual growth of staff and realising a win-win
situation.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, customers, and partners who have placed
their trust and support in us over the years. | would also like to thank
all members of staff for their hard work and contributions throughout
the past year, working with the Group to promote the long-term
development of Hengan. Looking ahead, the Group will
committed to pursuing steady growth, striving to create sustainable

remain

returns for its shareholders.

ity
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

THEIBRES

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, China further implemented and consolidated its policies
comprehensively to stabilise the economy and expand domestic
demand, which contributed to the sustained recovery of the Chinese
economy. In 2023, China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) grew
5.2% vyear-on-year. Consumer spending maintained a positive trend,
with total retail sales of consumer goods increasing by 7.2% year-on-
year, of which total retail sales of daily necessities increased by 2.7%.
However, due to negative factors such as the complex and severe
international political and economic environment and the tightening of
monetary policies in developed countries,
development faced many difficulties and challenges. Leveraging its
comprehensive competitive advantages and effective profit-focused
sales strategy, Hengan continued to expand its market share and
further consolidated its strong business resilience.

China’s economic

HUI CHING LAU

2 E
HFER

EBBME

ZEZ-F BREPERECBEBERSEK  ZENHEX
NE REFHELCEREERE —S--FHR4E
ERERLIERS2% - EREERFOFAMTHEE
22023 FHEHEMTERTERLIERT.2% - B
FPEARESEEAIERITY% - RMAEEHEERIED
ERBERER B ERRNEREEBRSaEmA
EFET KERRABRTLORBEMKE - BELR
RAANCABFELREBEERAINERHEER
B BERBRAMBSHE #E—FSEERHAYINER
FE o



During the vyear, Hengan tapped into the consumption potential
released by the transformation of consumption patterns. Hengan
continued to greatly expand the e-commerce platforms and new retail
channels through effective price stabilisation strategies and product line
upgrades and premiumisation. It also promoted sales in traditional
channels and created its new growth points. The effectiveness of the
development of the Group’s omni-channel continued to improve.
Benefitting from the ongoing omni-channel strategy and continuous
enhancement of the brand image, revenues of the Group’s three core
business segments (tissue paper, sanitary napkins and disposable
diapers) has maintained strong growth over the past two years, with a
year-on-year growth of approximately 8.0%. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group’s revenue increased by 5.1% to
approximately RMB23,767,936,000 (2022: RMB22,615,878,000) as
compared to last year. The Group’s revenue is expected to maintain
stable in 2024.

In 2023, the Group continued to step up its efforts in developing its
e-commerce business and new retail market. In addition to promoting
brands on traditional large-scale e-commerce platforms, it also
strengthened penetration into other emerging e-commerce channels
(such as Douyin (“#1&")). During the year, the Group further increased
its proportion of e-commerce and new retail sales (including Retail
Integrated (“Z & 3&”) and New Channel (“¥3&P”) to close to
approximately 30.1% (2022: 26.9%), growing about 17.7% year-on-
year including other new retail channels (including Retail Integrated,
community group-buying, etc.) with sales
increasing by approximately 21.4% vyear-on-year and accounting for
approximately 7.4% of the overall sales. The Group is also committed
to developing premium products and optimising its product mix,
actively enhancing its brand image to cater to domestic consumers’
pursuit of high-quality and diversified products. The upgraded tissue
paper series “Cloudy Soft Skin” (£ ZLE), the premium disposable
diapers series “Q ¢ MO” and sanitary napkins series “Sweet Dream
Pants” (B4 fE #%) continued to be well-received by consumers and
maintained a strong sales momentum during the year. The sales of
various key upgraded and premium products also achieved a year-on-
year growth of more than 10.0% and continued to increase its
proportion over the sales. Moreover, the Group effectively promoted
sales in traditional channels and created its new growth points during
the year, achieving a year-on-year increase of more than 8.0%.

are progressing well
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During the year under review, raw material prices dropped in the
second half of the year, leading to intensified market promotions and
price competition. In the face of fierce market competition, Hengan
actively responded to the market changes, adhered to stable pricing,
and focused on enhancing profitability, effectively further expanding its
market share and consolidating its leading position in the market. The
decline in the price of wood pulp, the main raw material for tissue
paper, in the second half of the year compared to the first half of the
year, coupled with the robust growth in the Group’s upgraded
products and premium product series resulted in a significant
improvement in the gross profit of the tissue paper business. In 2023,
the Group’s overall gross profit increased by approximately 4.2% to
approximately RMB8,010,688,000 (2022: RMB7,689,499,000). Although
the gross profit margin was under pressure in the first half of 2023,
the overall gross profit margin for the full year still recorded at
approximately 33.7% (2022: 34.0%), almost consistent with last year.
Gross profit the second half of 2023 even significantly improved to
36.5% (2022 second half 32.8%). It is expected that in 2024, the
Group will prudently allocate promotional resources and premium high-
margin products will continue to experience significant growth, leading
to a continuous improvement in the gross profit margin.

During the vyear, operating profit increased significantly by
approximately 38.6% to approximately RMB3,977,931,000 (2022:
RMB2,869,154,000). Although the depreciation of the Renminbi against
the US dollar and the HK dollar during the year resulted in an
operating foreign exchange loss after tax of approximately RMB150.0
million, the loss was significantly reduced by about 83.6% compared
with the operating foreign exchange loss before tax of approximately
RMB901.2 million in 2022. Therefore, profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB2,800,533,000 (2022:
RMB1,925,249,000), representing a significant year-on-year increase of
approximately 45.5%. Excluding the operating foreign exchange loss
after tax, profit attributable to shareholders of the Company increased
by approximately 4.3% year-on-year, mainly reflecting the improvement
in the Group’s gross profit margin as a result of the decline in the cost
of wood pulp and upgrades of products. Basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB2.415 (2022: RMB1.657).

The Board of Directors declared a final dividend of 0.70 share (2022:
RMBO0.70 per share) for the year ended 31 December 2023, together
with the interim dividend of RMBO0.70 per share (2022 first half:
RMBO0.70 per share) already paid, total dividend for the year amounted
to RMB1.40 per share (2022: RMB1.40 per share) or
RMB1,626,970,000 (2022: RMB1,626,970,000), maintaining a stable
dividend amount.
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Sanitary Napkin

China has the world’s largest feminine care products market. With the
growing awareness of feminine care and increasing spending power in
China, female consumers are paying increasing attention to product
quality, material safety and added value of products,
consumption upgrade and continuous expansion of the feminine care
products market. However, the market competition is very fierce, many
domestic and foreign brands adopted aggressive sales strategies to
tap into the mid-to-high-end market and young consumers. Hengan
has full confidence in its product quality and longstanding reputation
among customers, and adheres to a rational and stable pricing
strategy. In order to enhance the brand image and consolidate its
leading position in the mid-to-high-end market and traditional sales
channels, Hengan continued to promote product upgrades and
premiumisation to meet consumers’ demand for high-quality feminine
care products, so as to maintain its leadership in the fierce market
competition. The Groups’ upgraded sanitary napkin products, such as
the “Sweet Dream Pants” (FFRE#E) series and the new premium
“Heavenly Mountain Cotton” (X IL%#7) series launched this year, were
favoured by consumers due to their excellent quality and brand image,
driving the sales growth of the overall sanitary napkin business.

driving

The continuous rapid increase in the penetration of new consumption
patterns has exacerbated the fragmentation of channels. E-commerce
platforms and other emerging retail channels (including community
group-buying) are thriving. The Group actively seized the opportunities
of emerging consumption trends, vigorously expanded emerging sales
channels, and consolidated its leading edge in traditional channels,
which effectively boosted sales of sanitary napkins and maintained a
leading market share. During the year, the Group achieved satisfactory
sales in new retail channels, and products of the +/E % & series
achieved the leading position in the sales in many new retail channels.
At the same time, the Group’s sanitary napkin business continued to
maintain its leading position in traditional channels and achieved stable
growth. Therefore, despite fierce market competition and aggressive
pricing and promotional strategies of other brands, the Group’s
sanitary napkin business still saw growth in its revenue. In 2023, the
revenue of the Group’s sanitary napkin business increased by
approximately 0.4% to approximately RMB6,178,438,000 (2022:
RMB®6,156,060,000), accounting for approximately 26.0% (2022:
27.2%) of the Group’s overall revenue, outperforming the sales
performance in the overall sanitary napkin industry. Driven by the
increasing proportion of upgraded and premium products and the
continuous growth of traditional sales channels, it is expected that the
Group’s sanitary napkin business in 2024 will maintain steady growth
in its revenue.
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The Group adheres to a stable pricing strategy and prudent allocation
of promotional expenses. Benefiting from brand premiumisation and
the steady increase in the proportion of upgraded products, as well as
the decline in the price of petrochemical raw materials, the main raw
material for sanitary napkins in the second half of the year compared
with the first half of the year, the gross profit margin of the sanitary
napkin business stood at approximately 66.0% in the second half of
2023, representing an improvement from 61.8% in the first half of the
year, while the overall gross profit margin in 2023 was approximately
63.8% (2022: 66.8%). Driven by product upgrades and
premiumisation, the gross profit margin is expected to continue to
improve in 2024.

The Group’s sanitary napkin brand +£/EZ=f# continued to launch
upgraded and premium products and strived to enhance its brand
image. In recent years, the Group launched upgraded products such
as “Ultra-thin” (£F38), “Extra-long — Night Use” (J1& & ) and “Pants-
style” (#%Y) series, which received an overwhelming response from the
market. The newly launched “Heavenly Mountain Cotton Series” (X I
@ 1% & %)), which uses rare and pure long staple cotton from snowy
mountains, aim to meet the demand of today’s customers for high-
quality products, and their sales are expected to gradually increase.
The Group signed female artists with bright and positive image,
including actresses Zhao Jinmai, as the brand ambassador of + [ Z=
[, injecting youthful vitality into the brand. With the theme of
“Freedom Without Limits”, the Group launched a variety of promotional
activities, such as brand ambassador live streaming, meetings and
limited-edition gift sets, based on the preferences of young female
customers and white-collar women to further enhance the brand image
and attract young and white-collar customers. In addition, + & 2= 4
has upgraded the “Pink Wings” menstrual support program, in which
pink symbolises the unity and support of women, and wings represent
the protection from sanitary napkins and the freedom of women. The
charitable program aims to voice women’s rights and needs during
menstruation and build a period-friendly society. On 8 March 2023,
International Women’s Day, [ Z=f& held a special campaign called
“Be Liberated, No More Black Pouches”, encouraging women to be
liberated and rejecting menstrual shame. The campaign actively
promoted the attitude that “sanitary napkins, like any other daily
necessities, do not need to be hidden” and encouraged women to
abandon the habit of using a “black pouch” to carry sanitary napkins.
During the campaign, the brand released a teaser video and
promotional poster on its official Weibo account from 1 to 2 March
2023, and the topic “Is carrying sanitary napkins in a black pouch a
bias or a concern” soared to the top of the real-time rankings. The
positive response to the +/E %[ charitable campaign has helped
promote the Group’s products and enhanced the brand image. The
widespread promotion of a liberated attitude for women also marked
an important step for the Group to fulfill its corporate social
responsibility.
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In addition, the “Pants-style” series still has great growth potential with
sales increasing over 73.4% year-on-year during the year. The Group
will continue to vigorously promote the “Pants-style” series of products
to consumers and launch an upgraded version of “Sweet Dream
Pants”
penetration. The Group believes that the upgraded products of the +
[EZ=f series will continue to be the main growth driver for the
sanitary napkin business in the future, which will help the Group
expand its market share and increase the revenue contribution of
premium products. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to increase the
sales proportion of new retail channels, strive to develop higher quality
products, adhere to a stable pricing strategy, and maintain stable
growth in traditional channels, thereby promoting the Group’s long-
term development and consolidating its leading position.

to attract more consumers and further increase market

The Group will also continue to develop and launch other feminine
care products beyond sanitary napkins, steadily develop the feminine
care industry, and seize market opportunities brought about by
domestic consumption upgrade.

Tissue Paper

In 2023, the national economy and consumer market continued to
recover, but the external environment was still full of challenges. The
Group focused on improving profitability and responded to the
cutthroat price competition with stable prices and an omni-channel
sales strategy, driving the continuous double-digit growth of tissue
paper sales. The Group gained more market share by virtue of its
strong capital and nationwide sales network. Backed by a strong
brand and a diversified product portfolio, the Group adhered to a
stable pricing strategy and effectively controlled sales promotions.
During the year under review, the revenue of the Group’s tissue paper
business increased remarkably by approximately 12.2% to
approximately RMB13,748,172,000 (2022: RMB12,248,011,000),
outperforming the industry’s average growth rate and maintaining a
leading market share. The sales of the tissue paper business
accounted for approximately 57.8% of the Group’s overall revenue
(2022: 54.2%). The Group will continue to upgrade its products and
increase the penetration rate of premium products. It is expected that
the revenue of the Group’s tissue paper business will maintain rapid
growth in 2024.

In the first quarter of 2023, the Group was still affected by the
elevated price of wood pulp. However, in the second quarter of 2023,
the price of wood pulp started to come down. After the Group
consumed its high-cost wood pulp inventory, the positive impact of the
decline in the cost of wood pulp was reflected in the results in the
second half of 2023. Although the Group moderately increased
promotions in the second half of the vyear, resulting in higher
promotional expenses, it benefited from product upgrades and the
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increased proportion of high-margin products, as well as a drop in
wood pulp costs. As a result, the gross profit margin for the second
half of 2023 improved significantly from 17.7% in the first half of the
year to 26.1% (2022 second half: 18.5%), while the gross profit margin
for 2023 increased to approximately 21.7% (2022: 20.7%). The Group
expects that the gross profit margin of the tissue paper business will
continue to improve in 2024.

Driven by the improvement of national health awareness and the
growing demand for consumption upgrades, the Group’s upgraded
and premium tissue paper products achieved outstanding sales.
Among them, the sales of the “Cloudy Soft Skin” series recorded sales
of more than RMB1.30 billion, increased by around 26.6% and
accounting for approximately 12.0% of the overall tissue paper sales.
In terms of the Group’s wet wipes business, the sales for the year
were approximately RMB931,060,000 (2022: RMB842,354,000),
recording a sales growth of nearly 10.5%, accounting for
approximately 6.8% of the overall sales of the tissue paper business
(2022: 6.9%). The wet wipes business has maintained strong growth in
recent years, the Group will continue to increase its market share in
the domestic wet wipes market and consolidate its market leadership.
The Group actively responded to the fragmentation of channels and
the efforts and resources invested in strategic deployment in the early
years has entered the harvest period. The tissue paper business
performed remarkably in e-commerce and new retail channels
(including Retail Integrated, community group-buying, etc.), with a sales
growth of approximately 26.1%, accounting for nearly 35.3% of the
overall sales of tissue paper. In the future, the Group will continue its
endeavours in expanding different sales channels, striving for the
largest market share.

(QRBEp-

With the continuous enhancement of living standards and health
awareness, the overall tissue paper market is full of opportunities. In
the face of fierce market competition, the Group will develop more
high-quality products to meet the diverse needs of customers, improve
the cost-effectiveness of tissue paper production, and increase the
production capacity of each production base, to fully grasp the
business opportunities in the domestic tissue paper market and
maintain its leading position in the tissue paper market. During the
year, the Group’s annual production capacity was approximately
1,470,000 tonnes. It is expected that in 2024, production capacity will
be gradually increased in Hunan, Hubei, Guangdong and other regions
to respond to market conditions and meet the demand for sales
growth.
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Disposable Diapers

The continuous ageing population and improvement of national living
standards continue to drive the expansion of China’s disposable diaper
market. The trend of consumption upgrade and evolving parenting
concepts have also promoted the continuous in the
penetration rate of baby disposable diapers. There is huge potential for

increase
growth in China’s disposable diaper market.

The Group continues to develop high-quality baby and adult care
products to meet customers’ growing demand for product quality.
During the year, sales of the flagship premium product “Q e MO”
maintained good growth. It recorded a year-on-year growth of nearly
21.8%, and its proportion further increased to about 36.4%. In 2023,
the Group strived to strengthen the development of new retail
channels and maternity sales channels, with new retail channels and
maternity sales channels accounting for approximately 52.8% and
16.6% of sales, respectively. Despite fierce market competition,
benefitting from the enhanced brand competitiveness, the sales growth
of the Group’s premium product “Q ¢ MO” and the improvement in
sales resulting from the rebranding of the “Anerle” (% 52 ££) brand to
“Sports-style” ((EBE)#A!) series effectively offset the decline in sales from
traditional channels and mid-to-low-end products. On the other hand,
benefitting from the growing domestic adult incontinence products
market and the continuous increase in the penetration rate of the
Group’s adult disposable diapers, the Group’s adult disposable diaper
business recorded a growth of approximately 11.5% during the year,
accounting for approximately 25.4% of the overall diaper sales. As a
result, the sales of the Group’s disposable diaper business increased
by approximately 4.3% to approximately RMB1,254,070,000 (2022:
RMB1,202,347,000), accounting for approximately 5.3% (2022: 5.3%)
of the Group’s overall revenue. The Group believes that the adult
disposable diaper market has considerable development potential. With
the continuous increase in the proportion of premium baby and adult
diaper products, the sales of the Group’s disposable diaper business
are expected to maintain sales growth in 2024. In terms of gross profit
margin, the price decrease in petrochemical
disposable diapers in the second half of the year led to an decrease in

raw materials for

costs of sales, coupled with the increase in the proportion of sales of
the higher-margin “Q e MO” products and premium adult disposable
diapers helped increase the gross profit margin to more than 40.0% in
the second half of 2023, which is a significant improvement from
36.0% in the first half of the year. The gross profit margin of the
diaper business in 2023 rose to approximately 38.1% (2022: 36.9%).
The gross profit margin of the diaper business is expected to remain
stable in 2024.
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During the year, the Group continued to seize market opportunities,
further developed the premium product market and improved product
quality. Regarding the baby diaper business, the Group continued to
rebrand the “Anerle” brand, established a new brand positioning, and
developed sports pants-style diapers to meet the needs of today’s
consumers, effectively driving an increase in sales. On the other hand,
“Q e MO” magic breathing diapers, which have 3.6 times more vents
than traditional diapers, are very popular in the market. The Group will
continue to optimise “Q ¢ MO” products to instill growth momentum
into the Group’s future development. With the dual-brand strategy, the
Group expects the sales of the baby diaper business will maintain a
steady growth in 2024.

In addition, as China pays increasing attention to the development of
the elderly care industry, there will be huge room for development in
the field of domestic adult care products. As a dedicated brand in the
Chinese adult diaper market, “ElderJoy” (% i f) actively educates the
public on elderly care and advocates the brand proposition of
“bringing peace and joy to the elderly”. On 20 March 2023, “Elderdoy”
collaborated with the renowned actor Hu Jun and his family to release
a public welfare short film titled “This Time, Love Will Not Be Late”,
which called for societal attention and awareness of the “unspoken
difficulties” of the disabled elderly, received widespread attention and
created resonance. The short film received over 100,000 likes and was
trending on Weibo. In May, leveraging the occasion of Mother’s Day,
the short film gained even greater popularity. “ElderJoy” joined hands
with the China Social Welfare Foundation to donate adult diaper
products worth nearly RMB200,000 to five hospitals, nursing homes,
and 23 local villages in Jiangxi and Jiangsu provinces, aiming to
demonstrate care for the elderly and educate the public about
assisting and showing love to the elderly through concrete actions,
actively fulfilling the Group’s social responsibility. The Group will invest
more resources in the development of adult care products, so that the
“Elderdoy” brand and its products can fully penetrate the domestic
market and at the same time expand market share in Southeast Asia.
In the future, the Group will continue to develop the baby care market
and the adult care market in parallel with a premium products
strategy. In addition to e-commerce sales channels, the Group will
vigorously develop new retail channels and also increase cooperation
with maternity stores, nursing homes and hospitals. On the one hand,
it will seize new business opportunities brought by new retail. On the
other hand, through the cooperation with maternity stores, nursing
homes and hospitals, it will expand the Group’s potential customer
base, and provide a one-stop product sales chain, bringing sustainable
growth momentum to the disposable diaper business, supporting the
long-term development of the adult care business and continuing to
tap the growth potential of the adult care market.
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Other Income and Household Products

Regarding other income and household products, the Group’s revenue
for the year, which mainly includes revenues from raw material trading
business, household products business, and Wang-Zheng Group in
Malaysia, decreased by approximately 14.0% vyear-on-year to
approximately RMB2,587,256,000 (2022: RMB3,009,460,000). The
decline was mainly due to the Group’s preference to reserve raw
materials for the manufacturing of products and ensure reasonable
profits from its raw material trading business. As a result, revenue from
raw material trading business dropped significantly by approximately
13.6% to approximately RMB1.4 billion (2022: approximately RMB1.6
billion).

During the year, revenue from the household products business was
approximately RMB249,589,000 (2022: RMB325,962,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 23.4%, accounting for
approximately 1.1% of the Group’s revenue, which was mainly due to
the decline in the export business of household products.

In 2023, the Group greatly expanded the product range of its brand,
“Hearttex” (.0 48 El) with the successive launch of plastic bags
(including garbage bags and disposable gloves), food wrap film, dish
detergent and paper cups etc. Sunway Kordis and its subsidiaries
have sales channels to export products to overseas sales network
(including the markets in Australia and Asia). The Group will continue
to take advantage of these overseas sales network to bring Hengan’s
high-quality products to overseas markets.

SORAN

International Business Development

The Group has been actively expanding to overseas markets.
Currently, the Group sells its products in 37 countries and regions,
with 54 direct partnerships with major clients or distributors. In 2023,
turnover of overseas channel (including Wang-Zheng Group business)
was approximately RMB1,950,955,000 (2022: RMB2,086,791,000),
accounting for approximately 8.2% of the Group’s overall sales (2022:
9.2%).
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During the year, the Group’s Wang-Zheng Group business in Malaysia
saw a steady recovery and its turnover increased by approximately
6.3% year-on-year to approximately RMB437,699,000 (2022:
RMB411,704,000) accounting for approximately 1.8% of the Group’s
overall sales (2022: 1.8%). Wang-Zheng Group is principally engaged
in investment holding and the manufacturing and processing of fiber-
based products, which include adult and baby disposable diapers, and
tissue products, cotton products and processed papers. Its brands
include “P Love” disposable adult diapers and “Carina” personal
hygiene products. The Group leveraged on the Malaysian Wang-Zheng
Group as its base to bring Hengan’s tissue and adult disposable
diapers products into the Southeast Asian market.

In the future, the Group will continue to upgrade its existing Wang-
Zheng products, develop and launch more good quality products
under the Wang-Zheng brand and further increase its market share in
Malaysia and Southeast Asia.

E-commerce and New Retail Channel Strategies

New consumption patterns and new forms of business that integrate
online and offline channels are developing at an accelerated pace, and
the online shopping market is expanding,
unleashing consumption potential. According to statistics, the national
online retail sales of physical goods reached RMB13.0 trillion in 2023,
representing an increase of 8.4%, of which the online retail sales of
daily necessities increased by 7.1%. In order to meet the ever-
upgrading needs of consumers, the Group continues to innovate,
develop and optimise e-commerce and other new retail channels, and
adapt to the market trends to grasp business opportunities. During the
year, the Group carried out higher quality product promotions for
various brands its stable pricing strategy
received positive responses from the market, thus further enhancing
the Group’s brand awareness and market share in online and other
new retail channels.

thereby continuously

in new channels, and

In 2023, the Group’s e-commerce and new retail channels (including
Retail Integrated and New Channel) maintained a robust development
momentum and sales for the year soared over 17.7% to approximately
RMB7.16 billion (2022: RMB6.1 billion), bringing the proportion of
e-commerce sales up to approximately 30.1% (2022: 26.9%) of the
Group’s overall sales. During the year, new retail channels contributed
approximately 35.3%, 26.5% and 52.8% of contribution to the sales of
tissue paper business, sanitary napkin business, and disposable diaper
business respectively. It is expected that the proportion of sales in new
retail channels will be further increased in the future.
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In the future, the Group will continue to step up its efforts in
developing its e-commerce brand flagship stores and emerging
channels (such as Douyin) and improve data analysis capabilities for
end customers.

To cater for the new consumer trends, the Group interacted with
consumers through livestream sales and other community activities,
and strengthen the connection with young consumers. The Group also
appointed Xiao Zhan, a popular artist, as the global brand ambassador
of “Hearttex” to further enhance the brand influence. The Group will
continue to increase its market share in e-commerce and new retail
channels to inject strong impetus for rapid growth in the future.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

As the Group moderately increased its online marketing investment to
capture market opportunities and promote the Group’s key selling
products, the Group’s selling and administrative expenses for the year
amounted to approximately RMB5,068,887,000, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 3.7%. The proportion of the Group’s
selling and administrative expenses to the total revenue for the year
slightly dropped to approximately 21.3% (2022: 21.6%). The Group
believes that the total revenue is expected to continue to increase in
the coming year, together with the effective sales and promotion
strategies to precisely allocate expenses, the proportion of such
expenses to revenue is expected to improve.

Foreign Currency Risks

Most of the Group’s income is denominated in Renminbi. During the
year, due to the depreciation of Renminbi against the H.K. dollar and
the U.S. dollar, the Group recorded an operating exchange loss of
approximately RMB180.0 million, representing a substantial narrowing
of exchange loss by approximately 79.9%. This was mainly due to
significant decline in Renminbi dividends receivable from domestic
subsidiaries in the Group’s Hong Kong company, which mainly caused
the recognition of operating exchange last year (2022:
RMB912,865,000).

loss

As at 31 December 2023, apart from certain foreign currency swap
contracts and foreign exchange options contracts entered into with
certain large commercial banks, the Group had not issued any
significant financial instruments or entered into any significant contracts
for foreign currency hedging purposes.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Bank Loans

The Group has always maintained a solid financial position. As at 31
December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank balances, long-term
bank time deposits and restricted bank deposits amounted to
approximately RMB19,628,406,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB21,563,284,000); and bank borrowings and other borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB14,237,625,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB17,029,952,000).

In December 2022, the Group successfully registered super short-term
commercial papers in an aggregate amount of not more than RMB5.0
billion. From February to May 2023, the Group issued super short-term
commercial papers in four batches of RMB5.0 billion in total with the
coupon rates ranging from 2.39% to 2.4% per annum and tenors
ranging from 178 days to 180 days. The four batches of commercial
papers have been fully repaid by 31 December 2023.

The bank borrowings and other borrowings were subject to floating
annual interest rates ranging from approximately 0.05% to 6.45%
(2022: from 0.4% to 5.2%).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was
calculated on the basis of the total amount of borrowings as a
percentage of the total equity (not including non-
controlling interests) significantly improved to approximately 69.8% (31
December 2022: 87.2%). This improvement was primarily attributed to
the Group’s commitment to maintaining a sound financial position and
reducing high-cost debts. While the net gearing ratio, which was
calculated on the basis of the amount of borrowings less cash and
bank balances and long-term time deposits as a percentage of the
shareholders’ equity (not including non-controlling interests),
approximately negative 26.4% (31 December 2022: negative 23.2%) as
the Group was in a net cash position. The Group will stay committed
to optimising the gearing ratio and maintaining a solid net cash
position to ensure a sound financial position.

shareholders’

was

During the year, the Group’s capital expenditure was approximately
RMB1,843,888,000 (2022: RMB1,327,206,000), primarily allocated to
increasing the production capacity of various manufacturing facilities.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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Human Resources and Management

During the year, the Group actively improved the efficiency of human
resources, raised the salaries of employees to the industry level, and
implemented a more scientific and reasonable “target remuneration”
system by linking the salary system with the staff duties and
responsibilities and task goals, thus stimulating the staff enthusiasm
for work, and improving work efficiency. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group employed approximately 23,000 staff members. The Group’s
remuneration package is determined with reference to the experience
and qualifications of the individual employees and general market
conditions. Bonus is linked to the Group’s financial results as well as
individual performance. The Group also ensures that all employees are
provided with adequate training and career opportunities according to
their needs. The Group will also continue to improve efficiency and
adjust production capacity and supply levels.

Latest Awards
In 2023, awards and honours won by the Group were as follows:

Awards/Honours

B RE

Ingenious Product of China’s Household Paper Industry in 2023
202B3F EHBEEFERMITERLE®

Ingenious Product of China’s Sanitary Products Industry in 2023
0BFEHBEBERRITERELE®

All-Asia Executive Team 2023 rankings: Most Honoured
Company: Hengan International and Best ESG

2023F DMNBRATEREKFTEZEREECERKERE
e hkEr(WHHEEMEARD)

The Fifth China Best Managed Companies List
ERETHEHEER QA

“Standard Chartered Corporate Achievement Awards 2023”
Sustainable Corporate (Environmental) — Leadership Award
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China National Household Paper Industry Association
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China National Household Paper Industry Association
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Institutional Investor

(H B E %) (Institutional Investor)

Deloitte China
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Corporate social responsibility

Hengan rigorously adheres to a green and sustainable development
strategy. In June 2023, it established an ESG Committee at the board
level to comprehensively manage the Group’s sustainability initiatives,
thereby instituting a robust four-tier ESG management framework. The
Group has undertaken comprehensive initiatives across various fields
such as quality and innovation,
talent cultivation, health and safety, and philanthropy. Through these
sustainable practices, it aims to empower high-quality corporate
development, steadily progressing towards the ambitious goal of
“100.0 billion in 100 years”.

low-carbon environmental protection,

In 2023, Hengan enhanced the transparency of its ESG disclosures
and actively responded to domestic and international ESG ratings,
resulting in a steady improvement in its rating performance. Notably,
its MSCI ESG rating was elevated from BB to BBB, and its S&P
Global CSA score surpassed that of 84% of its peers, earning it the
title of “Industry Mover” in the S&P Global Sustainable Yearbook
(China Edition) 2023. Furthermore, the Group has been incorporated
into the FTSE4Good Index Series. In the same year, it was selected
for the “2022 Forbes China Top 50 Sustainable Development Industrial
Enterprises” and “2022 Wind ESG Hong Kong Stock Industry Best
Practice Award (Daily Consumption)” list. At the Standard Chartered
Corporate Achievement Awards 2023, the Group was honored with the
“Sustainable Corporate (Environment) — Leadership Award”.

In 2023, the Group continued to enhance its intrinsic motivation to
fulfill social responsibilities, receiving accolades such as “Asia’s Best
CSR” by Corporate Governance Asia.

Quality and Innovation

Adhering to a consumer-oriented marketing philosophy, Hengan is
committed to becoming “a global top-tier supplier of daily products
through sustainable innovation and high-quality products and services”.
In the face of an ever-changing market environment, Hengan dares to
innovate, using a comprehensive product development system and
strict technical standards as the foundation for product innovation,
continuously advancing technological iterations and strengthening the
construction of an innovative talent team, thereby launching more high-
quality personal and household hygiene products.
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The Group places a strong emphasis on maintaining product quality,
establishing comprehensive quality management processes and risk
management systems, thereby laying a solid foundation for quality
management. In 2023, we strengthened the digitalization of quality
management by employing the “One-drag-Three visual inspection”
system in coordination with metal detection and weight inspection
systems. Thus, we conducted even rigorous and more precise product
inspections on multiple parts of individual products, achieving further
enhancement in product quality standards.

In response to the market trend of green consumption, the Group
integrates ecological and environmental friendliness into its design
philosophy, leveraging its innovation capabilities to explore the use of
green In 2023, it established a biodegradation
evaluation system to accelerate the assessment of the biodegradability
of new materials and conduct in-depth research on material
degradation mechanisms. Additionally, the Group continues to develop

raw materials.

biodegradable plastics through the sustainable development platform
for plastics, applying green raw materials extensively in its products to
enhance their health and environmental attributes and reduce their
environmental impact.

Low-Carbon Environmental Protection
Hengan
development into its operation, actively engaging in green, low-carbon
planning and construction, developing more comprehensive climate
change management strategies, and optimizing energy conservation,
emission reduction, and biodiversity conservation measures. Hengan
has promoted distributed photovoltaic power generation projects in

incorporates the concept of green and sustainable

factories and bases across the country to optimize the company’s
energy structure. By the end of 2023, Hengan had implemented
distributed photovoltaic power generation projects in 9 factories and
bases, with an installed capacity of 21MW. In 2023, Hengan’s
greenhouse gas emission intensity was 0.66 tCO2e/revenue in
RMB10,000; the energy consumption per unit product of the
papermaking sector was 0.31 tons of standard coal, far lower than the
advanced value requirement of the Energy Consumption Per Unit
Product of Pulp and Papermaking (GB31825-2015) (0.42 ton of
standard coal/ton); the recycling of wastewater from paper production
was greater than 99%, the water consumption per tonne of paper in
the Hengan’s papermaking segment was 5.77 tonnes, far lower than
the national standard upper limit of water withdrawal per tonne of
product specified in GB/T18916.5 Water Quotas Part 5: Paper
Products (GB/T18916.5).
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Hengan collaborates with various partners to explore and implement
sustainable environmental policies. The Group has joined the All-China
Environment Federation’s “Belt and Road” Eco-industry Cooperation
Working Committee as the vice-chairman, solidifying a new foundation
for industrial cooperation in China’s ecological and environmental
fields. In its supply chain, the Group works with suppliers to promote
the responsible and sustainable development of the pulp supply chain.
In 2023, six of Hengan’s paper companies achieved FSC-CoC
certification, with 100% of pulp suppliers holding FSC or Programme
for the Endorsement of Forest Certification (PEFC) system certificates.

In 2023, Hengan (China) Paper Co., Ltd. was awarded the “Green
Factory” title by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology,
becoming the third national-level green factory within Hengan,
following Hengan (Wuhu) Paper Co., Ltd., and Fujian Hengan
Homecare Products Co., Ltd. Hengan also became the only case in
the household paper industry to be selected for the All-China
Environment Federation’s “2022 Belt and Road Green Supply Chain
Case”.

Talent Cultivation

The Group regards its employees as the most invaluable asset,
earnestly safeguarding their legal rights and interests and providing
them with a comprehensive and reasonable compensation and benefits
system, fostering mutual growth between employees and the
corporation. Hengan actively implements the principle of equal
employment opportunities, establishing a “Human Rights Policy” and
an “Anti-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy”, to cultivate a
diverse, equitable, and inclusive workplace environment. It adopts a
zero-tolerance policy towards any form of discrimination against
employees based on race, religious beliefs, gender,
orientation, disability, nationality, or other such grounds.

age, sexual

The Group continuously refines and updates its talent development
framework and talent management mechanisms, offering employees
multi-level and phased training in various skills and qualities, and
creating more high-quality training projects through school-enterprise
cooperation. In 2023, Hengan collaborated with Xiamen University on
The Executive Development Program (EDP), aiding employees in
deepening and elevating their work experience to lay a solid
foundation for the future strategic implementation of the Group.
Additionally, the Group has established an internal instructor team
aimed at building a talent cultivation base for itself. The Group also
focuses on long-term career development for employees, creating a
“management + technology” dual-channel career development system
to provide employees with clear promotion paths.
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By the end of 2023, Hengan had approximately 23,000 employees,
with women making up 56% of the workforce. The total training hours
for employees exceeded 240 thousand hours, with 173 individuals
being promoted to management positions, and 100% of employees
joining the union.

Health and Safety

In 2023, the Group’s “Three-Step” comprehensive safety development
strategy entered its second phase, a critical period of effort towards
becoming an industry benchmark It has
established comprehensive safety management policies and objectives,
standardizing robust management and established control procedures
to provide solid guarantees for the construction of a safe working
environment. The Group has established an ISO 45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System and received certification,
setting up a Safety Management Committee as the leadership and
decision-making body for comprehensive safety management,
establishing a full lifecycle safety management process, and
implementing safety management projects to enhance the efficiency of
safety management work while improving the level of production
environment safety.

in safety performance.

To strengthen employees’ health and safety protection capabilities, the
Group regularly organizes safety production knowledge training, fire
drills, and first aid training, and has launched a safety production
month campaign this year to comprehensively promote safety
knowledge, emphasize the importance of safety precautions, and
solidify employees’ safety rescue skills. In 2023, the Group did not
experience any work-related fatalities, had a zero percent occupational
disease incidence rate, and lost 2,817 work days due to work-related

injuries.

Hengan pays attention to employees’ mental health, organizing
psychological decompression lectures and other activities irregularly,
and conducting a variety of cultural and recreational activities to help
employees balance work and life. For families of employees in difficulty
and disabled employees, the Group provides support and assistance,
making employees feel the warmth of the collective.

Philanthropy

As a leading company in the industry, Hengan sets an example in
promoting philanthropic and charitable causes, steadfastly fulfilling its
social responsibilities step by step. It has established the Hengan
Volunteers Association and the Hengan Charity Fund, taking concrete
actions to empower sustainable social development.
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The Group responds to the national rural revitalization strategy,
assisting multiple villages such as Xinban Village in creating pathways
to prosperity. Holding true to its initial commitment to caring for the
health and growth of women, it has continuously invested in the
“Spring Bud Plan” for five consecutive years. In 2023, it donated
“Creating the Future” girl growth energy packs with a total value of
RMB350,000 to the Ningde City Women’s Federation. Additionally, the
Group focuses on the current needs of the elderly, creating the public
welfare short film “This Time, Love Will Not Be Late” to call for
societal attention and understanding of the “unspoken difficulties” of
the disabled elderly. Faced with sudden earthquake disasters, Hengan
swiftly provided support to the affected areas, donating 1.2 million
pieces of Space 7 sanitary pads and 210,000 pieces of Anerle diapers
to the victims in Gansu Province, and donated goods worth 2 million
yuan to women and children in the earthquake-affected areas of Syria
and Turkey.

In 2023, the Group was honored with the “China Red Cross Special
Contribution Award” among other accolades.

Outlook

Looking ahead to 2024, the escalating geopolitical tensions and cloudy
prospects of the tightening monetary policies of the world’s major
central banks will continue to pose challenges to global economic
growth and add to the uncertainties of domestic economic
development. However, the long-term sound fundamentals of the
Chinese economy remain unchanged. It is expected that China will
continue to implement proactive fiscal policies and prudent monetary
policies to further promote the high-quality economic development and
expand domestic demand, thereby bolstering consumer confidence.
The trend of upgrading daily necessities is expected to continue. The
Group will continue to pay close attention to the domestic and
international political and economic developments, as well as changes
in market trends, respond flexibly and make prudent decisions.

With normal supply from wood pulp mills, the price of wood pulp is
expected to remain stable, which will be beneficial to the Group’s
business operations. The Group will closely monitor the impact of
external factors on the prices of imported wood pulp, petrochemical
raw materials, and other materials.

AEBMEEEARPNIRESE  EXFHTENEZE
BMITEREZE - ASBERFHEELEREKE
HAEFEMNYL BERFREAIEESIER - =
T —FREEMRHEBETHEAEAARBISE T
WIERR I LERERER R AEEEEE
TEFARR  TEGER BTEE)RASEHRY
FHGBOMEBEMRAEEFAIRT IR -AYHR
BERMELE BEARBELE WMERESL
HEBEI20BRLtEEHEENINANER TR
WMIRE TAMFEMTEEWELBRELRES
BEEARE2008THYE -

—E=%"

4555 .

AEBREREA+FEERER

ARREE

RE_Z_NF AEMBNBEBRERBRE R
BRRTERTNEBERBRMNS TR $HER
WREEIERHRE BT EAEHERN TR
M B ELERRSHENT A - B
REEEERESOMBBRIRENEERR
E-—SHPEENSEEZREBEAANT  ZIFH
BEGL FRUFENEETAMIARBEKE
SE - SESHEETRIBEANIREER LTS
BEEL BEEEYRIEHEERARE -

ERMAFEBEERFTESTHERLT - BAAEE
REEBRFBERBENKF  BHNXHKEE - SFEHK
YR EBIIERZHEOKRE AR ERERME
ERHNEE -



Despite the intensified competition in the domestic daily necessities
market, with the continuous improvement of national environmental
standard and the promotion of the carbon peak and carbon neutrality
goals, it is anticipated that price promotion strategies in the industry
may not be sustainable. The Group will adhere to its core strategy of
“stable pricing”, maintain a sound level of liquidity and capture the
opportunities of industry consolidation. Hengan, leveraging its leading
research and development and production capabilities and excellent
brand image, coupled with its extensive nationwide distribution and
diversified product portfolio, still demonstrated strong resilience in a
challenging operating environment, successfully seized the opportunity
of industry consolidation, and further expanded market share.

As a leader in the Hengan centres around long-term
development to formulate business strategies and allocate resources.
The Group will actively implement the three core strategies, including
“focus on main businesses”, “brand leadership” and “long-termism”, so
as to lay a solid foundation for the sustainable development of the
Group. The Group will focus on the development of the three core
businesses of tissue paper, sanitary napkin and disposable diapers,
actively develop higher quality new products and expand into new
markets, accelerate penetration into rural markets and other markets in
the mainland China, and seize the huge development opportunities in
the domestic daily necessities market.

industry,

In the future, the Group will further optimise the brand image of its
products through strategies such as product premiumisation, new
packaging, and precise allocation of marketing resources. Additionally,
the marketing department will comprehensively enhance the brand
image to encourage consumers to purchase Hengan products. The
Group will continue to enhance its product mix and accelerate product
premiumisation, such as the hot-selling series “Q ¢ MO”, “Cloudy Soft
Skin” and “Heavenly Mountain Cotton”, so as to improve the Group’s
profitability, further develop online and offline sales channels and
promote the joint development of multi-channels to expand its
customer base.

The Group will also continue to optimise the organisational structure,
strengthen the development of young professional team, improve team
efficiency, and allocate resources to technological applications in order
to improve infrastructure and enhance supply chain efficiency. These
efforts include enhancing supply chain management efficiency through
the IBM Blockchain Platform (IBP) and the cloudification of the SAP
system, which aim to improve the quality of the system, enable
effective  monitoring of operational data and
visibility to facilitate the formulation of appropriate business strategies.

improve operational
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In order to continue to consolidate the Group’s market leadership in
tissue paper and hygiene products and meet domestic consumers’
demand for high-quality products, the Group plans to carry out
production capacity expansion and technological upgrades in the
future, including the establishment of a new upgraded sanitary napkin,
disposable diapers, wet wipes plant in Neikeng, Fujian, and the
expansion of tissue paper production capacity in Xiaogan, Hunan, and
Yunfu, Guangdong. It is expected that the new production capacity will
be put into operation successively in 2024.

As a leading enterprise in the personal and household hygiene
products industry in China, Hengan will continue to adhere to the
mission of “Growing with You for a Better Life”, and strive to become
a supplier of high-quality, reliable and sustainable personal and
household hygiene products, while also actively promote ESG
development and contribute to building a green and sustainable world.
The Group will focus on the three main businesses (tissue paper,

sanitary napkin and disposable diapers), enhance its brand image,

seize the opportunities in the “new retail”
general direction for future development to further scale its business.
At the same time, the Group will continue to take industry extension
as the long-term development goal, actively expand and extend to

infant and child care, and elderly care business to

era, take long-termism as the

feminine care,
continue to maintain its overall competitiveness, and gradually promote
international development of Hengan’s brand, striving to become a
“global top-tier supplier of daily products”.

Hui Ching Lau
FER
Chief Executive Officer

T A8,

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Sze Man Bok, aged 74, is the
Chairman of the Group and Executive
Director of the Company. He is also a
director of most of the subsidiaries of the
Group. He is responsible for the Group’s
overall corporate direction and business
strategy. Mr. Sze is one of the founding
shareholders and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Sze has over 40 years of

experience in manufacturing and distribution of consumer products.

He is the father of Mr. Sze Wong Kim, an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Sze is currently an non-executive director of Qingin
Foodstuffs Group (Cayman) Company Limited (stock code 1583)
(“Qingin Foodstuffs”), a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Sze was appointed as executive director of Wang-Zeng Berhad
("“WzB”) on 15 June 2017, a company listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad with a stock code of 7203. He was
designated as non-independent non-executive director of WZB on 25
September 2017.

Mr. Hui Lin Chit (former known as Hui Chi
Lin), aged 70, is the Deputy Chairman and
executive director of the Company. He
provides support for the Group’s long-term
development. Mr. Hui is one of the founding
shareholders of the Company and has over
40 years of experience in manufacturing and
distribution of consumer products. He
resigned as Chief Executive Officer, the authorized representative (for
the purposes of Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules) (the “Authorized
Representative”), a member of nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company on 18 August 2021. During
the period of 1998 and 18 August 2021, Mr. Hui was appointed as
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and responsible for strategic
planning, human resources and the overall management of Hengan
Group. Mr. Hui has the title of senior economist in People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”). He is the Chairman of the Jinjiang City Charity
Federation.
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Mr. Hui was a member of the 9th, 10th and 11th National Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) from
1998 to 2012. During the period from 1997 to 2011, he was also a
member of the Executive Committee (at the 8th CPPCC National
Committee) and Standing Committee (at the 9th CPPCC National
Committee), and deputy chairman (at the 10th CPPCC National
Committee) of All-China Federation of Industry and Commence. He
was also a deputy chairman of the 9th, 10th and 11th Quanzhou
Municipal CPPCC Committee and the chairman of the 10th, 11th,
12th and 13th Quanzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce.

He is the father of Mr. Hui Ching Lau, Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company and Mr. Hui Ching Chi, an
Executive Director of the Company. During the period of 22 March
2016 to 18 May 2023 and 22 March 2016 to 12 April 2017, Mr. Hui
was a non-executive director and the Chairman of Qingin Foodstuffs
respectively, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Hui was appointed as executive director of WZB on
15 June 2017 and designated as non-independent non-executive
chairman of WZB on 25 September 2017.

Mr. Hung Ching Shan, aged 74, he was
appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 1998 and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, and retired as an
Executive Director of the Company on
22 May 2023. He was responsible for
supervising the Group’s purchasing tender
assignments and has over 45 vyears of
experience in raw materials procurement as well as in import and
export trading. Mr. Hung is one of the founding shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Hui Ching Lau, aged 44, appointed as
Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2020. He was further appointed
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 18 August 2021. He is also an
Authorised Representative, the Chairman of
Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He is a director of most of the
subsidiaries of the Group. He has about 22 years of experience in
corporate management and is responsible for providing planning,
guidance and strategic advice on strategic development and overall
management of the Group. He is currently an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of Qingin Foodstuffs. He is the
managing director of Lianjie Investments Group Limited.
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Mr. Hui was a director of AGORA Hospitality Group Co., Ltd. (a
company whose shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange,
stock code: 9704) from 29 March 2018 to 3 December 2020. Mr. Hui
was a non-executive director of China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited
(“Huiyuan Juice”) from 29 January 2018 to 10 January 2019. Huiyuan
Juice is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (Stock code: 1886) until 18 January 2021 which the listed status
were cancelled by the stock exchange, being principally engaged in
production and sale of fruit juice, fruit and vegetable juice and other
beverages. In October 2019, a winding-up petition and provisional
liquidators application at the High Court of Hong Kong was served on
Huiyuan Juice. For further details of the proceedings, please refer to
the announcements of Huiyuan Juice including that dated 24 January
2019 (https://www1.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/0124/
[tn201901249978.pdf), 24 October 2019 (https://www1.hkexnews.hk/
listedco/listconews/sehk/2019/1025/2019102401207.pdf), 19
November 2020 (https://www1.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/
sehk/2020/1119/2020111901298.pdf) 2020
(https://www1l.hkexnews.hk/listedco/listconews/
sehk/2020/1130/2020113001375.pdf).

and 30 November

Mr. Hui is a member of the 11th and 12th Fujian Provincial Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) from
2013 to 2022 and a member of the 14th National Committee of
CPPCC since 2023. He is the executive vice president of the Fourth
Youth Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese since December 2014. Mr. Hui is also the Vice-Chairman of
Fujian Federation of Industry and Commerce (11th session), an
executive committee member of All-China Federation of Industry and
Commence (12th session), a standing committee member of the 10th
Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, the
life honorary president of the World Jinjiang Youth Association, the life
honorary advisor of Federation of Jinjiang Hong Kong Associations, the
life honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations and co-chairman of the China Paper Chamber of
Commerce.
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Mr. Hui graduated with a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accounting &
Finance and Economics from the University of Kent at Canterbury in
July 2001, and a Degree of Master of Science in Finance from the
University of London (Imperial College of Science, Technology and
Medicine) in November 2002, in the United Kingdom. He also received
a Degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in September 2010 in the People’s
Republic of China.

Mr. Hui is the son of Mr. Hui Lin Chit, an executive director and the
Vice-Chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Hui is also the
brother of Mr. Hui Ching Chi, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Xu Shui Shen, aged 54, he was
appointed as an Executive Director of the
= Company on 1 June 2010 and retired on

-4

m Officer of Tissue Paper Division of the

* Group. He joined the Group in 1985 and
has over 39 years of experience in operation management and
business development. He graduated from business administration
department in the Huagiao University and holds the title of senior
economist in the PRC. Mr. Xu is a younger brother of Mr. Xu Da Zuo,
an Executive Director of the Company.

22 May 2023. Before the retirement, he was
the Senior Advisor of the Group. During
2011 to 2022, he was Chief Executive

Mr. Xu Da Zuo, aged 57, is the Vice
President of the Group and responsible for
capital
operation and investment management of
the Group. He was the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group. Joining the Group in
1985, Mr. Xu has over 39 years of
experience in accounting and internal audit.
He has the title of senior accountant in the PRC. He is an elder
brother of Mr. Xu Shui Shen, a former executive director of the
Company.

administrative management,
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Mr. Xu Chun Man, aged 49, he was
appointed as an Executive Director of the
Ein, Company in 1998 and retired on 22 May
':: 2023. He was responsible for the Group’s
overall business development strategy. He
joined the Group after graduating from
Fujian Jinjiang Vocational Institute in 1991.

?}f‘ Mr. Xu has over 33 years of experience in

business development and customer service management.

Mr. Sze Wong Kim, aged 48, is
responsible for overall business strategy of
the Group. Before joining the Group on 1
June 2010, Mr. Sze worked
accountancy firms in Australia and gained
extensive experience
business advisory work. He started his own
business

in two

in assurance and

-l
distribution of branded electronic components and computer
accessories products in Hong Kong and overseas markets. Mr. Sze
graduated from the University of Technology, Sydney with a Bachelor
Degree of Business majoring in accounting and obtained a Master
Degree of Commerce in finance from the University of New South
Wales, Australia. He was appointed as the Company Secretary and
authorised representative of the Company on 30 November 2016 and
resigned on 3 January 2017. He is a member of CPA Australia and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is the son of Mr. Sze Man Bok, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

in 2005 on wholesale and

Mr. Hui Ching Chi, aged 39, is the Group
Vice President. He is responsible for the
Group’s international business development.
During 2015 to 2016, he was the Chief
Executive Officer of Supply Chain
Management. He was the Director of Supply
& ;* . Chain Management of the Group from 2015
to 2016. Mr. Hui worked
international bank in London prior to joining the Group in February
2008. Mr. Hui holds a Law Degree from the London University. He is
a son of Mr. Hui Lin Chit, the Vice-Chairman and an executive director
of the Company and a younger brother of Mr. Hui Ching Lau, the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of the Company. He
is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
appointed as executive director and Group Chief Executive Officer of
WZB on 25 September 2017 and 1 July 2022 respectively.

in a major

Hui was
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Mr. Li Wai Leung, aged 45, is appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
on 26 March 2020. Mr. Li is also the
Company Secretary and Authorized
Representative of the Company. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
He has over 23 vyears of experience in
accounting, finance and business advisory
work. Before joining the Group on 3 January 2017, Mr. Li worked as
the chief financial officer of various sizable PRC based manufacturing
companies and as a senior manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr.
Li obtained his bachelor’'s degree
Accounting and Finance from the University of Hong Kong. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr.
appointed as executive director of WZB on 15 June 2017.

in Business Administration in

Li was

Mr. Xu Wenmo, aged 58, has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company since 24 August 2023. He is
currently the Vice President of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s legal
management, risk management, and internal
and external control of the Group. Mr. Xu
joined the Group in 1985 and has
accumulated over 35 years of experience in management, marketing
and sales of consumer products. He has the title of senior economist
in the PRC.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Henry, aged 58, was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company appointed in 1998. He was also a
of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He retired as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and ceased to be

the member of each Committee on 22 May

member

2023.

Mr. Chan has over 37 years of experience in the financial market and
is the Managing Director of Sanfull Securities Limited. He was a
Director of the Stock Exchange and was also a member of the
Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission.
Mr. Chan is currently the Permanent Honorary President of Hong Kong
Stockbrokers Association Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of Luen Thai Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 0311, which engages in
the manufacturing and trading of garment and textile products.
Mr. Chan is also a committee member of CPCC in Xiamen, Fujian
Province, China. Mr. Chan holds a Master degree in Business

Administration.

Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, JP, aged 64, is
an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company appointed in 1998. She is also
the Chairlady of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Nomination Committee, the
Share Award Committee and Remuneration
Committee.

Ms. Wong, a practicing solicitor, is a partner of Philip K. H. Wong,
Kennedy Y. H. Wong & Co., Solicitors &Notaries. She is also a culture
and creative education advocate. She is the supervisor of HKICC Lee
Shau Kee School of Creativity and the council member of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University. She was Chair of the Wanchai District Council
(2004-2007) and during the period of 20 October 2016 and 19
October 2022, Ms. Wong was a member of Museum Advisory
Committee and Art Sub-committee, Museum Advisory Committee.
During the period 7 September 2004 and 30 September 2022, she
independent non-executive director of Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 0239.

was an
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Mr. Theil
appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 17 May 2019. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Environmental,
Social and Governance Committee, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Share Award Committee. He has had
extensive experience in the finance and investment industry. He is the
founder and has been the Chairman of Shenzhen Zhong An Credit
Investment Co., Ltd since January 2008. He is an independent
non-executive director of Qin Qin Foodstuffs. From October 2013 to
June 2021, Mr. Theil was an independent director of China Industrial
Bank Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 601166) since October 2013, and he was redesignated
as supervisor since June 2021. He was also previously a Non-
executive director of the Company from July 2000 to September
2001.

Paul Marin, aged 70, was

Mr. Theil graduated from Yale University with a Degree of Bachelor of
Arts in June 1975 and a Degree of Master of Arts in East Asian
Studies in June 1975. He also graduated with a Degree of Juris
Doctor and a Degree of Master of Business Administration from
Harvard Law School and Harvard Business School in June 1980 and
November 1981 respectively.

Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark, aged 62, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company appointed on 1 January 2013. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee,
the Share Award Committee and
Remuneration Committee, the Chairman of
m the Nomination Committee. He is currently
the co-founder and CEO of ProMEX Limited,
an independent non-executive director of
Lee Kee Holdings Limited (stock code 0637) and Green Future Food
Hydrocolloid Marine Science Company Limited (stock code 1084). He
was the Chief Operating Officer of Oriental Patron Securities Limited,
the Chief Compliance Officer of Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange
Limited, the Director of Business Development of Sun Hung Kai
Securities Limited and a Director of Phillip Securities (HK) Limited. He
was also previously Vice President of Corporate Strategy of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Head of Compliance of
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited. He has more than 29 years of
experience in the securities and futures industry.

Mr. Ho received a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in 1984 and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Chen Chuang, aged 486,
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company appointed on 20 May 2022. He is
also a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Share Award
Committee,
Environmental,
Committee of the Company, has over 18
years of experience in corporate strategy, large enterprises innovation,
and internal innovation. Mr. Chen is an independent non-executive
director of 361 Degrees International Limited (stock code: 1361) since
August 2019, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He was awarded a bachelor degree and a master degree in
Management from the Faculty of Management and Economics of
Dalian University of Technology. He also received his doctorate degree
in Business Administration from the School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University. He is currently a professor of

is an

" —
L
_'E'
o Nomination Committee and

Social and Governance

business management at the Master of Business Administration
Education Center of the School of Management of Xiamen University.
Mr. Chen is a committee member of the Case Research Division of
Chinese Society for Management Modernisation.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang Xiangyang, aged 55, is the Vice President of the Group
and responsible for the Group’s supply chain, procurement, and
production of sanitary products, paper products,diapers and wet
wipes. Mr. Wang served as the Director of Purchasing and Trading of
the Supply Chain Development Department of the Group from 2021 to
2022. He joined the Group in 1999 and worked as the Director of
Supply Chain of the Group before leaving the Group in February 2015.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked as a manager of the
International Business Department in Jinjiang Branch of China
Construction Bank. Mr. Wang rejoined the Group in February 2017
and has over 25 years of experience in procurement and logistics. He
graduated from Huagiao University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Engineering and holds the title of senior economist.

Mr. Zhu Jianshui, aged 49, serves as Financial Controller (Mainland
China) of the Group. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 28
years of experience in finance and auditing. He graduated from Tianjin
University of Commerce as a major in international accounting and
Southwest University as a major in law and holds the titles of certified
tax accountant, auditor and senior economist.
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Mr. Hou Zhijian, aged 46, serves as the Director of Business and
Trade Development Department and is responsible for the Group’s
sales (including both online and offline sales) in Mainland China and
various other duties. Mr. Hou served as the General Manager of
Regional Operations of the Group from 2000 to 2017. He rejoined the
Group in August 2023 and has over 23 years of experience in sales
management.

Mr. Lin Yuxian, aged 44, serves as the Director of Supply Chain and
is responsible for the Group’s warehousing, logistics and planning. He
joined the Group in 2002 and has over 23 years of experience in
sales, marketing and supply chain. He graduated from the Department
of Economics and Business Administration of Liming Vocational
University as a major in computerised accounting.

Mr. Yang Chenglong, aged 39, serves as the Director of Human
Resources Department and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management activities. He joined the Group in 2008 and has
over 19 years of experience in human resources. He graduated from
Beijing Wuzi University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Human Resources
Management and holds the title of senior economist.

Ms. Li Li,
and is

aged 40, serves as the Director of Marketing Department
responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
branding, media, membership and user experience. She joined the
Group in 2019 and has over 10 years of experience in brand
development. She graduated from Chengdu University of Technology
with a Master’s Degree in Engineering and Xiamen University and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Hengan International Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of
achieving the highest standard of corporate governance consistent
with the needs and requirements of its businesses and the best
interest of all of its stakeholders, and the board of directors (the
“Board”) is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high
standards of corporate governance provide a framework and solid
risks,
transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and protect

foundation for the Group to manage business enhance

stakeholders’ interests.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix C1 (formerly
known as Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the Code Provision F.2.2
that Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, the chairman of audit committee, and
Mr. Chan Henry, the then chairman of remuneration committee, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
22 May 2023 because they had other urgent business engagement.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

“Growing with you for a better life” has always been the mission
of the Group. We will continue to adhere to our corporate spirit of
“Integrity, Diligent, Innovation and Dedication”. The Company’s culture
is moulded by our mission and values. The values embed throughout
the Company’s vision, mission, policies and business strategies.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary, its
business strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions
to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken in respond to
the changes and meet the market needs to foster the sustainability of
the Group.

N\ i &5 N
1k B /A

&

TEERTR
ERBEREEERAR ((ARA)) REKMBEQR (5
BIAKEDRAZREAEEBAFENTAEM
ENEREBEALREN G RSRELCEERZE
ZE MEFS(EFS) BERNETEHETL
E-EFERHE BSKELEEREAELAEEEE
RIFRE ERBE TEAHEREKRAR KR
SERE MR EKERE N RREEN G
ALz Mz e

RBE_Z-_=F+_A=1t—HILFER AR
A HEEREEMARIMARAR (B E
Z bR A (T EMARRL) MERCT (AR 8%+ 10) 1
eI (REBERTR) A& A R A 8T H
SFRRST ST AR XF.2.20: 81 BB R X E
ERFZLAKEIFMEZE ST ERBELLERA
HMWESAK REHEARRR T =51 A
T+ HETHRRBEFARE -

1% b R KB
MERBRMBE—ERRIEAEENED - RIAK
BEZRBIWE B A% FRINEERS-
BAMEGMEEBRLET ARANXL - HAW
Xk THMANZOLEER ZFEEBEBRAX
RNEZFER - (Ew  BUR R EB R

AEBBHERNEBRBLER L EHRINNAH
B YERRSBEENTIHARN  ABEDLERE
BRpEEERASBE MR TSHER  EMESHA
SEZAHERRE-



46 HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

Corporate Governance Report
tEEARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which
oversees the Group’s businesses; (2) the preparation of interim and
annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval before
publishing; (3) implementation of adequate internal controls and risk
management procedures; and (4) compliance with relevant statutory
It is the
responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate
governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and
to ensure processes and procedures are in place to achieve the
Company’s corporate governance objectives. The management team is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management of the Group. While allowing management
substantial autonomy to run and develop the business, the Board
plays a key role in structuring and monitoring the reporting systems
and internal controls. The composition and functions of each Board
committee are described below. The final decision still rests with the
Board unless otherwise provide for in the terms of reference of
relevant committees.

includes (1) leadership and control of the Company and

and regulatory requirements and rules and regulations.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment. Directors
with various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the
Board believes that the current Board composition satisfies the
balance of expertise, skills and experience to the corporate
governance requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing
development and management of its business activities.

The Board comprises twelve directors, of which eight are executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sze Man Bok (Chairman of the Board,
“Chairman”), Hui Lin Chit (Vice-Chairman), Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief
Executive Officer), Mr. Xu Da Zuo, Mr. Sze Wong Kim, Mr. Hui Ching
Chi, Mr. Xu Wenmo and Mr. Li Wai Leung (Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary);
Directors, namely Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, Mr. Ho Kwai Ching, Mark,
Mr. Chen Chuang and Mr. Theil Paul Marin. During the year, Mr. Hung
Ching Shan, Mr. Xu Shui Shen and Mr. Xu Chun Man retired as
executive director, Mr. Chan Henry retired as an independent non-
executive director and Mr. Xu Wenmo was appointed as an executive
director of the Company.

and four are independent non-executive
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s interim and annual results. During the Year,
four regular Board meetings were held and the attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings is set out in the section headed
“Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

The Directors are provided with relevant information to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management for
information and making enquires if necessary. A Director,
considers there is necessary to seek independent professional advice
in order to perform his duties as a Director, may convene, or request
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to
convene, a Board meeting to approve the consultation of independent
legal or other professional adviser for advice at the Company’s

who

expenses.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. At
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors
and Senior Management set out on pages 35 to 44 of this annual
report, the Directors do not have material financial, business or other
relationships with one another.

v

BLEAREBEGRAA
—EZFEFR 47

Corporate Governance Report

EXEBRSE

EFxeEHRETeR AIWHERRKLAEEZ
HERMBRE  UERHRIERRABTHEER
FEXE-FR EFERTHAEHER 84
EEhFEFeea R B A HREEES

REBEgHE] -

EERERELANBEREMTNEEEN -EF 2
REEEFHARAERTEHBERNBLARAARSRE
BEEERENMFEFLER BEFNR/BETHEES
BERBEBRBYIEEER  AETHERAR
ArAME((RRAME) ERESE SR AR
BIFRRHEMEXERER  BRAARRAEIE-

BFEHMRTZEFEYH  HIRPELZHE U
BT EEZESHFE -TEES R AERER
HimEBE AR MEBDEEERBSZZRE N
HFEFMBERARUNRET SNESTT LI LHY
B ZRRET - XRESSTLHEUEMER - &KX
FEEH UHESTH IESHCHYHAA R
MEFE MERLENTITREFTRLAEBANE
WHEABRBAARER-

REARRZERMY  AEEZTEBREZE
R EAEFTERNECESAEHEEARRATE
BRERERAER/IL EFAERNZAG LEESEE-
REERRBERG L ERZ=Z92Z—2EFEHK
BRI HEEFARIB=ZFRRRBFASL
WERE—R-

BENAFRFEBZAMEZEERSRERAERE
FERHEZREBERIN EEFEH BT ETMNE
A EBHRHMBER -




l @

48 HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

Corporate Governance Report
EEXEELRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated in order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
Mr. Sze Man Bok, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the
Group’s overall corporate direction and business strategy, and ensure
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established. Mr. Hui Ching Lau, Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
is responsible for strategic planning, human resources and the overall
management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing Board, shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting after his or her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

The letters of appointment of independent non-executive directors with
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark will expire on 31 December 2024. Ms. Ying
Kay Ada Wong, Mr. Chen Chuang and Mr. Theil Paul Marin are
appointed with no specific term. Termination could be made by
serving not less than three months’ notice in writing by either party.

In accordance with the CG Code and the Articles of Association, all
Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received confirmations of independence from all Independent Non-
Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, has reviewed the
independence of all Independent Non-Executive Directors and
concluded that all of them are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of the occurrence
of any events which would cause it to believe that the independence
of any of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been impaired
up to the date of this report.
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MECHANISM ON INDEPENDENT VIEWS TO THE
BOARD

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Board has established a mechanism is to
enable Directors to seek independent professional advice when
exercising Directors’ duties to ensure a strong independent element to

the decision made by the Board which is key to an effective Board.

According to the mechanism, subject to the prior approval by the
executive Director of the Company (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), the Directors may seek
independent legal, financial or other professional advice from advisors
independent of those advising the Company as and when necessary in
appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities effectively, either on the Company’s affairs or in respect
of their fiduciary or other duties, at the Company’s expense. In case of
the Board is seeking independent professional advice, prior approval
must be given by the executive Director of the Company (which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

The Board will review this mechanism on an annual basis to ensure
the implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an
policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and

induction package covering business operations,

regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements.

Mr. Xu Wenmo was appointed as an executive director during the
Year. He confirms that he has obtained the legal advice referred to
under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 25 August 2023, and (i)
understands his obligations as a director of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the
Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance
practices so that they can continuously acquire relevant knowledge
and skills. All Directors had provided to the Company records of
training received during the year, including attended seminars, briefing
or workshop and reading materials in respect of regulatory updates
about the directors’ duties, the Group’s business and
industry, etc.

relevant
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BOARD AND EMPLOYEES DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, independence and knowledge. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

experience,

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises twelve Directors,
amongst them, four are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, professional skills, gender and
knowledge.

experience,

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy and its
implementation annually to ensure its effectiveness. Having reviewed
the board diversity policy and the Board’s composition during the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee considered that
the requirements of the board diversity policy had been met,
implementation was effective and no measurable objective had been
set to implement the board diversity policy.

The Board is committed to upholding diversity of gender, background,
skills and experience across our workforce. The employee male-to-
female ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023 is 56:44. The
Group when hiring employees considers a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service, and the Group will make sure achieving gender
diversity across the workforce.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
(formerly known as Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange. The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors
regarding any noncompliance with the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023, and they all confirmed that they had fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code,
except that Mr. Hui Ching Lau was in breach of Rules A.3 and B.8 of
the Model Code on 22 March 2023 having inadvertently purchased
100,000 shares of the Company immediately after publication of the
annual results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2022,
which falls on the blackout period for Directors’ dealings which lasts
up to and including the day of the publication of the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2022 (i.e. including
22 March 2023).

To avoid recurrence of similar incidents in the future, the Company has
arranged a training session for all Directors. Going forward, the
Directors of the dealing
restrictions throughout any future blackout periods.

Company will continually reminding all

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee
consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors and its
members are:

Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Theil Paul Marin (Independent Non-executive Director)

— Chairman of the Committee appointed on 22 May 2023
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Chen Chuang (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Chan Henry (Independent Non-executive Director) — former

Chairman of the Committee, retired on 22 May 2023

v

Bz BREEFRA A 51
—EZFER

Corporate Governance Report

EXEBRSE

BTESETEEZRINEETR

AAR—HEMNB X2 &S EmER( LR
A1) B 8xC3 (BT B HT 8% 1) PR IR ZESFA) - KA T
BB E S _=F+_A=Z1+—RHLFERN
EERCATMNABETORESTANEL SR 2
REETHERAMMETZEBRUZETADATRTEHE
Bl HEFF S M A R20233A2B EEHEEH T
2022F 12 A IA L FEMNEFEELNERHENE
EXSGRERRN(ZREHFEE BIEH E2022F
12A31BLFENEFEELNERMER - NEE
202343 H22H) -~ 15 i i B 100,000/% A& 2 & f% 17
MmERTUEESTADFEAIRBSERIN

REZORBRELBUEN  RACARERES
LHETERE - R DREEERREMEEEH
NEFEREMEEFIERHRE -

FMESS

EEGDRUFHEE S TEAIAHBES
FHHEZESZRBERBEABERNZBELE
I - WRARE KRBT AT SR - H B
ZEENMREBEARINABIIINTESR  HKNEN
T

BRI E (TTB A )

REFBEE(BUIIHNTEE) -R=ZF=Z=4F
A+ —HEZ(FARZEEDFE

EURB R L (BUIFHTEE)

MEBEE(BLIHTESE)

PRE L (B IHHTEE)

BREBEE (BUHHNTEE) -HEBELE
R-IFE-ZFRTH -+ -HRFT




l @

52 HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

Corporate Governance Report
EEXEELRE

The Remuneration Committee is charged with the responsibility of
determining the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind, pension
rights, and compensation payments, and to advise the Board on the
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors. In developing
remuneration policies and making recommendations as to the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account the performance of the
individual Directors and key executives. The
Remuneration Committee also review and/or approve matters relating
to share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Group as well as

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge
its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference which are
set out in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
During the Year, one remuneration committee meeting was held. The
attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out
in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this
report.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee had performed the
following:

- reviewed the Group’s
recommendations to the Board; and

remuneration policy and made

- reviewed and approved the proposed 2023 overall remuneration
of the Group.
Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the
Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. Details of emoluments
of Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules
are set out in Notes 12 and 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not directors are within
the following bands:

vV 4
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BEFNSETEALZKENFIANTUTEE

Number of
persons
Remuneration band ¥ BN &6 & AN
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMBO B E — & #4,000,000 (FH & % 3
to RMB901,100) ARBZE AR®901,1007T)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to RMB901,101 751,000,001 - /& 1,500,000 (A8 & 1 3
to RMB1,351,650) AR Q01,1017 2= A R #1,351,6507T)
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,351,651 3 #1,500,001 — 3 #2 000,000 (18 & 7 1
to RMB1,802,200) AR #1,351,651T & A K %1,802,2007T)
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to RMB1,802,201 7 #2 000,001 - & #2 500,000 (18 & 0

to RMB2,252,750)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board, its terms of
reference are aligned with the recommendations set out in “A Guide
for Effective Audit Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out in the CG
Code. Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are set out in the terms of reference which are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor, to review the Group’s interim and
annual results, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the
internal controls and risk management systems of the Group, to review
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is necessary and
to perform investigations.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of whom possesses the appropriate business and
financial experience and skills to understand the accounts of the
Group. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong and
other members are Mr. Theil Paul Marin, Mr. Chan Henry (retired on
22 May 2023), Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark and Mr. Chen Chuang.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review the
interim and the annual results before their submission to the Board
and monitored the integrity of such financial statements; and review
the internal control and risk management systems with external
auditor. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set
out in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this
report.
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The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters determined by the external auditor under the new and revised
reporting standards under Hong Kong Standards on Auditing for the
Year.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit Committee have
been addressed by the senior management. The work and findings of
the Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During the
Year, no issues brought to the attention of the senior management
and the Board were of sufficient significance for disclosure in the
annual report.

The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the Year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
considered that relevant audited consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting principles
and requirements of the Stock Exchange and disclosures have been
fully made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference, which included the selection criteria and
nomination procedures, for nomination of new Directors. In identifying
and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee will consider the candidate’s character, qualifications,
experience, independence, time commitment and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board. According to the nomination policy, for filing a casual vacancy
or appointing an additional director to the Board,
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election or re-
election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation of

the Nomination

candidates to stand for election or re-election at any general meeting.
Details of the authority and
Committee are set out in the terms of reference which are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

responsibilities of the Nomination

The Nomination Committee consists of a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors and its members are Mr. Sze Man Bok (Chairman
of the Board), Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief Executive Officer),
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, Mr.
Chan Henry (retired on 22 May 2023), Mr. Theil Paul Marin and Mr.
Chen Chuang.

and all

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
held three meetings to review the nomination policy and board
diversity policy and to review and recommend the renewal of the
terms of appointment and re-election of Directors. The Nomination
Committee has also reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board and concluded that members of the Board has possessed
the expertise and independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities. The attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company and the CG Code, Mr. Hui Ching Lau, Mr. Xu Da
Zuo, Mr. Sze Wong Kim, Mr. Xu Wenmo and Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong
will retire office at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held
on 17 May 2024 (“AGM”), and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.
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Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong has served on the Board for more than nine
years. She has given confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the Nomination Committee of
the Company determined that Ms. Wong meets the criteria of
independence expected of an independent non-executive Director
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and has the character, integrity,
independence and experience required to fulfil and discharge the role
and duties of an independent non-executive Director in the event that
she is elected at the AGM. Hence, the Board considers that the long
service of Ms. Wong would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment in his service with the Company, and proposes Ms. Ada
Ying Kay Wong for re-election as an independent non-executive
Director at the AGM.

SHARE INCENTIVE COMMITTEE

A Share Incentive Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Share Incentive Committee are set out in the
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Share Incentive Committee
consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors and its
members are:

Mr. Theil Paul Marin (Independent Non-executive Director)

— Chairman of the Committee
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Chen Chuang (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Wai Leung (Executive Director)
The primary duties of the Share Incentive Committee includes
instruction the Trustee to purchase Shares of the Company at any
time the Share Incentive Committee considers appropriate;
determination the eligibility of the person for participation in the
scheme; review and/or approval matters relating to the Share Incentive
Scheme.

No Directors can determine their own or any of their associates grant
of awards. The Share Incentive Committee will meet at least once a
year to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of
reference which are set out in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. During the Year, one Share Incentive Committee meeting
was held. The attendance of each member of the Share Incentive
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.
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During the Year, the Share Incentive Committee had performed the
following:

- report the annual summary the Share Award Scheme and discuss
future directions; and

- instruct the Trustee to purchase the shares of the Company from
the secondary market.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (“ESG COMMITTEE”)

The ESG Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the ESG Committee are set out in the terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The members of the ESG Committee are:

Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief Executive Officer), Chairman
Mr. Li Wai Leung (Executive Director)

Mr. Theil Paul Marin (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Chen Chuang (Independent Non-executive Director)

The ESG Committee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s ESG policies and practices to ensure
compliance with the legal and regulatory
monitoring and responding to emerging ESG issues and making
recommendations to the Board where appropriate to improve the
Group’s ESG performance.

relevant requirements,

The Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its
responsibilities. During the Year,
held. The attendance of each member of the ESG Committee is set
out in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this
report. During the Year, the ESG Committee had reviewed on
environmental, social and governance work in 2023 and work scope in
2024.

one ESG Committee meeting was

e v
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS EEERZEEEER
The individual attendance records of each Director attendance in ZEHFHNFEBE -T-@uﬂETEA_ E-=FERP
person or through electronic means of communication at the meetings HMEZEZC % HFWEZEL  RELZXE T ESG

of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, ESG ZE&  -BRHYEBZEES %V?i@@%&%%
Committee, Share Incentive Committee, Audit Committee and annual BEERKE &% 7 @B EELERIWOT :
general meeting in 2023 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE/ HERY
Share

Audit Remuneration Nomination ESG  Incentive Annual

Full Board Committee Committee  Committee Committee Committee  General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting

E58 ENEEE FHEEE REZEE SGEEE  RHND KRES

Directors EX = L E%ﬁ sni & ZEETH xE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Sze Man Bok e X8 5 A 44 NATER N/A R ER 33 N/ATHEA NATEH 1

Mr. Hui Lin Chit STEREE 44 NATEA NARER NATER NATER NATER 1

Mr. Hui Ching Lau FBREE 44 N/ATEA 1 3/3 11 NATER 1

Mr. Xu Da Zuo FREEE 4/4 N/A TEH NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 11

Mr. Sze Wong Kim MR % & 4/4  N/A NEFR NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 11

Mr. Hui Ching Chi FEMEE 44 N/A TR NATER  NATER NATER NATER il

Mr. Li Wai Leung TEREE 4/4 2/2* 11 3/3* 11 11 1

Mr. Xu Wenmo*® AFXE LA 2/4 N/A TER NARER NATER NATER NATER 1

Mr. Hung Ching Shan*( BB EE 1/4 NATER NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 1/1

Mr. Xu Shui Shen*( TR FE 0 1/4  N/A i NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 11

Mr. Xu Chun Man* FiE =Pl /4 N/A i NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 11
Independent Non-executive ~ BIEHTES

Directors

Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark HEBRE 4/4 2/2 i 3/3 N/A T i 111

Mr. Theil Paul Marin REFALE 4/4 2/2 1 3/3 171 il 171

Mr. Chen Chuang BREEE 4/4 2/2 11 3/3 il 11 il

Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong BEEBRL 3/4 2/2 11 2/3 N/A T il 01

Mr. Chan Henry*® R 88 8 5L A0 1/4 1/2 N/A i A 1/3 NATER NATER 0/1

The Company’s external auditor also attended the annual general ARRAFIEZBMTELERBEBEFEFAS -
meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the chairman held a HZE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—HILFE EFEEXL
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the HAHMEEHENBER T EB T IFRITE FLT—

presence of other Directors. R o

Notes: it

1) Retired at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2023. 1) R =FRA-+T_ABTZREEFAER
e

(2)  Appointed on 24 August 2023. @ RZE=ZFNAZ-THNHAEZF-

*

Being the secretary of the meetings. * EREHNWE -



AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group was charged approximately RMB5,900,000 and
RMB2,218,000 by the Company’s
PricewaterhouseCoopers, for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023. Non-auditing
services mainly included services provided for tax advisory services,
preliminary announcements of results, prepare for “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” etc. during the Year. The Audit
Committee is of the view that the auditors’ independence is not
affected by the services rendered.

external auditor,

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 which gives a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2023, and of the results and cash flows for year then ended. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, the Board has selected appropriate accounting policies, applied
them consistently in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are pertinent to its operations and relevant
to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and ensured the preparation of the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. The interim and annual results of the Group are announced
in a timely manner within the limit of two months and three months,
respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. The reporting
responsibilities of external
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.

auditor are set out in the section

v
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
design and implementation of the systems of internal controls which
reporting, operations, compliance and
management of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the
effectiveness of such systems. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Group. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going
process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced
by the Group.

covers financial risk

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal control
systems that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The
Audit Committee also considers the adequacy of
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function, as well as their training
programmes and budgets.

resources,

The Group has an independent and objective internal audit department
which critical aspects of the Group’s
authorities and its internal controls. Internal audit reports are presented
to the Board and the Audit Committee annually. The Audit Committee
has also annually reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications,
experience and training programs of the Group’s internal audit staff
and accounting and financial reporting staff and considered that the
staffing is adequate and the staff are competent to carry out their
roles and responsibilities.

reviews and monitors all

During the Year, the Company’s internal audit department reviewed the
Company’s internal control procedures and made recommendations to
the Board on improvements that can be made to the existing internal
control procedures. Through the Audit Committee, the Board has
conducted annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
systems for the year ended 31 2023 and
considered that the Group’s internal control systems effective and
adequate and is of the view that the system of internal control and
accounting adopted for the year ended 31 December 2023 is sound
and effective to safeguard the interests of the shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets.

control December

The Board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems in place covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls for the year ended 31 December
2023 under review and up to the date of issuance of the annual report
is reasonably effective and adequate.
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Risk Management Framework

1. Each business unit is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal controls for effective risk management are implemented
— principal risks are identified and assessed
business planning process with action plans to manage those
risks;

in the vyearly

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group -
regular meetings with each business unit to ensure principals
risk are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified; and

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control — review of the annual internal audit report
and consideration of the Audit Committee’s recommendation.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal control,
ensures that the risks associated with our different business units are
effectively controlled in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends pursuant
to code provision of the CG Code, which sets out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
recommendation, declaration, payment or distribution of dividends to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). The Company does
not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The Board has the
discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
subject to the Articles of Association of the Company and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board will also take into account the financial results; cash flow
situation; balance of distributable reserves; business conditions and
strategies; statutory fund reserve requirements; capital requirements
and expenditure plans; future operations and earnings; interests of
Shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

v

BLEABREEARA A 61
ZE=FF®

Corporate Governance Report

EXEBRSE

[ By B IR AR 4R

1. BEBELBEERAN FHLEEHEEBA
ZRE ERECRBEURAREREEREENAN
MEE - RFEEEFREBR S5 LT G
TERR UHFTTHAEEEZSFRAR

0. FEEEARERASEZEAREERANE
BEY - MEEBEMETENRE  BR
EEEEEIEARNO AT ERRER
BlrAR R

3. EFXebiRkIRRERNEEHEBRERERA
BERZERERTRREE - EHNFEANRE
BHRENERELCLZBEZHEBER -

RiERERCERABEZE BRTAXBENL 2
HERREAEE 2R RETAEEHEBIES -

iR B BE

ARBERBEEEARTRZ TGRS —HK
ERE EFHEINARAREIR RO HBE
FTARARBRR(ERRD B HERRARES - K
RADRAERNIEKBLE - RIBEARFABEREAN
Al -FAEERERETIERE EFTGARERK
DERETERR-

EXeEZEERRER  TREZEEAEENY
BEE:RERRR ARDREFEES  ZHR
MAEREE  EERBLER  BAFRRIMBG
2 RKREEREA BRROMA - EDRN RS
MRS REEFARERAEBNEMEBRESE -




62 HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

Corporate Governance Report
tEEARE

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With these
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Wai Leung has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since January 2017. He is a full time employee of the Company and
has adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Li reports to the Chairman of the
Board and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, Mr. Li has confirmed
that he has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE
Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from
their risk exposure arising from the business of the Group and, as at
the date of this report, the Directors and officers of the Company are
indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance against
any liability incurred by them in discharge of their duties while holding
office as the Directors and officers of the Company. The Directors and
officers of the Company shall not be indemnified where there is any
fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the Companies
Act (as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Companies Act”), registered shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “EGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written
request to convene an EGM at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong (the “Principal Office”), which is presently situated at Unit
2101D, 21/F, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
objects of the EGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the EGM Requisitionists.
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The Share Registrars will verify the EGM Requisitionists’ particulars in
the EGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the EGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
On the contrary, if the EGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in
order, the EGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and a
EGM will not be convened as requested.

The EGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
an EGM if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the EGM
Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene
an EGM provided that any EGM so convened is held within a further
twenty-one (21) days from the date of the original EGM
Requisitionists’ request. An EGM so convened by the EGM
Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of association or the
Companies Act for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. Shareholders can also
send enquiries and proposals putting forward for shareholders’
consideration at shareholders’ meetings to the Board in writing to the
Principal Office of the Company or directly by raising questions at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders’ enquires

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Abacus Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, or call its
customer service hotline at (852) 2980 1333. Shareholders may also
make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

v
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy
with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate with
the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are issued in printed form and are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at www.hengan.com;

(if) periodic announcements are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i) corporate information
website;

is made available on the Company’s

(iv)  annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management; and

(vy  the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment
and related matters.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy and was
satisfied with the said policy and considered the overall
communication with shareholders was effective with the variety of
communication channels provided above. The Company continues to
promote
existing shareholders and potential investors.

investor relations and enhance communication with the

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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http://www.hengan.com

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
An up-to-date consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website.

In order to bring the Memorandum and Articles of Association in line
with the latest regulatory requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to
the expanded paperless listing regime and the mandatory electronic
dissemination of corporate communications by listed issuers and the
relevant amendments made to Listing Rules which took effect from 31
2023 and to incorporate certain consequential and
housekeeping amendments, a special resolution will be proposed at
the AGM to approve the proposed amendments and to adopt the New
Memorandum and Articles of Association in substitution for and to the
exclusion of the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association. The
proposed amendments to the existing Memorandum and Articles of
Association and the adoption of the New Memorandum and Articles of
Association are subject to the Shareholders’ approval by way of
special resolution at the AGM and will become effective upon approval
by the Shareholders.

December

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to high standards of integrity,
openness, accountability and good corporate governance. In
compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board has
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy. It provides employees and the
relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers,
suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting channels
on reporting any existing or potential misconduct, malpractice or
irregularities in any matters related to the Group directly addressed to
the designated person.

ethics,

An email account (jubao@hengan.com) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in
the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and its
identity will be kept confidential and anonymous.

The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board has adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy. It
outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help
the Group defend against corrupt practices and to
reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management or through an appropriate reporting

report any

channel. The Group would not tolerate all forms of fraud and
corruption among all employees and those acting in an agency or
fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing

with third parties.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Fraud and
Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud
and corruption.

@
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting herewith their report EZEfRARIE 2 &
together with the audited accounts of the Group for the year ended EZEEEHKeE
31 December 2023.

EZE-_=F+-"A=+—8I1tHF
EERASELEZ KR -

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL FTEEBRRUWEE S ZEK
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The ARABZTIEXKARELER -MBATZETEE
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing, distribution AEFREE  HHENMEEBEAAGERA M -

and sale of personal hygiene products, mainly in the PRC.

(1) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating (1) X% 8D 2 AEBRA R D BEE H W0
profit by business segments is as follows: ™~

2023 2022

—®¥=-= T
Contribution Contribution
to operating to operating
Revenue profit Revenue profit
[N SER R WA DEBEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARBFT

Personal hygiene products &8 A B4 A @
— Sanitary napkin products - HEMER 6,178,438 2,317,022 6,156,060 2,507,569
- Disposable diaper - —RIEHIR
products V5 E S 1,254,070 194,302 1,202,347 135,815
- Tissue paper products - |MER 13,748,172 243,739 12,248,011 136,505
Others H 2,587,256 129,601 3,009,460 88,591

23,767,936 2,884,664 22,615,878 2,868,480

&
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The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue is shown as  (2)

BB D2 AEBPADHT

follows:
2023 2022
—Eg-= —F-=
Percentage Percentage
of total of total
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
[N L DN WA 5 2N
RMB'000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
ARETT Bk ARBFT EF:d
PRC A

Fujian and Jiangxi i=pan 8,621,905 8,187,637 36.2
North-western [ifsls 887,375 827,929 3.7
South-western (= 1,943,382 1,745,045 7.7

Guangdong, Guangxi, Hunan W
and Hubei 3,378,391 3,060,991 13.5
North-eastern 514 749,876 713,695 3.2
Northern #p 1,242,855 1,104,590 4.9
Shandong and Henan B#® 1,644,809 1,601,428 7.1
Eastern ER 2,958,354 2,901,901 12.8
Hong Kong and Macau BB KR 1,821,911 1,960,976 8.7
Overseas SEN 519,078 511,686 2.2
23,767,936 22,615,878 100

E 3 JE)
BRERRGOIMKRAPRE 2 AR EES 2 o
D BREEEB2FEERN AEEHENTE
R TRBAERZA® E-E_ZFHRFE
TRERELEIHAEEEZENEREMHNFR R
AEBHEKBEARERNER  SRANFHROT
FREEIRTRAHBESEIMEARA ORI
HERERRE]-

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair
review of the business, a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
2023, and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Chief Executive Officer’'s Report” of this annual report, and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company.

@



RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 101.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to the Articles of
Associations of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations,
the Board will also take into account the financial results; cash flow
situation; balance of distributable reserves; business conditions and
strategies; statutory fund reserve requirements; capital requirements
and expenditure plans; future operations and earnings;
Shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

interests of

The Directors declared an interim dividend of RMBO0.70
RMBO0.70) per ordinary share, totaling RMB813,485,000
RMB813,485,000), which was paid on 12 October 2023.

(2022:
(2022:

The Directors recommend the payment of/paid a final dividend of
RMBO0.70 (2022: RMBO0.70) per ordinary share, totalling
RMB813,485,000 (2022: RMB813,485,000). Such dividend is to be
approved by Shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting to be held on 17 May 2024.

Dividends payable to Shareholders will be paid in HK$. The exchange
rate adopted by the Company for its payable is the middle rate of HK$
to RMB announced by the People’s Bank of China for the business
day preceding the date of dividend declaration. The final dividend of
RMBO.70 per share equivalent to HK$0.771588 per share using the
exchange rate of HK$ to RMB on 20 March 2024, which is 0.90722.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a)

(b)

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM

The AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 17 May 2024. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
10 May 2024 to Friday, 17 May 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure
that all the share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch share
registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
9 May 2024.

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The Proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval of
shareholders at the AGM. For determining the entitiement to the
Proposed Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Thursday, 23 May 2024 to Friday, 24 May 2024, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to
the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of
the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Tricor Abacus Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 22 May 2024.

EENERODBFETFR

(a)

(b)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operation, business and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. A
variety of financial risk factors affects the Group’s activities are set out
in Note 3 to the accounts.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 37 to the
accounts in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 105.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB11,141,000 (2022: RMB66,601,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 13 to the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 25 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately RMB9,563,552,000 (2022:
RMB8,847,043,000). Under section 34 of the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), and no
distribution may be paid to the Shareholders out of the Company’s
share premium unless the Company shall be able to pay its debt as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last five
financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities as at the
end of the last five financial years is set out on pages 6 and 7
respectively.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE HESBERAXAQARAZLETHES
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries ®FR > ARAFRREXTFAHBARMEREE  Hexk
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities — B& B 2 A 7 72 B 32 B 69 (0] = 1 7% 55

on the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS =t

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: AEEARBEARSEHLEZESTNOT
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
BITES BAUFBITES

Mr. Sze Man Bok Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong

Bt S 5 A BRB LT

Mr. Hui Lin Chit Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark

FFERE A o] BB & &

Mr. Hui Ching Lau Mr. Chen Chuang

FFIB M o A bR ) 5 A4

Mr. Xu Da Zuo Mr. Theil Paul Marin

FF KRR % REFBEE

Mr. Sze Wong Kim Mr. Chan Henry (retired on 22 May 2023)

I8 Bl % A PREGBELEENR-ZE_=ZFAA=T_HREME)
Mr. Hui Ching Chi

BB kA

Mr. Li Wai Leung

FEREE

Mr. Xu Wenmo (appointed on 24 August 2023)
HXBEE(RZEZ=FNAZTHAEZF)
Mr. Hung Ching Shan (retired on 22 May 2023)
HEFWLEE(RZT=FAA=-T=HRE)
Mr. Xu Shui Shen (retlred on 22 May 2023)
KRR E(RZZEZ=FAA=-TZHRE)
Mr. Xu Chun Man (retired on 22 May 2023)
HEMEERZZEZ=FAA=-TZHRE)

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association — 1RIEA R A 2 EIZ4H B FO0E R F116IE M EE
of the Company and the Corporate Government Code, Mr. Hui Ching JAST Al FF/ER &4 - FF AR A - MBS 54
Lau, Mr. Xu Da Zuo, Mr. Sze Wong Kim, Mr. Xu Wenmo and Ms. Ada X EERERBT L TEHER  BREEETT
Ying Kay Wong will retire office at the forthcoming annual general HREEAFAS ((MREFAE]) LRI 23F
meeting (the “AGM”), and being eligible, offer themselves for re- HAERBEBEBRET FEHERRERE LSRE

yee

election. They will offer himself for re-election at the AGM. W= ©



Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong has served on the Board for more than nine
years. She has given confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the Nomination Committee of
the Company determined that Ms. Wong meets the criteria of
independence expected of an independent non-executive Director
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and have the character, integrity,
independence and experience required to fulfil and discharge the role
and duties of an independent non-executive Director in the event that
she is elected at the AGM. Hence, the Board considers that the long
service of Ms. Wong would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment in his service with the Company, and proposes Ms. Wong
for re-election as an independent non-executive Director at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years and continuing thereafter on
an annual basis until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party.

The letters of appointment of Independent Non-Executive Director with
Mr. Ho Kwan Ching Mark will expire on 31 December 2024. Ms. Ying
Kay Ada Wong, Mr. Chen Chuang and Mr. Theil Paul Marin are
appointed with no specific term. Termination could be made by
serving not less than three months’ notice in writing by either party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL AND EMOLUMENT DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 35 to 44.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Emoluments

The Directors’ and senior management remuneration is recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ emoluments are set out on Note 39. The emoluments
payable to seven senior management (2022: eight senior management)
during the year within the following bands:

EZERSREBABZHM
E=EhaREBAEHehFMEZE SRS IR
BARAESFELEEFTHE AEIRRE UK
AEBEREMAAELEE

EFRUFBEINM A c RFEXXN TSR
EEBEAB(CZE_—F: \USREBAE) K RM
ETIHEABEER :

Number of individuals

A8
2022
Emolument bands = B & [
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMBO to 7B k0 — 1,000,000 (F8 & R
RMB901,100) AR E AR901,1007T) 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to 75 #1,000,001 — 7 #1,500,000
RMB901,101 to RMB1,351,650) (FBE R AR®01,101TE
AR #1,351,6507T) 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to # 1,500,001 — 8 12,000,000
RMB1,351,651 to RMB1,802,200) (HER AR®1,851,6561TE
AR #1,802,2007T) 0
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to 75 12,000,001 — 7 #2,500,000
RMB1,802,201 to RMB2,252,750) (18 & N AR 1,802,201 TE
AR #2,252,7507T) 1
EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY Eﬁ&iﬁ@ﬂﬂl%
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 23,000 WR-_ZE-_=F+-_AF=+—H AEBHEY
employees (2022: 23,000 employees). The Group implements 23, OOO% BE(ZZT =4 :23000&EE) - A%

remuneration policy, bonus, share options scheme and share award
scheme to ensure that pay scales of its employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the Group’s
remuneration.

The Group also committed to continuing education and development
of its employees, and the Group provides various education and
training programs both
employees in improving their skills and developing their potential.

internally and externally to cultivate its

Remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group is
reviewed by the Company’s remuneration committee against the
Company’s goals and objectives.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARE IN
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of each director in the shares,
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
and disclosed in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange were as

BHE-Z-_=F+-A=+—8 ARQRAREZFH
MEIE GO (TEHGEH]) E352(8ME E 2 E i fit
S Esat AR R REABEEAE(RELFK
BIEXVE 2 E &) 28D~ K E - HEKRHD REFH
2R WIRBE R ZES EWARB(T EMHR
AlDMER 2 RMEEmT -

follows:
Number of

unlisted
shares o ()

Capacity/Nature of Interest
Number of shares

¥ LW ziEEA
B REEINROEAE Wz a0
Personal Personal Approximate
interests/ Family interests/ percentage of
Name of Directors Beneficiary Interest Beneficiary Total shareholding
8BNS BA#EE W
EEna FEA RigHER FmA % {5 48 5t B EHRY
Mr. Sze Man Bok Mete 2) 239,299,999 - 100,000 239,399,999 20.60%
5 1 4 £ i)
Mr. Hui Lin Chit Wete @) 268,892,733 - 300,000 269,192,733 23.16%
B 3 R o A (EO)
Mr. Hui Ching Lau 1,600,000 - 9,000,000 10,600,000 0.91%
B LA
Mr. Xu Da Zuo Mete @) 17,710,000 - 300,000 18,010,000 1.55%
KRR S e (i)
Mr. Sze Wong Kim 851,700 - 100,000 951,700 0.08%
B4 Bl % A
Mr. Hui Ching Chi 40,000 - 400,000 440,000 0.04%
FFB M A&
Mr. Xu Wenmo et ) 7,917,000 - 200,000 8,117,000 0.70%
S B S A (i)
Mr. Li Wai Leung = - 300,000 300,000 0.03%

FREREE
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Notes:

Unlisted shares represent share options granted to Directors pursuant to
share option scheme of the Company, and details of which are set out
on pages 77 to 83.

Out of the 239,299,999 shares, Tin Lee Investments Limited (“Tin Lee”)
held 238,724,399 ordinary shares while Mr. Sze had personal interests in
575,600 ordinary shares in the Company. Tin Lee is a company
in the British Virgin
subsidiary of Tin Wing Holdings Limited (“Tin Wing”).

incorporated Islands and is a wholly owned
Tin Wing is a
company incorporated in the Bahamas and owned by Hang Seng Bank
(Trustee) Limited as nominee and being the trustee of the Sze’s Family
Trust. Mr. Sze Man Bok is the settlor and beneficiary of the Sze’s Family
Trust. He is therefore deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be interested

in the interests of the Sze’s Family Trust in the Company.

An Ping Holdings Limited held 268,892,733 shares in the Company. It is
a company incorporated in the Bahamas and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of An Ping Investments Limited (“An Ping Investments”). An
Ping Investments is a company incorporated in the Bahamas and owned
by TMF (Cayman) Ltd as nominee and being the trustee of the Hui
Family Trust. Mr. Hui Lin Chit is the settlor and beneficiary of the Hui
Family Trust. He is therefore deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be

interested in the interests of the Hui Family Trust in the Company.

Skyful Holdings Limited held 17,710,000 shares in the Company. It is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Charter Towers Limited (“Charter Towers”). Charter Towers
is a company incorporated in the Bahamas and owned by Credit Suisse
as nominee and being the trustee of the Xu Family Trust. Mr. Xu Da Zuo
is the settlor and beneficiary of the Xu Family Trust. He is therefore
deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be interested in the interests of the
Xu Family Trust in the Company.

Out of the 7,917,000 shares, Fountain Luck Holdings Limited (“Fountain
Luck”) holds 7,280,000 shares of the Company while Mr. Xu had
personal interests in 637,000 shares in the Company. Fountain Luck is

a company incorporated in the Bahamas and is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Metro Global Investments Limited (“Metro Global”). Metro
Global is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned
by Credit Suisse Trust Limited as nominee and being the trustee of The
Fountain Luck Trust (a discretionary trust). Mr. Xu Wenmo is the settlor
and beneficiary of The Fountain Luck Trust. He is therefore deemed
under Part XV of the SFO to be interested in the interests of The

Fountain Luck Trust in the Company.
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239,299,009 7 B - KFAKZEBR QAKX
FMDEBEEEANBAZEDAFEARARA
238,724,3990% &575,6008% L @R 5 o K F| A — K
REBERZSKILH AT WATN Wing Holdings
Limited ([ Tin Wing ) 2 2 & KM B A 8] » Tin Wing A
—RREBREBERIOAR THERREELTT
ANEBERITEAXERAFUEEREATOHES -
EXEEERERREERAZHMERET AN &
A IRBEBHFEOIEXVIBZ T E  BELBE RE
BEHERREELOHER -

2R AR A RFEE AR E)268,892, 733 K 7 ©
HEA—RREBRERINAD YARFREAR
AR TFRED2ERBZWNBAR - ZTFIRE
A-RREBREXRYNAR THFKRKEE?
(The Hui Family Trust)¥ 5L ATMF (Cayman) LtdJA{E
AREBASHEE TERLERTERRKETD
MERETAMIZZA  BESZHEEXVIEZE
£ FALESARETRRGETLHER -

REERBR AR FAEARF7,710,0000% & 5 °
EA—RREBEXZSMK KRG I ACharter
Towers Limited ([ Charter Towers |) 2 2 &M B A
@ o Charter Towers A — KR EREKZH AR - I
M7 K K & 15 5E(The Xu Family Trust)52 5E A Credit
Suisse AEFERBAF DA - T REXE AT
REEAZHERTANMZHEA  REZEHEHSE
XVEz E%  BRELERAEETRREET0OE

o

B

#A7,917,0000% 5 & # - Fountain Luck Holdings
Limited ([ Fountain Luck J) 5 & ZX 22 §7,280,0000%
B&f5 + & 9% 4 Al HE B 7K X 71637,0000% AR 19 &9 18 A
# 7 ° Fountain Luck2 —RA BB HEEMMA I A
A ' &Metro Global Investments Limited ([ Metro
Global |) ®) 2 & F22 & © Metro GlobalZ — %K i %
B REEFMA A AR - mFountain Luck 157
=% A Credit Suisse Trust Limited MAE:ERE A S
MH)ZFEANEEER © FF X B £ A Fountain Luck{s 5%
CHEETANMZZA Bt REZFHFRBAEK
BIEEXVED + 1% #4184 # B Fountain Luck{g sE R AR
AR -
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Interests in shares and share options were long position.

The percentage expressed are based on the total number of issued Shares
1,162,120,917 as at 31 December 2023.

Apart from the above, at no time during the period was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to hold any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(1)

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 26 May
2011 (the “2011 Share Option Scheme”) had expired on 26 May
2021. No further share options shall be offered or granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme but in all other respects the
provisions of the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect, and all share options granted prior to such
expiration and not exercised nor forfeited/lapsed at the date of
termination shall remain valid. Please refer to 2020 annual report
of the Company for the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme. The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 17 May 2021 which is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

U]

(i)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to encourage participants
to contribute to our Group through giving them certain
equity interest of our Company and to enhance the value
of our Company and our Shares, for the ultimate benefit of
our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

Eligible Persons

Participants of the Scheme comprise of directors (including
executive Director(s), non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) any full-time or part-
time employees of the Group. as determined by the Board
from time to time. The Directors may, at their discretion,
invite participants to participate in the Scheme. In
determining the basis of eligibility of each participant, the
Board would take into account such factors as the Board
may at its discretion consider appropriate.
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(iii)

(iv)

HEE

Maximum Number of Shares Available for Issue
The maximum number of shares available for issue after
considering the options already granted under the Scheme
as at the date of the annual report are 71,480,742,
representing 6.15% of total issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report, which are not more
than 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
117,753,742 shares) as at the date of the approval of the
Scheme.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the Options granted to each Participant
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of our Company in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of our Shares in issue. Where further
Options are granted to a Participant, and all such shares
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
Participant’s granted and to-be granted Options (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding Options) represent in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant,
such Offer must be separately approved by Shareholders
in general meeting with such Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. Our Company must
send a circular to our Shareholders containing the identity
of the Participant in question, the number and terms of the
Options to be granted (and Options previously granted to
such Participant), information required under the Listing
Rules.

Where any proposed grant of Options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of
our Company, or any of their respective associates, would
result in our Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to
such person in the 12 month period up to and including
the date of such grant:

(@  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of our Shares
then in issue; and

(b)  having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of our Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the Date of
Grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

(iii)

(iv)

B EEB LR
MBREEH ZBRE - RIBZTE 3%
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

such further grant of Options shall be subject to prior
approval by resolution of our Shareholders (voting by way
of poll). Grantee, his associates and all core connected
persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution, but they may vote against the
resolution at such general meeting of our Shareholders
(provided that they have indicated such preference in their
letters to the Shareholders.

Time on Exercise of Options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and the offer of the grant of an option at
any time commencing on the date of grant and expiring on
such date as determined by the Board provided that the
option may not be exercised after the expiration of 10
years from the date of grant.

Acceptance of Offer

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted not
less than 30 business days after the offer date and must
be accompanied by payment of HK$1.00.

Subscription Prices

The Subscription Price shall be determined by our Board
in its absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least
the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of each of our Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant which must be a
Business Day;

(b)  the average closing price of each of our Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business Days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

()  the nominal value of each of our Shares.

Remaining Life of the Scheme
The Scheme will remain in force before 17 May 2031.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(2)  Details of movements in the share options as at 31 December (2) #HE-T_-_=%+_-F=+—08  BE&:t
2023 which have been granted under the Scheme are as BEREMWERENSBFBEOT
follows:

Number of share options

BREYE
Cancelled
Balance Granted  Exercised Reclassified  or lapsed Balance Exercise
as at during during during  during the as at price per
Eligible person 01/01/2023  the period the period the period period 31/12/2023 share  Date of grant  Exercisable period
R-FZ=Z% R-BZ=#&
-A-H RER n#k +=A=+-8
BEBAL ZES REAERE REATE EFSE BE/XY ZER SBRITHEE RHEH T8
HKS  (DD/MM/YYYY)  (DD/MMAYYYY)
#T (B/R/%) (B/R/%)
Directors
Bz
Mr. Sze Man Bok 30,000 - - - - 30,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
X 5% & 30,000 - - - - 30,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
40,000 - - - - 40,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hui Lin Chit 90,000 - - - - 90,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
FTERAE 90,000 - - - - 90,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
120,000 - - - - 120,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hui Ching Lau 2,700,000 - - - - 2,700,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
TEREAE 2,700,000 - - - - 2,700,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
3,600,000 - - - - 3,600,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Xu Da Zuo 90,000 - - - - 90,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
FAEEE 90,000 - - - - 90,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
120,000 - - - - 120,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Sze Wong Kim 30,000 - - - - 30,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
HEERIEE 30,000 - - - - 30,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
40,000 - - - - 40,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hui Ching Chi 120,000 - - - - 120,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
EBEE 120,000 - - - - 120,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
160,000 - - - - 160,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Li Wai Leung 90,000 - - - - 90,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
FRBEE 90,000 - - - - 90,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
120,000 - - - - 120,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Xu Wenmo Mo @) - - - 60,000 - 60,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
B G 2 0) - - - 60,000 - 60,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
- - - 80,000 - 80,000 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hung Ching Shan e ¢ 30,000 - - (30,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
B I g e 30,000 - - (30,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
40,000 - - (40,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Xu Shui Shen e @ 150,000 - - (150,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
KR g maa) 150,000 - - (150,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
200,000 - - (200,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Xu Chun Man e @ 30,000 - - (30,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
TER L EE) 30,000 - - (30,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
40,000 - - (40,000) - - 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Participants 2,666,500 - - - - 2,666,500 7920 05/10/2015 05/10/2018-05/10/2025
28E 1,333,250 - - - - 1,333,250 7920 05/10/2015 05/10/2019-05/10/2025
1,333,250 - - - - 1,333,250 7920 05/10/2015 05/10/2020-05/10/2025
10,064,100 - - 150,000 - 10,214,100 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
10,064,100 - - 150,000 - 10,214,100 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
13,418,800 - - 200,000 - 13,618,800 4148 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
457,800 - - - - 457,800 4030 21/12/2022 21/12/2023-20/12/2024
457,800 = = - = 457,800 4030 21/12/2022 21/12/2024-20/12/2025
610,400 - - - - 610,400 4030 21/12/2022 21/12/2025-20/12/2026
51,606,000 - - - - 51,606,000

@
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Notes: Bt -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant 1. BRENGBHUERES D BHREITE
until the commencement of exercise period. BB A
2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on 2. ZEEREREBEI ZE—AF+A=H "
which the share options being granted on 2 October 2015, 17 AT ABRZZE=Z=ZF+=A
January 2022 and 20 December 2022 was HK$77.90, HK$39.15 Z+B) A ZBRHBKRTESS R AAET7.90 -
and HK$40.10 respectively. B #39.15 % & #40.10 ©
3. During the period, no options wee cancelled under the Scheme. 3. BN - ZEt 8l TR B B AR RE M sk 88 -
4, Retired on 22 May 2023. 4. RZBEZ=FRA=-F+=ZHRE-
5. Appointed on 24 August 2023. 5. RZBZ=FNAZFTHAEZEF-
6. The table below sets out the additional information in respect of 6. TREYBE2E-_T-_=F+-_A=+—H1t
the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023: FEEBZFENEIINER
Number of options Number of options Number of outstanding options divided
available for grant as at available for grant as at by weighted average number Shares
1 January 2023 31 December 2023 in issue as at 31 December 2023
BE_®-_=%+-A=+-H
EE—_S-=%5—HA—8 BE-_T-_=#+-H=+-—8 RITEBRERERL
TR HNERERE TEBEHNEBRERE © 3% 17 % 4 % i 4 = 1 B B

71,480,742 71,480,742 4.44%
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The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the
fair value of the share options granted. It is an appropriate
model to estimate the fair value of an option that can be
exercised before the expiry of the option period. The
assumptions adopted in the calculation are:

ARBHEAZEAABER  UFHEREBR

R DR - BT

R B (0 s R R

ERATA FTE) A FEN—EERRRN - R
SEEMEANBRRNT

Options Options Options
Options  granted in granted in  granted in
granted in January January December
2015 to 2022 to 2022 to 2022 to
Employees Directors Employees  Employees
R-BF—EF RZE-_ZE RZB-Z-ZF RZ-F-Z
RirEE —ARTFESE —ARTFEE +—ARFE
ZHERHE ZHERHE ZHERE BZRERE
Fair value at grant date — HK$ BEBHMAREE 24.23-25.74 2.70-3.84 2.63-3.84 4.01-4.97
- B
Share price at grant date - HK$ & H HHRZEHK 79.20 38.65 38.65 40.30
- B
Exercise price — HK$ TEE - B 79.20 41.48 41.48 40.30
Risk-free rate (note (a)) ey B X 1.50% 0.68%-1.22% 0.68%-1.22% 3.51%—4.05%
(K1 it # (@)
Volatility (note (b)) T8 HA R 18 & 34.50% 24%—25% 24%—25% 23%—25%
(K17t # (b))
Dividend yield (note (c)) e By s = 2.04% 4.88% 4.88% 5.83%
(K1)
Trigger Price multiple (time) RATITHE R E () 2.51 2.75 2.20 2.20
Expected turnover rate T8 BB B L R 16.70% 1.98% 24.69% 23.90%
Expected life (year) TEET 1T EARR () 10 2-4 2-4 2-4
Notes: Bt
(a) Risk-free rate is determined with reference to the yield of Hong (a) EERBANE2EHBIEEZSELFHKZER
Kong Exchange Fund Notes. REETE ©
(b)  Expected volatility is estimated with reference to the historical share (b) TERIEBERLBANGMNELREETE -
price of the Company.
(©) Dividend yield is estimated by reference to the historical share price () BREKWBZELBARFTMNELREMZNHH

and dividend paid of the Company.

B M HEAT IS 5T -



According to the Binomial Model, the fair value of the options
granted, which had been charged to the profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2023, amounted to
RMB44,996,000 (2022: RMB 66,189,000) and the remaining
unamortised fair value of RMB25,153,000 for options granted in
2023 (2022: RMB67,168,000) will be charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the future years.

It should be noted that the value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions; any change
in variables so adopted may materially affect the fair value
estimate.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 11 September 2023 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted the share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”)
may be awarded to selected employees (including executive
directors) pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme and
trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Trust Deed”). The
Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Share Incentive Committee and the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme (the “Trustee”) in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme and the Trust Deed. The principal terms of the Share
Award Scheme are summarised below:

(i) Purposes of the Share Award Scheme

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to (i)
encourage employees of the Group to, through their
opportunity in ownership of the equity interests in the
Company and sharing of the results of the Group’s
strategic development, contribute to the Group and
increase the value of the Company and its shares, thereby
benefiting the Company and its shareholders as a whole;
and (i) retain talents and attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

HEE

The Participants of the Share Award Scheme

The Share Incentive Committee may, from time to time, at
its absolute discretion select any eligible employee for
participation in the Share Award Scheme as a selected
employee and determine the number of awarded shares to
be awarded to the respective selected employees, the
terms and conditions before the awarded shares may be
vested and other related matters as expressly provided
under the Share Award Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue

The Share Award Scheme involves existing shares of the
Company. The Share Incentive Committee shall determine
the maximum amount of funds to be allocated out of the
Company’s resources for the purchase of the awarded
shares as the Share Incentive Committee deems
appropriate pursuant to the scheme rules.

The Share Incentive Committee shall not make any further
purchase which will result in the aggregate number of
Shares purchased under the Scheme in excess of 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date (i.e. 58,106,045 shares). For the avoidance
of doubt, the aforesaid limit does not include scheme
shares under any other share schemes adopted by the
Company prior to the Adoption Date.

The maximum aggregate number of Shares held by the
Trustee under the Trust at any time under the Scheme
shall not exceed 2% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Awarded Shares that may be
awarded to any Selected Employee under the Scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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(v) Vesting period of awards granted under the Share
Award Scheme
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Award
Scheme and the fulfilment of all vesting conditions to the
vesting of the Awarded Shares on such selected employee
as specified in the Share Award Scheme and the relevant
grant instrument.

Unless otherwise determined by the Share Incentive
Committee, the Trustee shall hold the Awarded Shares
until they are vested with the Selected Employees in
accordance with the Scheme Rules.

(vi) Amount payable on acceptance of the awarded
Shares
The awarded shares are granted to any selected employee
at no consideration and in such number and on and
subject to such terms and conditions as the Share
Incentive Committee may in its absolute discretion
determine.

(vii) Basis of determining the purchase price of the

Shares to be awarded

When the Share Incentive Committee instructs the Trustee
to purchase Shares in the secondary market, it shall
specify the maximum amount of funds to be used and the
range of prices at which such Shares are to be
purchased. The Trustee may not incur more than the
maximum amount of funds specified by the Board.

(viii) Remaining life of the scheme
The Scheme shall be effective from the Adoption Date and
shall continue in full force and effect until the aggregate
number of Shares purchased under the Scheme reaches
the Scheme Limit or the Scheme is terminated by a
resolution of the Board.

If the Scheme Limit is reached or the Scheme is
terminated, the Trustee shall not purchase any Shares
pursuant to the Scheme Rules, but the Scheme Rules shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects for
existing Scheme Shares.

From 12 September 2023 to 19 January 2024, the Trustee
purchased 17,800,000 shares of the Company. As at the date of
the annual report, the Trustee held a total of 17,800,000 shares
of the Company. No Shares have been awarded under the Share
Award Scheme since its adoption.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERREXRRARG - HEARGD 2 #
THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY mRKRE

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under section 336  RIZFE FH &M EXVERE3BBEMBEEZL T EZREE
of part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2023, the wmft BrRR_TE_=ZF+-_A=+—H KBLX
Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ FrIRETE 2 EEIN AARWEE T I EREFA
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. ARBCEITRAED 2R FEF 2B It
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of SHEFZTABERALBEBEZEEEFIA -

the Directors.

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
Substantial shareholders Note Capacity beneficially held shareholding
BHEZR HmE N E
BREEHE Brit Bt HEEE EEEE )
Tin Lee Investments Limited (1) Beneficial owner 238,724,399 (L) 20.54%
KA ERR A EmfEA A
Tin Wing Holdings Limited (1) Interests of controlled corporation 238,724,399 (L) 20.54%
FFr 1% 1l 6 )% [ B # 2
An Ping Holdings Limited 2) Beneficial owner 268,892,733 (L) 23.14%
Z P ERERAF EmfEA A
An Ping Investments Limited 2) Interests of controlled corporation 268,892,733 (L) 23.14%
ZFPREBRRAT FFr 1% 1l 6 )% [ B # 21
TMF (Cayman) Ltd (3)  Trustee 268,892,733 (L) 23.14%
ZIEA
Hang Seng Bank (Trustee) Limited 4) Trustee 238,724,399 (L) 20.54%
BARITELARLDA ZIEA
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment Manager 58,693,492 (L) 5.05%
18 & 108

L denotes long position L) iR



Notes:

(1) Tin Lee Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tin Wing Holdings Limited.
Tin Wing Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the Bahamas
and owned by Hang Seng Bank (Trustee) Limited as nominee and being
the trustee of the Sze’s Family Trust.

2) An Ping Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Bahamas, is a
wholly owned subsidiary of An Ping Investments Limited. An Ping
Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the Bahamas and
owned by TMF (Cayman) Ltd as nominee and being the trustee of the
Hui Family Trust.

3) TMF (Cayman) Ltd is the trustee of the Hui Family Trust and is deemed
to be interested in the shares held by the trust.

4) Hang Seng Bank (Trustee) Limited is the Trustee of the Sze’s Family Trust
and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the trust.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year, was the Company or any of its associated corporations a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted any right to
subscribe for any shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of
its associated corporations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the substantial
shareholders, as at 31 December 2023, no other person is individually
or collectively entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or
more of the voting power at the general meetings of the Company
and are able, as a practicable manner, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee including, but not limited to, the followings: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of the
external auditor; (i) reviewing the financial statements of the Group and
monitoring the integrity of such financial statements; and (iii)
overseeing the financial reporting system and
procedures. The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong (Chairlady of the Audit Committee), Mr. Theil
Paul Marin, Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark and Mr. Chen Chuang.

internal control

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and
adequate disclosures have been made.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no transactions which need to be
disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transaction”, no transactions, arrangement or
contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party in which a Shareholder had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BT EEEEE
AABERBELTRBEINGREEERTASE
DI EREZR S WAV EEBEHE - FX
ZEENITEREBRETRIUATEE  ()5LHE
EMERIIBEFMMEESREEE  N1BHA
SEMNMBRRLEEZSVHRROTEM (i)
EBEMBEHRERENARERERF -BEXLZEEH
MEKREAK IERBLLT(BEREZEEIR)
REFEELE WEBEERRBEEE -

AEEAFEREREAVBRRECKEERZER
B RARFXENRATAERAGER
MR EERRE  YEEHRASIRKE -

b 1

RERN BEXZARBLETRIBUAZEER

EEREAXRZ - RIHENHESR

BIFERERS | —BMREEN  ARAHEA
] P /B8 2 B BE B BT SL IR AN 4R 2 4 SRS S T (AT B
FNRERMEFEREXHERFERAEENEX
R REHEL -

ERBRRREXGHNNES

AR B HEAETE R R BT LN AN FE R
HFERNEFMEROAERAMBRREEKLFEREE
AEGZWERAHL -



INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the Independent Non-executive Directors and
is satisfied of their independence.

executive Directors an annual confirmation of his

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
(formerly known as Appendix 10) the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange. The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors
regarding any noncompliance with the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023, and they all confirmed that they had fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code,
except that Mr. Hui Ching Lau was in breach of Rules A.3 and B.8 of
the Model Code on 22 March 2023 having inadvertently purchased
100,000 shares of the Company immediately after publication of the
annual results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2022,
which falls on the blackout period for Directors’ dealings which lasts
up to and including the day of the publication of the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2022 (i.e. including
22 March 2023).

To avoid recurrence of similar incidents in the future, the Company has
arranged a training session for all Directors. Going forward, the
Company will
restrictions throughout any future blackout periods.

continually reminding all Directors of the dealing

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

The Board believes during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Directors did not have interests in any businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Group’s customers primarily comprise of distributors, direct key
accounts and other retailers and the Group mainly sell its products to
a broad network of distributors. The Group has maintained well-
established relationships with leverages the
strength of their distribution channels to efficiently distribute products
and reach consumers in different regions of China.

its distributors and

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the financial year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group selects its suppliers based on price, product quality, safety
and market reputation and typically collaborate with reliable and
reputable suppliers of raw materials. The Group has had stable
relationships with many of its suppliers of raw materials, and the
Group generally has various sources of supply for each type of raw
material to reduce the reliance on a single supplier and to make
reference to prevailing market prices for the same raw material.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favor, or in which he is acquitted. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against Directors of the Group.

During the vyear, the Group sold less than 30% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers.

The percentages of purchases of goods and services for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

12.9%
33.1%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

interest
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained enough
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
Directors.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company implementing good corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the CG
report of this report.

is committed to

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders unless otherwise required by the Stock
Exchange.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the share option scheme as disclosed in this report, no
equity-linked agreement was entered during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company’s environmental, and governance
practices are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report and Climate-Related Disclosures Report of the Company.

social

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company did not have any unutilised proceeds from fund raising
activities brought forward from previous financial years and did not
have any fund raising activity during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In March 2024, the Group completed the issuance of the first tranche
of super short-term commercial papers on the National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors, with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB2,500,000,000, with a coupon rate 2.1% per annum.
The super short-term commercial papers will mature in 180 days from
the respective issue date.

In March 2024, the Group completed the issuance of the second
tranche of super short-term commercial papers on the National
Market Institutional Investors,
aggregate principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000 with a coupon rate
2.1% per annum. The super Short-Term commercial papers will
mature in 182 days from the respective issue date.

Association of Financial with an

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company. There is no change of independent auditor of the Company
during the past three years.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group was not aware of material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Sze Man Bok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of Hengan International Group Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hengan International Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 101 to 224, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to Revenue

recognition — sales of goods.

Key Audit Matter
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BWIZYE®SE

BEETEEHE)
BFERT R AR OMRES FEARAER

EmiHE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BBt IR EARENFE

Revenue recognition - sales of goods

WA - EREHE

Refer to notes 2.2.6 (Summary of material accounting
policies) and & (Revenue and segment information) to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
BRHEEEEHUBHRENH226( EZGFHEHE)
K& (WA KD EER) -

Revenue from sales of goods amounted to RMB23,768
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Revenue is
recognised net of estimated volume discount and other
customer incentives when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring the control of
promised good or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for that good or service.

2023F EEANBAN R ARK237.68ET - EEEE B
ERTEPO AR M RBHESIENBETENE TR
HRWE EeHERRMEEERRIBZEE MR
HmARESZKRE - IS IR HE R E i
R o

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of
revenue transactions generated from sales of numerous
kinds of products to a large number of customers in many
different locations.
HMPEIZFERIERANEEHEEEmmBEE
HELZHREMEZH -

BE

We understood, evaluated and validated, on a sample
basis, management’s key controls in respect of the
Group’s activities in relation to contract with customers
including identification of key contract terms and obligation
for goods delivery, acceptance, volume discount and
customer incentives; recording sales transactions from
customer orders’ approval, goods delivery, sales recording,
obtaining customer’s goods receipt notes, cash receipts,
through to subsequent settlements of trade receivables. In
addition, we tested the general IT control environment of
the Group’s systems and the specific automated controls
associated with recording to assess the
completeness and accuracy of the revenue entries being
recorded in the general ledger accounting system.

BT BB AIRT L E B T B AR B 8 S W B SR A A AR IR
- 0 AR R AR BT R B A BB A0 B AR E AT
ACOARRBEEERBERI LGN ERETHES DK
FoBMRNER FW HERMNAEAMEE R
RIEHLE BWER  WALE  REEENEMERE
WU HEE RRERBERRA B - S5 AR &
B S SR — RIS A AR ER B BT AR E R
HEBEXRNBA RN TE M EERE -

revenue

We inspected agreements with major customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of the sales
transactions including the terms of delivery, applicable
rebate and discount arrangements and any sales return
arrangements to assess if the Group’s revenue recognition
criteria were in accordance with the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
BMMEREFEETEH - AT REIEEEHEN G-
BFEE W RR - E  AY 8H S R N Ko Bt 8K D {5 FR % AE o 4
ERELH  UTHEBRRABRREERFSRITE 2R
BER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

HREGTSEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEEstER

BB AR EARETEE

We conducted testing of revenue recorded covering
different locations and customers by examining the relevant
supporting documents including customer orders, goods
delivery notes and customer’s receipt notes. In addition,
we confirmed selected trade receivables balances as at the
balance sheet date. The items tested were selected on a
sample basis by considering the amount, nature and
characteristics of the customers.

PR E TR M R AR R A WA TSR ST FR I S B AR
BB EREESENEENE AR BMEYEES
BXRABIREBURRARBETRE - RFRBESE 1T
R0 B R A ORI BT R RI B AR

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place
shortly before and after the balance sheet date to assess
whether revenue was recognised in the correct reporting
periods.

AN HMEEEEEERERBANREANHERSE
TR ABRBHEBRA ST CHE EMA®E M -

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s
revenue from sales of goods being tested were recognised
in a manner consistent with the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policy.

RIE it T4 - B AP AR 50 0 W A e 7R B2 8 55 (B B I A\ e
REABE -2 -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is
financial reporting process.

responsible for overseeing the Group’s
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction,
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

supervision and

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2024

@

?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%%‘l‘éﬁﬁ!ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬂ}%mﬁﬁ

HBEZZBSBEANETET  RMEEHLER
HABMAENMBRRANEARAREE  AMBKH
REAFR HMAERBARE TR ELEE
BRIBERERTIAFAFARBEESLEE  HE®R
FANBEAT WREBEHAERMBES T BERE
FRERMEERRBEBELNRARMER - HFDR
ENEERETBEBEZER -

HARBYZBMBENEFTHEARARBRN
T

BERBKEETMERR
HEDEED
B —FT-WFE=ZA=-F+—H



BLEABREEARA A
ZE=FF®

v

101

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

B OF F 8 &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=-F+-_HA=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HILEE

2023 2022
—®'-= —E-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b & ARETT AREETF T
Revenue PN 5 23,767,936 22,615,878
Cost of goods sold $HE KA 7 (15,757,248) (14,926,379)
Gross profit EH 8,010,688 7,689,499
Selling and distribution costs B R SRR 7 (3,552,898) (3,369,466)
Administrative expenses THEHR 7 (1,515,989) (1,5619,347)
Net impairment losses on financial assets £ @t & Z B (EE# - F58 7 (123,317) (19,231)
Other income and other gains — net E AW AFIFE - 558 6 1,159,447 87,699
Operating profit FEE R 3,977,931 2,869,154
Finance income B W s 8 273,351 445,865
Finance costs WEER 8 (646,577) (468,159)
Finance costs — net MBH - F8 (373,226) (22,294)
Share of net gains/(losses) of investments D EIZEZEAR Z
accounted for using the equity method wEWZ(EE) 699 (13,574)
Profit before income tax B& Fit 1% i i 1 H 3,605,404 2,833,286
Income tax expense R E A 9 (798,000) (883,986)
Profit for the year EERNE 2,807,404 1,949,300
Profit attributable to: FE 15 F11 57 :
Shareholders of the Company NAEIEETFE A 2,800,533 1,925,249
Non-controlling interests FE 45 ) 1t 2 6,871 24,051
2,807,404 1,949,300
Earnings per share for profit AATEBFEAAELZ
attributable to shareholders 5 k=
of the Company
- Basic - BRERKE RMB2.415 RMB1.657
10 AR #2.4155T AR #1.6577C
- Diluted - BREE K RMB2.415 RMB1.657
10 AR#¥2.415T AR 16577

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements. 73 e

&
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EHESWRE R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_ZT_=ZF+_RA=+—BULEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—BLEE

2023 2022
—®== T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBETFIT
Profit for the year FEEFH 2,807,404 1,949,300
Other comprehensive income HibGZEalhs
Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss HEnfteED HEEz
EHH
- Currency translation differences - INEIEERS (64,659) (238,713)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to H#E T & ESEFZEHEH
profit or loss
- Currency translation differences - INEE ERR 82,041 368,951
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFBEGZEWE 2,824,786 2,079,538
Attributable to: FE 1k :
Shareholders of the Company NAIERFEB A 2,823,176 2,047,519
Non-controlling interests FEVE i) 1 2 1,610 32,019
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFBEGZEWE 2,824,786 2,079,538

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the H109H ZEFE224B MM FAA FIIERRMNEEI

AN

consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEEEERER

As at 31 December 2023
—ER-=F+-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=-ZA=+—H
2023 2022
—g=-= —T -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ol ARETT AR T
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE =Y 13 7,255,824 7,099,255
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 1,190,224 1,192,081
Construction-in-progress fEEIRE 16 1,710,626 969,210
Investment properties ®EME HhE 15 163,360 166,696
Intangible assets EREE 17 640,498 656,976
Prepayments for non-current assets FERBEEFENTK 18 239,560 460,660
Deferred income tax assets RIEPTSM B E 30 498,460 532,204
Investments accounted for using the EHEREARZERE
equity method 35 56,854 43,576
Financial assets at fair value through WARBEFEAHEEZ
profit or loss ABHEENeREE 24 212,370 212,572
Long-term bank time deposits REIRITEHTFR 23 1,438,163 2,895,490
13,405,939 14,228,720
Current assets RENEE
Inventories TS 20 4,352,041 4,544,935
Trade and bills receivables JE S BR TR R lE IR 1R 21 2,553,357 2,931,887
Other receivables, prepayments and HpEUW R - B ERZR K
deposits E& 21 1,703,406 1,920,248
Current income tax recoverable TEHEBMSH 10,915 42,168
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMIA 22 = 1,490
Restricted bank deposits BERHBRITER 300 302
Cash and bank balances Re&RRITER 23 18,189,943 18,667,492
26,809,962 28,108,522
Total assets BEE 40,215,901 42,337,242
Equity i

Equity attributable to shareholders HFBRAATHRFEA
of the Company

Share capital [N 25 123,345 123,345
Other reserves H oAb 27 2,880,980 3,143,018
Retained earnings BiFlz= 28 17,391,515 16,257,244
20,395,840 19,523,607

Non-controlling interests FEIEHIMERELS 234,011 252,130

Total equity B 20,629,851 19,775,737

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the F109BEF224BMKIEAAHTEHRRAEED

paN

consolidated financial statements. 77 e
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EHEEBER
As at 31 December 2023
—E-_=%+ZA=+—H

Note
e
Liabilities BE
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings & 29
Lease liabilities HEEE 14
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHAaE 30
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and bills payables ERNERREMNERE 31
Other payables and accrued charges HMENERREREHR 31
Contract liabilities EHEE 5
Derivative financial instruments PTESRITA 22
Lease liabilities HEEE 14
Current income tax liabilities EHMENHAaE
Borrowings & 29
Total liabilities HEE
Total equity and liabilities BEREESS

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 224 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2024 and were

signed on its behalf.

Director
EF
Sze Man Bok
31

o

D

As at 31 December
®R+=-ZA=+—H
2023
—EFE=-=
RMB’000
ARETR

330,430
12,948
182,386

525,764

2,750,069
1,630,085
540,276
15,548
17,675
199,438
13,907,195

19,060,286

19,586,050

40,215,901

2022
—E-F
RMB’000
ARET T

2,001,334
16,636
149,433

2,167,403

2,920,685
1,671,547
453,741
32,838
18,109
268,564
15,028,618

20,394,102

22,561,505

42,337,242

109E EH224E MM RA G B MR N ERE AL

FI01BEE224EMAEHTBHREREBEFTER =
ToNEZA -+ Bt URREZTEEE -

Director
BF
Hui Ching Lau
5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHERBH X

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—-BIHFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
AATERHAANELS

Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
J i e
S Hih it BHElE a8 5] HEAE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
il \RETRT ARBTRE ARBTRE ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR

Balance at 1 January 2023 R-¥E-=#-HA-H 123,345 3,143,018 16,257,244 19,523,607 252,130 19,775,737
Profit for the year FEMH = 2,800,533 2,800,533 6,871 2,807,404
Currency translation differences SN E =8 27(c) 22,643 - 22,643 (5,261) 17,382

Total comprehensive income & & @I 22,643 2,800,533 2,823,176 1,610 2,824,786

Transactions with owners: iﬂﬁf’ﬁ%‘ﬂﬁﬁ% :

2022 final dividends paid ZEZFEIRKRERE 11 (813,485) (813,485) (6,692) (820,177)
2023 interim dividends paid ZTZ=FERPHRE 11 (813,485) (813,485) (13,037) (826,522)
Employee share option schemes: Bt T 85 A it 21
- value of employee services -BIRBEEE 27 44,996 44,996 44,996
Employee share award schemes: Bt T I 13 2Bz 1 :
- shares withheld for - RO EEE AR
share award schemes % 17 27 (368,969) (368,969)

Total of transactions with HAENXSEE
owners (323,973) (1,626,970) (1,950,943) (19,729) (1,970,672)

Appropriation to statutory BELERE
reserves 27, 28 39,292 (39,292)

Balance at 31 December 2023 RZ=F=
+=HA=+—-H 123,345 2,880,980 17,391,515 20,395,840 234,011 20,629,851

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the H109B EF224B WAL MK HEME
consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHEZEIHR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-BLFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARREEFE NS
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
FeyE
R Hib BENE k] G $a EE
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

i ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTRT ARET:R

Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B-—-%-A-H 123,345 2,862,648 16,051,047 19,037,040 243,410 19,280,450
Profit for the year FEMH - - 1,925,249 1,925,249 24,051 1,949,300
Currency translation differences SN E =8 27(c) - 122,270 - 122,270 7,968 130,238
Total comprehensive income & & #Ig - 122,270 1,925,249 2,047,519 32,019 2,079,538

Transactions with owners: HEAENXS:

2021 final dividends paid —E-—FRRAHRA 11 - - (813,485  (813,485) (2,119 (815,604)
2022 interim dividends paid “To-GERRERE 17 - - (813485  (813,485) (16,419 (829,904)
Liquidation of subsidiaries WEBARBE - (474) 474 - (6,000) (6,000)
Capital contribution by PR EESDE

non-controlling interests - - - - 7,500 7,500
Capital reduction of a subsidiary i & 2 & & & A - - - - (3,146) (3,146)

Change in ownership interests in  FiBF AR AT A &
subsidiaries without change of ZE (T2 ElE)

control - - (171) (171) (2,109) (2,280)
Disposal of a subsidiary BREMHBRAF - - - - (1,006) (1,006)
Employee share option schemes: B T B i # &t 3

- value of employee services -BIRBKEER 27 - 66,189 - 66,189 - 66,189

Total of transactions with HREEENX ZEE
owners - 65715  (1,626,667)  (1,560,952) (23,299)  (1,584,251)

Appropriation to statutory BEETERE
reserves 27, 28 - 92,385 (92,385) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2022 RZ=F=
+=A=+—-H 123,345 3,143,018 16,257,244 19,523,607 252,130 19,775,737

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the HF109BEF224BMKIEAAHTBEHRRANEED
consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—-BIHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HILLEE

2023 2022
—g=-= TE-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kg ARETRT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities EETINHERE
Cash generated from operations BEEHEENRS 32(a) 4,644,583 4,803,030
Income tax paid BENER (769,208) (9983,168)
Net cash generated from operating EETHELANTRS
activities 3,875,375 3,809,862
Cash flows from investing activities BEFSNHERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE MBELRE
equipment, intangible assets, mEEE HEIRER
construction-in-progress and other HM3ERBEE
non-current assets (1,469,761) (1,121,618)
Purchase of land use rights BE L FARE (50,745) (123,039)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WS REE -
plant and equipment, intangible assets BREERERREE
and right-of-use assets Fr 18 3% 32(b) 28,417 10,844
Decrease in long-term and short-term B R E KR BRER 17 7 B
bank time deposits TR 19,313,510 6,740,483
Increase in long-term and short-term AN KR BB IR 1T E
bank time deposits 7 (15,445,481) (12,272,031)
Proceeds on disposal of derivative BEETESRMTA
financial instruments 109,089 -
Interest received 2 W A8 1,114,393 705,636
Payments for acquisition of investments MEEEREARZKRE
accounted for using the equity
method (15,500) (428)
Cash disposal on losing control of a DRI E B
subsidiary Bemd (5,756)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & EBE L (EF B ) &Y
activities FE e 3,583,922 (6,065,909)

The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an
consolidated financial statements.

integral part of the

F109B 2 F224E N T AE HFIMERMRME

i
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-BLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHILEE

2023 2022
—g=-= —ZE£=-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g3 ARETR AREFIT
Cash flows from financing activities REFSNHERE
Proceeds from borrowings fa RAT1E R 32(c) 19,904,948 23,560,087
Repayment of borrowings EEEX 32(c) (22,782,874) (25,579,200)
Lease payments for right-of-use assets FTREEE(TeEL
excluding land use rights AR CHENK 32(c) (21,885) (23,961)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits WA R EIRITER 2 -
Payments for share award schemes & 17 22 Eh &t 214X 40 A% 17 (358,395) -
Interest paid X ASF A 32(c) (650,163) (458,365)
Dividends paid FRNY SN 11 (1,626,970) (1,626,970)
Dividends paid to non-controlling RALBREINHEE
interests (15,495) (5,081)
Cash inflow arising from liquidation of a NNV O
subsidiary 1,564 -
Proceeds from capital contribution by B D SR R I A
non-controlling interests 7,500
Payment to non-controlling interests for P8~ B A B AR
capital reduction of a subsidiary (3,146)
Payment to non-controlling interests for MBS A RS
liquidation of subsidiaries (6,000)
Transactions with non-controlling HOHEBRRERRD
interests (2,280)
Net cash used in financing activities METHFEANFRE (5,549,268) (4,137,416)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReERBSFEMTF
equivalents o Cai) 1,910,029 (6,393,463)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A—HBZBRERBELE
BY 23 6,088,603 12,339,816
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — HMNIS[E R &8 2 57 & 23,124 142,250
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 +ZA=Z=+—BZ2HR&k
December ReFEY 23 8,021,756 6,088,603
The notes on pages 109 to 224 are an integral part of the 109E ZE224E WM RE B B RFZ BRI

consolidated financial statements.

D

o




vV 4

BrEEE RAA
REMEZZERER 109

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hengan International Group Company Limited (the “Company” or
“i8 22 B B¥”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sale of
personal hygiene products in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and certain overseas markets.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since December 1998.

These consolidated financial statements were presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION

This note provides basis of preparation and material accounting
policy information adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements are for the Group.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622.

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative literature:
e Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
e Hong Kong Accounting Standards,

e Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounts.

B O B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=-F+-_HA=+—HILHFE

—REH
EZEREEARAF(AAT]) REKWEA
A(ARIAEEDEBERPEARAME ([F
1)) RELHINTIHRE  HEANEEEAL
R

ARAA—REREHETMKAIZEREE
A A e st AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

R—NAANFE+ AR RRBNRNDESRE
BMaXZmBERAB(BRM]) £H -

BRBRAIN  RAHTBERAARKZS -

AEHMBBRREKE-_FT-_MF=A=-1—
B A T8 o

WHEENEHABRRBE

BETAGMBRERRAN IS BEREN
X mnBFHBIHN - b FERE PR P
EFERNERER -

21 RBEE
REBEMEMHMBMERERIEMNEHEAD
HMESSHMASHMHE ST HREE
Al E R BB A R HI F622F /) I 57

(BB MG LR & AT EOSUE

(BAMBHREER) -

o (BEEEFER)

o EHRESIBIRZHEMMEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& 9 BF 75 3R | M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RmElIEEREHHRERE(2)

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared EHUBHRRIZBELRAERE XI5
under the historical cost convention, as modified by financial NWAnBEAEEHEEHTAZEHERZN

assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”) (including derivative instruments and unlisted
preference shares), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or

cRMEENERAB(BETESRTA
EARETHELBR) OEMGBMELER -

RENEERMBREENNMBERERT
RERETHRE GG ENFEEE
BEERAASEN ST BRRBEPITEE
HE - S RBENHBREEEMIENE
B SR BRRELERRR

complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are MR - M T4 #E 58 -
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in Note 4.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the (i) XEBEFHZHELRERE
Group -
BTHEAREAETEARARE
BARE o AN B B APl 3 2E A DA R 2E A
EFTNE2AFE  BREAEENE
BRRAMEERBUBERNTE -

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period. The Group
assessed the adoption of these new and amended
standards and concluded that they did not have a
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.

Effective for
annual periods

beginning

Standards and amendments on or after
NTIBEHHZ%E

B R EZFRET EHNEEPBRER

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
BB g ERIE8W (55T
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Definition of Accounting Estimates
it 2 EE
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
REE—XRFGNEERBENHEH
iR FE TR
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 January 2023
—ZE-=%—-H—H
1 January 2023
B AERIE1258 (18 5T) —ZE-_=%—HA—H
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)
BEEGHEREIRRBESVE
WmEEAEAES2(EE])
HKFRS 17
BBV B REEFEITH
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

1 January 2023

G BR 2 R —E-_=%—HA—H

Insurance Contracts
RiEE 4
International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model

1 January 2023
—E-=F—A—H
1 January 2023
Rules
BB BB E - B iR %ER A

BB G ERIFE125 (BFT) — T =%—A—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RmEEEREHTHRERE42)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)

(i) New and amended standards not yet adopted (i) 5B KRR 2 F 5T RAEIEETER
Certain new and amended standards and interpretations ZIEFE] MBS R R REBE_T
are effective for annual periods beginning after =+ A=1T—HEHRBNFE
31 December 2023 and have not been early adopted in HMAR  BRBEEAS B ®RE
preparing these consolidated financial statements. These FIRATER - ZFHEATEHN B ATk
standards are not expected to have a material impact on ARBEPERRABEERZRS
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and WrEHAEBENERATE -

on foreseeable future transactions.

Effective for
annual periods

beginning
Standards and amendments on or after
RTIEHFHZ2E
2R R1EET EMEERBEEN
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as current or 1 January 2024
non-current
EE G ERER (BET) HEESERRINIERY —E-mMFE—-A—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BB G RERIE1R (BET) MAERENIERBDEE —ZE-_mMFE—-A—H
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BB EERZE165 (BET) EREETHEEAE —E-ME—-H—H
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
BB ERETR REBYK HrEmEE 2 —E-ME—A—H
s ERETH (BET)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2024
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
HEREESH (BA]) MBBRENEN - ERAHSAERERERE —ZT-_MF—-—H—H
G EHRERN DR
HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BB TR 2155 (B ET) R = Al —E-hF—A—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined
(Amendments) investor and its associate or joint venture
EEVBRERVFICRERELG: REELHEBECERSECEZHNEE BREE
%285 (1B E]) HE SR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

TE-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHIEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

221 Property, plant and equipment and

construction-in-progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

impairment

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings and
machineries under construction or pending installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction
and acquisition and capitalised borrowing costs. No
depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for their
intended use. When the assets concerned are available
for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

only when it

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Machinery 10-20 years

Office equipment, furniture 5 years
and fixtures

Motor vehicles 5 years

2

RREENEHBREBEE)

22 EEESHBERE
21 Y% HERREBEREETRE

W% BB RREREL KRR
FERREBRIIK ELKRARE

BEZSTHREEREHENAX -

ERTReERERRRFRENET
Ries WA ANER R AR ERE
SRR (0 A) - A B2 iE - B
BMARERCOERKAR - R TIZ
TERERRTEEZMAEES TR R
AARER - EEHEERWER -
ERAEEYE KERRE - LH

BRI TP BURIRERITE -

BREXARBEERAERAEETEK

HZIBE A AR R s

HEMKAEREER  TEEHE
BEMREEIER R —REBEE
(Em) CERTHNEEED K
RILFER -MBHMBEEREES
BRI AR A B RNE R 8

ME BERRENTERBATH
HEFAME R F S ER AR EHRED

B HFREEFE:

BF

Hes R
WMRERBR
RMEE
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2 MAUBEREFTRRBE(E)

22 EESHBERE(E)

221 Property, plant and equipment and 21 YF - HERREREZETRE

construction-in-progress (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.2.11).

Gains and
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within “other income and other gains — net” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

losses on disposals are determined by

222 Intangible assets

(1) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

(#)
& 2 ) R 04 (B ML P 02 4 B E 5 M
SEABRARTRE  REBEH
BE -

AEENEEAESREGTTREE
8 - E B8R E BN UM = AT B & 58
(Pff 5F2.2.11) ©

REMMNESMBRIZAEREREE
MZEMEE  LEAHNBERAIEM
WA R A G — 558 | P el

200 BIEEE

0 BE
EMEELEKRENBAR - WA
ERAMEZREEBRANQRER
WA HREE BEMK
BEBEFARBEEREZEIFTS
MREZAREB AR BENHEE -

?ﬁﬁ{ﬁ‘\ﬁwé‘ﬁﬂﬁg'ﬁiﬁ%é\ﬁqﬂ
BANBEEIRESABRSE
tﬂﬁmifﬁiﬁﬂjﬁﬁiﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂ—f
fﬁé/\{%ﬁfﬂﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ 5) o MBI
SR ESMEETHRETHEEEE

BARESHESENTERERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

222 Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Gooadwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

if events or changes in

223 Financial assets

()

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss),
and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

fair value

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

@

2

RREENEHBREBEE)

22 EESHBERE(E)
200 BIEEE (&)
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A& (E)
LRHENREAASFET =K
MEARERERBRRAIEFHE
AR B E SRR R A - BB IR
EEATEDEE(EREEER
REERBERARSE) LE -
EAREANKERARTEELZ
&R AL -

223 THEE

()

PAE
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Al 4R

o HBEUAREEFE(BES
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MemEE R

o EHBRAFENESREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2 MAUBEREFTRRBE(E)

22 EESHBERE(E)
203 EHEE (&)
(i) HERR R AR A

223 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

entirety when determining

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing
characteristics of the asset.
measurement categories

instruments

the cash flow
There are three
into  which the Group
classifies its debt instruments as financial assets
measured at amortised cost,
measured subsequently at fair value through OCI,
and financial assets measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss.

the asset and

financial assets

FRUEBARHENEREESR
Ry AR AAKEAEREA
FHEZEEZH Bt EmME
EWBRSRENENS LT
HOKEE MAKECKES
RE BB N BE 1) Bl B A0 = R R
B SREENKILER -

(i) &2

HR IO BERARNABENE
BEZHFABENEREE
AEBUERAEEMEATER
EERESZETREENRS
ERETNRER -EUARARE
BEfEAEEHFHABENEH
BEMBNORSEMTABS-

HRBERAXITETANER
BE ASEHEEGNEER
ReRERTERRYASMA
BH AT o

BEHIA
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EEREENEBERAREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

223 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(v)

Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured

at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt

instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

@
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2 MAUBEREFTRRBE(E)

22 EESHBERE(E)
203 EHEE (&)

223 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment (Continueq)
For trade, bills and other receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
See Note 3(a)(ii) for further details.

(iv) IR 18 ()
HRERER  BKREREREAM
WK - NE B RNE B M|
ERAFOR A FFOMILTA -
V146 RER B BT 2 B WK IE B B 5
BHMEHRERER P
15 7 2 B I 523 a) (i) °

224 Inventories 24 7HE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEEKARAERFEMENHRIE
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted EHR -NAF B MEFTHEEES
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in TE o B M R MR K AN B IR R A
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other B oBEEAT HthEEZEANEH
direct costs and related production overheads (based on MEEEEERAUKBER & &/t
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. ) BENBIEERER - A #IRFE
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the REBEEEEFHRHOMEHEE
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of WERMIEEERER -
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

225 Trade, bills and other receivables 205 EWER ~ FEW Z 18 R B il fE UG 5

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
bills and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

225 Trade, bills and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade, bills
and other receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 2.2.3 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade, bills and other
receivables and Note 2.2.3(iv) and Note 3(a)(ii) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

226 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells a range of personal
hygiene products including sanitary napkin products,
disposable diaper products and tissue paper products in
the market. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has full
and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

discretion over the channel
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RHEUEERSHHRRBE(E)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

22 EESHBERE(E)
226 WA (E)

226 Revenue recognition (Continued)

The personal hygiene products are often sold with
retrospective volume discounts and other customer
incentives based on aggregate sales over a period.
Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate
and provide for the discounts, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accrued charges) is
recognised for expected discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30—
90 days, which is consistent with market practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
and the customers has inspected and accepted the
products as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns
at the time of sale. Because of the large size and low
value of each individual product, the amount of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability for goods
return was recognised. The validity of this assumption
and the estimated amount of returns are reassessed at
each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not receive a distinct good or
service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

226 Revenue recognition (Continued)
The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transition prices for the
time value of money.

227 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting subsidiaries

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
the
loss,

subsidiaries are shown separately in
profit or
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of change in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.

consolidated statement of
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
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227 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Associates and Joint Ventures (i) BEPEREELFE
BEPEEMBEASEYERS
AEEN ﬁﬁﬁ? ) 48 X B A 17

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.

This is generally the case where the Group holds HHEE B NS AE20% -
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 50%7% %E’]Hx@é B
Investments in associates are accounted for using E’]TxﬁLME\*P&')\ﬁ%

the equity method of accounting.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements ﬁﬁ B B BR B 7 o 5 A SB115%
are classified as either joint operations or joint ./:.\ ERMRENEREEK
ventures. The classification depends on the LEEDE ZOEKEBESK
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, EEE’\JE\H% R E A WA
rather than the legal structure of the joint 24 o H £2023F128318 ¢
arrangement. The Group has only the joint ventures KEBERBAELE -HEE
as at 31 December 2023. Joint ventures are TENREUEREAR -
accounted for using the equity method of

accounting.

the

Under the equity method of accounting,
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
of the in OCI. Dividends
receivable from associates and joint ventures are

investee received or
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

227 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Associates and Joint Ventures (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in an associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘Share
of net gains/(losses) of investments accounted for
using the equity method’ in consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

the difference between the

(iii) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree, the equity interests issued
by the Group, fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
arrangement and fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

business combinations.

consideration
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
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22 EESHBERBE(E)
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227 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) ZEHE G (&)

(iii) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
the present ownership
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

value or interests’

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity
or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill (Note 2.2.2(i)). If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling
recognised and previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

interest
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

227 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting subsidiaries (Continued)

(iv) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid
or received is recorded in equity.

(v) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in OCI in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

(vi) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

228 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments,

has been

identified as the Executives Directors who make strategic
decisions.

229 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(1)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is HK$ and
the functional currency of the majority of the
Group’s companies is RMB. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and in foreign
in the consolidated

rates

liabilities denominated
currencies are recognised
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “finance income” and “finance costs”,
where applicable. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “other income and
other gains — net”.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

229 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(2) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on the
dates of the transactions); and

(8) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

2210Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RHEUEERSHHRRBE(E)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

22 EESHBERBE(E)
NREMEME (E)

2210Investment properties (Continued)

An item of investment properties is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits is
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

2211 Impairment of investments in non-financial

assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2212 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument. There are no derivatives designated as a
hedging instrument for the Group.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2212 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Derivatives of the Group are categorised as financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
the changes recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss under “other
income and other gains — net” in the year in which they

in fair value are

arise.

2213Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2214 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s shareholders until the
shares are cancelled.

2215 Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and bills
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RmEEEREHTHRERE42)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

22 EESHBRRBE(E)
2216 Borrowings 22016 15 5%

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs), and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2217 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2217 Borrowing costs (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains
and losses that are an adjustment to interest costs
include the interest rate differential between borrowing
costs that would be incurred if the entity had borrowed
funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing costs
actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings. Such
amounts are estimated based on interest rates on similar
borrowings in the entity’s functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of foreign
exchange differences eligible for capitalisation is
determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would have
been incurred had the entity borrowed in its functional
currency. The total amount of foreign exchange
differences capitalised cannot exceed the amount of total
net foreign exchange differences incurred on a
cumulative basis at the end of the reporting period.

2218 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2218 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(1)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

(@) Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

However,

Deferred

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-E-_=%+-A=+—HILEE

2 MAUBEREFTRRBE(E)

22 EESHBERBE(E)
218EHRIEEFEH (&)

()

(i)

EH 7

EHIAT S B X HAR IR AR R B e Y
BRANMELERARATWRANER
REEBBRACEMREL -
ERBOREGEGFE - EERE
BB AR BE G BB ARRMNIE
NEMFERBRORR LA
ERBERTIREE AR RS
MXNHBRRAREER LEE
MIEHERE SN I EERE -
ZNE LIRS0 PN ES A Y
EMS A ARAEEXEY
BEREEAETOBR -

BERERTIZFE

(a NEEZZRE
BEMESHRANAEGEERR
EEMBEMNREBEEEMN
BEEAHMBHRENER
ERNEEMEENERFEZE
BEoAM HELEMSHE
BEREHEENVIHBER
UEBBEEMSHEBER
S(TBEEBEAHPEE
EXBEMNVBER  ME
REBIEFESTHERNE
B AE S E L BN ER
R-BREMSHEBATEEE
BEXRHAEEMARELS £
BEEM WEBBELTA
BHREEBERIBELEMRGEN
BEAERBHESEAD
BE(RER) METE -

BEFTSTHEEEMRRARE
B R R 8RR A A 8 W Bh Utk A
ERERMEERMER -




h

132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

@

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

& 1 B %5 3R R Mt o
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2218 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Outside basis differences
Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

reversal

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(iii)  Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
and settle the liability

realise the asset

simultaneously.

2219 Employee benefits

()

Retirement benefits

The Group’s companies
participate
schemes administered by local governments in
different locations of the PRC (the “Central
Schemes”). The Group’s companies and the
employees in Mainland China are required to make

in  Mainland China

in defined contribution retirement

cash contributions calculated at certain percentages
of the employees’
Schemes.

basic salaries to the Central
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2219 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Group also operates the mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong
staff. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme administered by
independent trustees. Each of the employer and the
employee has to contribute an amount equal to 5%
of the relevant income of the employee to the MPF
Scheme, subject to a cap of HK$1,500, equivalent
to RMB1,352 per month. Contributions from the
employer are vested in the employees as soon as
they are paid to relevant MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions
must be preserved until the employee reaches the
retirement age of 65 subject to a few exceptions.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled employee share
option schemes and employee share award
schemes (Note 26). The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options to purchase shares of the Company is
recognised as an expenses. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2219 Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
account.

2220 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events.
It is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RmEEEREHTHRERE42)

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

22 EESHBERBE(E)
2001 (&)

2220 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2221 Earnings per share

(i)  Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year
and excluding shares withheld for share award
scheme.

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2222 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as part of other income.

interest method is

Interest income is presented as finance income where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. See Note 8 below for details.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2223 Government grants

Grants from government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies

231 Intangible assets

(i) Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are
shown at historical cost. Trademarks and licences
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and
licences have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses.
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licences over their estimated useful
lives of not exceeding 20 years.

Amortisation is calculated using the

(i) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship of not exceeding 10 years.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2 RmEEEREHTHRERE42)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

23 Htt g BURBE(HF)

231 Intangible assets (Continued) 201 MIEEE (&)

(i) Computer software
Computer software represent purchased software
and are amortised over their estimated useful lives,
which do not exceed 10 years.

232 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods but may have extension options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, and leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments.

e Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e Variable lease payments that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e Amounts expected to be payable by the group under
residual value guarantees;

(iii) % A B
B A AR OB B - HOR AR
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TE-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHIEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
232 Leases (Continued)

e The exercise price of a purchase option if the group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement

of the liability.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e The amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;
e Any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received;

e  Any initial direct costs; and

° Restoration cost.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated lease period.

All land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land
ownership right exists. The Group acquired the right to
use certain land. The premiums paid for such right are
treated as prepayment for operating lease and recorded
at cost as right-of-use assets, which are depreciated
over the lease periods using the straight-line method.

@
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

232

233

Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise
small items of office furniture.

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor. None of the
extension option was exercised in the year ended

31 December 2023.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the

Initial direct costs incurred in

balance sheet based on their nature.

Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (related
to the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;

(i) management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use it;

(iif)

there is an ability to use the intangible asset;

(iv)

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

233 Research and development (Continued)
(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use the intangible
asset are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset
is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful
life, not exceeding five years.

234 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the year in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s Directors or
shareholders, when appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, price risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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MEEREE(E
(a) MIEEBEE(H)
(i) 145 B

(1) SMEm B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is HK$ and the
majority of its subsidiaries’ functional currencies are
RMB. Foreign exchange
commercial transactions or purchases from overseas
by the Company’s subsidiaries and recognised
assets or liabilities, such as cash and bank
balances, trade and bills and other receivables and
payables, and borrowings held by its subsidiaries,

risk arises from future

which are denominated in RMB, United States dollar
(“US$”) and other currencies.

The Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rate between HK$ and US$ to be
insignificant as HK$ and US$ are pegged. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, the fluctuations
in exchange rates between RMB (the functional
currency of the majority of the Group’s entities), US$
(the denomination currency of majority of the
Group’s imports of raw materials and property, plant
and equipment and borrowings) and HK$ (the
denomination currency of borrowings) resulted in a
total exchange loss of RMB183,443,000 (2022:
exchange loss of RMB797,056,000). The Group has
not experienced any difficulties in getting sufficient
foreign currencies for settlement of purchase
obligations or repatriation of profits declared by the
subsidiaries in the PRC to their overseas holding
companies or repayment of bank loans.

At 31 December 2023, if HK$ and US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the RMB
with all other variables held constant, the net profit
for the year would have been RMB5,274,000 (2022:
RMB81,088,000) higher/lower.

(2) Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price risk
because of the volatility of major raw materials such
as wood pulp. To manage price risks, the Group
enters into long term contracts and diversifies its
suppliers to mitigate the risk of significant raw
material price changes.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Market risk (Continued)

(3) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Except for restricted bank deposits, long-term bank
time deposits and cash and bank balances (Note
23), the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group’s interest-rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of repayments of borrowings are
disclosed in Note 29.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the net profit
for the year would have been RMB21,281,000 (2022:
RMB40,131,000) lower/higher as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

(ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from restricted bank deposits, long-term bank time
deposits, cash and bank balances, derivative financial
instruments, FVPL, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in
cash or by its customers on delivery of goods. Credit
sales are made only to selected customers with good
credit history. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that settlement of trade receivables are followed up on a
timely basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of restricted bank deposits,
long-term bank time deposits, cash and bank balances,
derivative financial instruments, FVPL, trade and bills
and other receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
financial assets.

receivables,

relation to its

At 31 December 2023, all restricted bank deposits and
bank balances were placed with or entered into with
highly reputable and sizable banks and financial
institutions without significant credit risk. The table below
shows the balances with counterparties as at
31 December 2023 and 2022:

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

3 MBERBEEGE
(a) MIEEBEE(H)

(ii)

Counterparties RPH
- Big 4 domestic banks (Note) - W KBEBRT (A7)
- Other reputable and sizeable - HMEERIFRARRE
domestic commercial banks Z BN ERST
- Highly reputable and sizeable -EEROARAEHEZ
foreign-owned banks SNEERTT

Note:

Big 4 domestic banks comprise Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Bank of
China Limited and China Construction Bank Corporation.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

EHER (&)
SEUVESESETNEERR - 21F
TEHTBEHRERAHDBRGIRITT
FREBRTEHRTN  BHe kiRTT
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ENEERK = &ERE-

RZEZ=F+=—RA=+—H A
BRFBITERLBITEREAFEARE
BRITRAREZRIT WERERS
ARR - TRETIRZ-ZZE_=Fk=

T F+ZA=+—HHEXRSFHN

+ .
MR

2023 2022
—E-=f —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
3,055,235 6,407,099
13,127,040 10,433,055
3,445,931 4,722,869
19,628,206 21,563,023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERKRER(Z

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HERKBREZE (&)
(ii) Credit risk (Continued) (i) =HER(E)
The expected loss rates are based on the payment EHEBEXAR-_ZT_=F+=-A
profiles of sales over a period of 3 vyears before =+ HRA=ZFHESEHENTK
31 December 2023 and the corresponding historical BARKABEALNRENHEERTEE
credit losses experienced within this period. The R - BABEREHFARUIRBREY
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and EREEERIWERE TNEENE
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability A K BT BE 14 & R o

of the customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December EUHEE RZTE==F+=A
2023 was determined as follows for trade and bills =t+—HMWEREZRRERZENE
receivables: BEREETHT
Within 181 to Over
180 days 365 days 365 days Total
181K E
180K A 365X 365KkLL st
31 December 2023 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-=f#+=-RA=+—H ARETRT AR%BTR ARETR ARETR
Gross carrying amount RERAEE 2,454,965 88,922 175,111 2,718,998
Expected loss rate Ta HR & 18 % 0.92% 2.40% 80.45%
Loss allowance B B 22,630 2,136 140,875 165,641
Within 181 to Over
180 days 365 days 365 days Total
181K E
180K A 365K 365K LA E 5
31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-_—_#+=-A=+—H ARETIT ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®TT
Gross carrying amount REEEE 2,686,627 189,311 117,196 2,993,134
Expected loss rate TEHEEBEX 0.60% 1.44% 36.29%
Loss allowance BB A 15,992 2,722 42,533 61,247
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERKRER(Z
(a) BIBEABREEE)
(ii) 15 /8 /@ B2 ()
Mt -—A=+—BRKERRERE
15 ) B S 4B 9B 45 SR B ) A 1R R B 0

loss allowances as follows: HERMT

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)
The closing loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December reconcile to the opening

2023 2022
—E-=f —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

R—A— AW EERE

Opening loss allowance as at

1 January 58,020
Increase in loss allowance recognised — 4F A 7 K R #E 2 2 &5 18 &

in profit or loss during the year B (hat7)

(Note 7) 109,833 19,231
Receivables written off during the year 4 R {E A&~ 7] Uk [B] A9 FE U BF

as uncollectible M (5,355) (16,170)
Currency translation differences SNEEHTH R (84) 166
Closing loss allowance at R+ZA=+—HMHERX

31 December BiE R 165,641 61,247

Trade and bills receivables are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due.

Impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.

EWER R ERERERZEESERD
TEEARS I SE - R B A BB TE A A 45
EREEHAREERNEBVER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

TE-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHIEE

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

3 MBEAREREE
(a) MEEBRREE(E)
(ii) 1=/ E ()

Other financial assets at amortised cost include other
receivables. Impairment on other receivables is measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then

impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.
The closing loss allowances for other receivables

(excluding prepayments) as at 31 December reconcile to
the opening loss allowances as follows:

HMUEHRK AT ENEREETE
BEEMEKR - RIEE ERERR
ERARBRRETELEERNE (L KEH
BEZBANIEANERERESLX
HFEPANBBRERBRNS B
BRKER - MEFHMERFINE
RRERE & RERRERABR LT
RIJ 48 8 EL At FE WK B BB 1R R AR TR E
FERANAHERBERNESHRE -

RTZA=1T—RAEEMEURX(FRE
fFRRFRSN) B R B 1R B S H B 18

BEMNHERAT
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T

Opening loss allowance as at
1 January

Increase in loss allowance recognised
in profit or loss during the year
(Note 7)

R—A—BWHBEREE

FARMBRBERZEE
B (hat7)

13,484

Closing loss allowance at
31 December

R+—_A=+—HK
HREEEE

(iii) Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at Group level by head office
finance department (“Group Finance”). Group Finance
monitors the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that
it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs at all
times and does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities. Group Finance usually
takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing
plans, covenant compliance and compliance with internal
balance sheet ratio targets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERKRER(Z

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) H¥ERREE (&)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) 7% B 14 /7 B (42)
Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash in time AEBPHEEZRERNKRFASRIETT
deposits, with appropriate maturities. o WHEBEEDNEA -
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TRETAEENSHEBE KREME
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining BEREAR - REBEREEREZESY

BT RBREETON - ERA
BENEBER/GHMERRBRNAESR

period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

H

(=31

Between Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and 3 and
1 year 2 years 3 years 5 years Total
DME  1EF2E 25F3E 3EESE ay
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT

At 31 December 2023 n-%¥=-=
+=-ZRA=+-—H
Borrowings EE:N 13,907,195 16,127 pLENILY] 31,250 14,237,625
Interest payables of borrowings JE& 18 BB 190,011 4,691 2,249 12 196,963
Net settled derivative financial FHEEETESR
instruments TE 15,548 15,548
Lease liabilities HERE 18,604 31,974
Trade, bills and other payables ERBRZR - BRNER
RE AR 4,127,631 4,127,631
Total & 18,258,989 287,983 32,175 18,609,741
At 31 December 2022 n-%¥=-Z=
+=ZRA=+-—H
Borrowings EE:N 15,028,618 2,001,150 184 - 17,029,952
Interest payables of borrowings JE& 18 BB 259,054 27,515 - - 286,569
Net settled derivative financial FHEEETESR
instruments TE 32,838 - - - 32,838
Lease liabilities HEAR 19,186 12,278 3,581 1,346 36,391
Trade, bills and other payables ERBRZR - BRNER
RE AR 4,345,112 - - - 4345112
Total B 19,684,808 2,040,943 3,765 1,346 21,730,862
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The gross gearing
ratio is calculated on the basis of the total borrowings as a
percentage of the total shareholders’ equity excluding
non-controlling interests. The net gearing ratio is calculated
on the basis of net debt as a percentage of the
shareholders’ equity excluding non-controlling interests. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less long-term bank
time deposits and cash and bank balances.

@

3 MBEAREREE
(b) ExERER

AEENESERRER —RRATRESE
RRAEERE  URKRREHRDHRMSHAM
NMEBERERHEMNGE AEEFRENE
REBAREES KA -

RTIBBRPEEREE  FAEETTRS
HEINTRROBRNEE  MEREER
BA - BITHBRAHEEEAREET

HEANHMBIF] K AEEMNAERE
BHEREREER BAGBLERRER
RE L BRRES BT BRI S
SmR A DRI EEEAE - FREALE
WIRE T F AR A R A MR SRR Bl
AE-BEHFREREEFRRERARITE
HMER - RERBITFER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERKRER(Z

(b) Capital risk management (Continued) b) EcEKBERE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s TEC=FRN AEENBBENEFE
Bt R # % E20%8 X F &+ = A
=t+—8 BEXBEBELRFEWT

strategy was to maintain a net gearing ratio at or below
20%. The calculation of the gearing ratios at 31 December

was as follows:

2023 2022
—g=-= TEC
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Gross gearing ratio: BEELE:
Total borrowings 4R 14,237,625 17,029,952
Total equity excluding non-controlling BREDMBRIEEHER
interests 20,395,840 19,523,607
Gross gearing ratio dE G 69.8% 87.2%
Net gearing ratio: FAEGEE
Total borrowings “ 15K 14,237,625 17,029,952

Less: long-term bank time deposits
and cash and bank balances

R BERTT E B

HRATIF (19,628,106) (21,562,982)

Net debt BEFHE (5.390,481) (4,533,030)
Total equity excluding non-controlling 48 ¥ 2 M BR FE T B &=

interests 20,395,840 19,523,607

Net gearing ratio FAMBELE N/A N/A

~iEH I3 A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within
a fair value hierarchy as follows:

e  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

e |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

3 MBEREEE

(c)

(level 3).
Level 1
E1E
Recurring fair value measurements Notes RMB’000
AREEE iz \ R ¥ T
At 31 December 2023 —EZ=H
+=-ZA=+—H
Financial assets SREE
FVPL NArnEEFEAR
HEzt ABmH
TR E 24
Financial liabilities SRBE
Derivative financial PTESMIT A
instruments 22

@

AREEMLE
TERBIBETE AR BEOGERKNT A
BERINBANER  H»WAEER_F
TEFRZEZIF+ZA=+—HER
ABEAENSRTE - S AKRBA
AEBEEBRAREANTZE:

o HREEXBERELEMSHNERECK
AR (F1E) -

. BRTBIEMBENBEI  HEEN
EENTHENLBHA  TAEE
(B {8 #8) =% R 12 (B0 R & (8 #8) (2
B -

e EBEEMABYFKEANBEMBSEM
B A (BRI B 8 A) (£38) -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
$E2E %3E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR%E®TR

212,370 212,370
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MERRER (&)
(c) A RMEMK ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%1 F2[E H3E mEt
Recurring fair value measurements Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR BEEFE Wi ARBFT ARBFT ARBFRT AR®TT
At 31 December 2022 —g=-
+=-ZA=+—H
Financial assets SREE
FVPL NARBENER
£S D EPNCE-T0
Rl & E 24 - - 212,572 212,572
Derivative financial PTES®MT A
instruments 22 - 1,490 - 1,490
- 1,490 212,572 214,062
Financial liabilities SREE
Derivative financial PTESmMT A
instruments 22 - (32,838) - (32,838)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market
price is the current bid price. The quoted market price
already incorporates the market’s assumptions with respect to
changes in economic climate such as rising interest rates and
inflation, as changes due to ESG
instruments are included in level 1 which comprise primarily

as well risk. These

equity investments classified as trading securities. The Group
did not have such instrument as at 31 December 2023.

EERMBEENSRIANRABER
BEEBEXRANMIBRMEIER & W®RE
AR AMTESRELSR I - RHE &
LoERAT TERBEXEERIEE
B MZSERERREAFTRFELEET
NEBRNMERATSER K ZMBEEKEA
ER-mBREBEAENETRE - mBR
BEAMAT MEELEREE(\ - 0H
REAHEBERE URERE Lk
BREBEHMNELLHER - LETARE
EEIE HTEAEXTZRREZKRE (D
BRPUES) - £ 1E2023F12H31H &
EEZECHEE-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an

3 MKERER (&)
(c) RABEME (&)
BREEERMSLEENSRIANARE

active market is determined by using valuation techniques. BEFAGBERNEE HERNEEMA

These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2. The Group’s derivative financial
instruments above are level 2 instruments and their fair value
is determined with reference to quotations provided by
various banks.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities and for
instruments where ESG risk gives rise to a significant
unobservable adjustment. The Group’s unlisted preference
shares are level 3 instruments and their fair value is
determined with inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data. The valuation techniques
used for level 3 instruments-unlisted equity securities are
market approach and binomial model.

(i) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items
for the year ended 31 December 2023:

ABRmEER(NE) SELRBEE
WE Tt M E—TENRAAEER
ENEERBGABAEREARN  AIZT
BRI ANE2E - REBIU LWTESRTA
BIANFE2EMN SR T E  HQAABETIE
RARRITHIRE -

IM—IER S EEAHALFRIETERED

AR BIRTBSAEIE  REALD
B 5% 1 MIESGR M 8 B & A T A B2 10 38
%o REENK L TEERATIAEIED
SWMTA HAREERRELIRET
BETSANRENEAERABY AR
- EOBE M T AMGETAR KNG E
W IBE R T IE R AR o

() BREAEAFTEEBA (FE3E)H

AREEFE
TRINHEBEE-_ZE-_=F+_A=+—
AI-FEFEIIEBEEME L :

Unlisted preference shares

KEHELER
2023 2022
—g-= TE-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Closing balance —E--f+=-HA=+-—H
31 December 2022 B £ K &5 B 212,572 194,342
Losses recognised in other income R E AU AFERE B K (3.301) -
Currency translation differences GNEE YT B =R 3,099 18,230
Closing balance as at —E-=#+=-A=+—H
31 December 2023 Hqﬂisk.%ﬁ% 212,370 212,572

@
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements for unlisted
preference shares:

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

3 MBREBRERE(H)
(c) A RMEMK ()

(ii)

1 EEARER 2 EE L EEFE
TREUMA ETEEREER A BE
HEMEAEAHTBREBANHTE
AR

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to

Description Fair value at Unobservable inputs Inputs fair values
Fi:Ru RTIHBEHHAREE EER 2= DN BN FUBEGAEARBENERR
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
= & —E-—
+TZHA=1+—H [peiEhal:]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Unlisted preference 212,370 212,672 Risk-free Rate 4.04% The higher the risk-free rate, the
shares higher the fair value
A EMEER ERREE ERBREEHS AREEYS
Volatility 55.00% The higher the expected volatility,
the lower the fair value
K 8 RERESS RAEEME

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. This team reports directly to the chief
financial officer (CFO) and the audit committee (AC).
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s
half-yearly reporting periods.

(iii) 12 18 5% 72

AEEMBMRE —EEE  BAH
MBREBNEIEMELRE HE
BREEIELAAEBE ZEBREERE
BREREZZEGER - REAXR
SENEERSH  PBAEE B
ZBeREEERZRLEREAN®
—RIEERERER-

&
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group
and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are addressed below.

related actual results. The estimates and

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Current tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and certain
Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are some
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

(b)

overseas countries.

4

B 2 etk 5T & H

fl 5 A0 T & B AT 1 0 IR BB E LR
HAXRETHE BEREEHEBRATHER
HARKEMHOAIBTRA -

AREBHRKAEL BT MRE - SN S
AAMEER RIGEEBRERMER - RK
e TEAMRFENEENBBENREE
EHERHBNGEAMERAHOT

(@) M=% HERRENTERAFH
AEEEREEEYE BELRREBHOMG
AAAERFR AT ERS - ZE G
DRBEERINEBLUNYME  BHE MR
EHNERAERFHNBEERE X
THERMBERRBEFHFRYBUNTE
BEFMEFEOTHMERERES - WA
EREMBTAEAERE EEESRE
MFERX  ABCEBIHENBER
1l 3 3F 58 RS 14 B 2 T 85 S HUR ©

ENRERRELRES
AEBETERADEIINERBRAE
B-hBEMSHEAEBE FRFELEKX
- E—REBRBET  BAZIHM
AEMPERNEEMEEEH T TEE
B REBRBHIZEFEBNBEINERK
M RIEHREETHERARAG -
W F F AR RS 1R R B & ) R0 8% A
SRR HEZEHZERNEETHHDN
PRSI ANR A -

(b)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Current tax and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
using tax rates that are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax assets are realised or the deferred
income tax liabilities are settled. The expected applicable tax
rate is determined based on the enacted tax laws and
regulations and the actual situation of the Group. The
management of the Group will revise the expectation where
the intending tax rate is different from the original
expectation.

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2.2.2(i).
determined based on value-in-use calculations prepared on
the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates (Note
17). These calculations require the use of estimates.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs was

Expected credit losses for trade, bills and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based on the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. The loss allowances for
financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

as forward

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

4 BARGEEETRAEE)

(b) EMFEHREZEMREHR (&)

(c)

BIEFFSHEEMEL SR B ERRE
Hi M o 5% 8 B S0 18 s B 15 A T RO R A
SEHBREAE -FAHERAEHBTERRE
BARRITHOREERAMANEENERIS
MAMAEE - EBFAERHTEERMBA
ER AEEEEESYHETHE -

BE NN ERG
RIBEWF2220T LM SETHER - A&
BFARERGERRE ReELE
JC K A] Ug [B] 4 %8 17 BR B B FE B A 1R AR
et EREETEmET (ME17) o it
L EFEERAMGET o

(d) BERER BREERHEMERROE

BERARERX
AEBENEREREBEEER(AMA
BRKERBEEEFERNANRIE
BIEETEZRERNR BREEREMBE
WHRHRERE TREENBEREGD
RIBA BE QR e & 38 B8 L &6 R
fEH - AKREREREMHPRREAKE
RBERESE - W5 IR RATHE G A
PR R R RO ERE R E s AR
B-EEEREEERENNGHERE-
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5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports provided for review by the Executive
Directors.

The Executive Directors consider the performance of the Group
from a product perspective. The Executive Directors assess the
performance of the operating segments based on a measure of
segment profit without allocation of other income and other gains
— net, finance income/(costs), income tax expense and share of
net gains/(losses) of investments accounted for using the equity
method which is consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

Operations are mainly organised under the segment of the
Group’s manufacturing, distribution and sale of personal hygiene
products including sanitary napkin products, disposable diaper
products and tissue paper products.

Sales between segments are carried out at terms mutually agreed
amongst these business segments. Revenue from external parties
reported to the Executive Directors are measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Revenues from sales of goods recognised during the year
are as follows:

5

BWARDEHEH
HREERRERBERNTES - NITES
BRAREABREMFERANHEER -

ERECRERBLEZATEENS LR
HEH -

EENERAEERERXE LTTES
ﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ“%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ (ERIZ
BOHMEIRER EMEMBANMGE - F
ﬁ%%,ﬂ%ﬁ CFBHRERZDEM
{Ehﬁ&‘ ENRZIRE T (R 1 o

DEE e
%

AEBTIEEBNALERDHEMEESEAAR
ERm BREEN . —RUEEKRERED -

DEHEEE I EE T ER B AKERT

7 Fﬂiﬂﬁ%%i&%ﬂiﬁ9\\%5’9”&1)\%#5%
FEAHAMBRNFETE B - AFEIIER
ZEFFRAmT

18 A %&£ R m
-mEm

Personal hygiene products
— Sanitary napkin products
— Disposable diaper products
— Tissue paper products
Others

-HMER
H Al

— IR AR

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
6,178,438 6,156,060
1,254,070 1,202,347
13,748,172 12,248,011
2,587,256 3,009,460
23,767,936 22,615,878

@
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Most of the Group companies are domiciled in PRC. The revenue
from external customers in PRC accounted for more than 90% of
the Group’s total revenue.

The total non-current assets (other than deferred income tax
assets and long-term bank time deposit) located in Mainland
China amounted to RMB10,430,246,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB9,759,407,000) and the total non-current assets
located in other places amounted to RMB1,039,070,000 (2022:
RMB1,041,619,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no single
customer generated more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue
(2022: None).

The amounts provided to the Executive Directors with respect to
total assets and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the consolidated financial statements. These assets
and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the
segment.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment (Note 13), right-of-use assets (Note 14),
investment properties (Note 15), construction-in-progress (Note
16) and intangible assets (Note 17).

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Unallocated
assets comprise corporate assets. Unallocated liabilities comprise
corporate liabilities.

5

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

WARDBESR (&

SEXEZNEBESTE - #iB0%H U K B
hEINEES -

R-ZE-_=F+_A=+—8 R FBEKE
MIERBEELE(TBIFERTMEHEE
& BR 17 F Bi1F 30 A& A R #10,430,246,0007T
(ZZF = = : AR%09,759,407,0007T) * 1M fiL
REMM RO EIERDEELBRIAARE
1,089,070,000L(= T = = F: A R &
1,041,619,0007T) °

BHE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HILFE KA
BN EFPASEEFTRIGEI0%HZA EHEE
MU (ZTEZF | o

MATEFRREBRLEENLAGENEHE
ERBESHMBRRANEBMN T AGE - 1t
SEERABREBEIMOLEDR -

BAAXBREYE #ERRE(HFE18) - &
REEE (ME14)  REEEE K E15)
EE TR EI6) REREE (M E17) R
B

ADERTIEEEERUEMS ROEEET
RERARNEE - AOERERERNAE-
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDEER (&)
(Continued)

The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for

the reportable segments is as follows:

T

MATEERFEEEBE BN D HMER WM

2023
—g=-=
Sanitary  Disposable Tissue
napkins diapers paper
products products products Others Group
— ;ﬂn]#:‘_
BEMER HREER HMER Hit £E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AREFTRE ARBTR ARBTRE ARETR
Segment revenue DEBUA 6,386,582 1,316,905 14,074,820 3,426,785 25,205,092
Inter-segment sales DEHEEEHE (208,144) (62,835) (326,648) (839,529)  (1,437,156)
Revenue of the Group SEKA 6,178,438 1,254,070 13,748,172 2,587,256 23,767,936
Segment profit SEME 2,317,022 194,302 243,739 129,601 2,884,664
Unallocated costs &5 B A AR (66,180)
Other income and other gains — net  H {1 Uz A F F| 15
- B 1,159,447
Operating profit R 3,977,931
Finance income B 75 U 273,351
Finance costs MBER (646,577)

Share of net gains of investments
accounted for using the equity
method

DIERESEARZ
RE W=

699

Profit before income tax W P15 8 A1 A8 3,605,404
Income tax expense FTiS i & A (798,000)
Profit for the year FEFE 2,807,404

Non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to shareholders of

JEHE M R

ARRIERFTE AN

(R:74))

the Company FH 2,800,533
Other items for the year ended H{tIEE - HE
31 December 2023 —F=-=
+=-A=+-H
EERE
Additions to non-current assets ERBEEMIE N 287,027 89,111 1,333,481 134,269 1,843,888

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and investment

mE - BERKBR
REMEHEZRE

properties B X 159,359 545,520 60,868 814,797
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEZINEMX 12,051 25,721 10,609 54,201
Amortisation charge BERE 24,143 26 6,651 30,822
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Sanitary
napkins
products
HEMESR
RMB’000
ARETR
As at 31 December 2023 R-B=-=%
+=-HA=+-—H
Segment assets DEEE 4,297,173
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE
Current income tax recoverable — TS E BTG/
Investments accounted for using REFEARZEE
the equity method
FVPL NAnBEFEAEEY
B AEHERZNS
MEE
Long-term time deposits RHEHER
Cash and bank balances B¢ HIRITHE R
Unallocated assets KOMEE
Total assets BAE
Segment liabilities DHEaE 929,902
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFMEHRAE
Current income tax liabilities EHmEHaRE
Borrowings RS
Unallocated liabilities Ao aE
Total liabilities mEE

5 WARDHESR (&

2023
—®-=
Tissue

paper
products

Disposable
diapers
products
— R

Y PR 4 E
RMB’000
ARB TR

&
RMB*000
ARETR

1,086,481 12,384,739

269,567 3,287,919

Others

RMB’000
ARBETR

1,862,643

372,125

Group

Hit £E
RMB*000

ARBTR

19,631,036

498,460
10,915

56,854
212,370
1,438,163

18,189,943
178,160

40,215,901

4,859,513

182,386
199,438
14,237,625
107,088

19,586,050
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BE

TE-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHIEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5 WARDEER ()

(Continued)
2022
—E--
Sanitary Disposable
napkins diapers  Tissue paper
products products products Others Group
/i
BMENER HKRBEEM HHEM Hith £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Segment revenue 2 EAA 6,358,599 1,300,680 12,997,505 3,863,091 24,519,875
Inter-segment sales DEEEEHEE (202,539) (98,333) (749,494) (853,631)  (1,903,997)
Revenue of the Group EEEA 6,156,060 1,202,347 12,248,011 3,009,460 22,615,878
Segment profit D EFE 2,507,569 135,815 136,505 88,591 2,868,480
Unallocated costs ROEARAR (87,025)
Other income and other gains — net  E g A F |15
- 58 87,699
Operating profit Feq b 2,869,154
Finance income B 15 W e 445,865
Finance costs HKEAR (468,159)
Share of net losses of investments 9§ IR E A AR Z
accounted for using the equity BEEE
method (13,574)
Profit before income tax B BT {5 B BT A B 2,833,286
Income tax expense s & A (883,986)
Profit for the year FEFME 1,949,300
Non-controlling interests FEPERI A (24,051)
Profit attributable to shareholders of AR Az #EFA AEMN
the Company ) E 1,925,249
Other items for the year ended H@IER - H=E
31 December 2022 —E-C-H
+-A=+-H
ILEE
Additions to non-current assets FER BN A E I 421,283 176,090 624,414 105,419 1,327,206
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #)3% - # 28 & & {6 &
equipment and investment REHEMEZNE
properties B 171,741 42,928 532,961 52,259 799,889
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FABEEEZTERXL 13,728 3,896 26,844 9,226 53,694
Amortisation charge MY 22,992 3 42 10,373 33,410

@
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDEER (&
(Continued)
2022
—E-—F
Sanitary Disposable
napkins diapers  Tissue paper
products products products Others Group
— R
BEMERM SKERBE®D HNEm i £

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTREI ARETR ARBTT AR®TR

As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF

+=ZA=+-8
Segment assets DHEE 4,347,292 1,134,152 12,254,049 2,055,975 19,791,468
Deferred income tax assets BEEMBSHEE 532,204
Current income tax recoverable BHAEHAEH 42,168
Investments accounted for using the & EARE ZKE

equity method 43,576

FVPL WRAREEASEEE

B AZHEZNS

BMEE 212,572
Long-term time deposits RBTEBHGTR 2,895,490
Cash and bank balances ReBETES 18,667,492
Unallocated assets KPMEE 152,272
Total assets BEE 42,337,242
Segment liabilities DEHEE 1,101,507 293,649 3,162,454 432,501 4,990,111
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHAE 149,433
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHRAE 268,564
Borrowings R 17,029,952
Unallocated liabilities rAoEARE 123,445
Total liabilities BaFE 22,561,505
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S =F+-A=t+—HLEFE

HE_ZT =

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
(Continued)

(a) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to

contracts with customers:

WARDBESR (&)

() BEFENEHMNAR
AEECHANTEEFAOABNAR

As at 31 December

Contract liabilities

Sanitary napkins products
Disposable diapers products

Tissue paper products
Others

AHMEE

BmEMER
— IR AR PR AR EE
MMEm

Total contract liabilities

®R+=-ZA=+—H

2023 2022

—Eg=-= —ZE=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
139,421 123,526
30,844 26,108
324,484 257,946
45,527 46,161
540,276 453,741

The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised in the current

reporting period related to

carried-forward contract liabilities from prior year.

TRINTREBEEARSFEMEREZR
F—FEEMNEEANABR B WS

Sanitary napkins products

Disposable diapers products

Tissue paper products
Others

BEMER

— IR R PR AR EE
MM E &

Hit

k-

2023 2022

—E-=fF —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR F T
L PERYI 66,398
26,108 21,735
257,946 121,602
46,161 15,892
453,741 225,627

@
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET 6 HtWAMAGE - FE

2023 2022

— —_—— —=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Income from long-term and short-term bank time & Hi 8242 B4R 17 F B 1E X

deposits 2 WA 696,546 537,444
Government grants income (Note) AT SE By MR A (B 5) 549,621 546,165
Realised fair value gains on derivative financial B EBRITASBTEAAR(E

instruments EFNE 140,711 5,889
Gains from liquidation of a subsidiary M8 A R E W e 1,564 -
Fair value losses on FVPL NAREBEFEEEESH

AR HEENESREE
BARBEEEX -
Unrealised fair value losses on derivative financial KAEBIR/TES R T A AR E

instruments [ERiEES (31,348)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and LE - I

equipment, intangible assets, and right-of-use ~ EXRFEREEELEE X

assets (28,399) (69,245)
Exchange losses from operating activities — net & [E { 18% — JF 58 (184,325) (912,865)
Others H 2,491 11,659

1,159,447 87,699
Note: Bt -
These represented government grants received from certain municipal I IE B AN S B A A B K BE 3010 T Bk AT T i 15 0 52
governments of Mainland China as an encouragement of the Group’s B AEBEEYSmSBEERFELER -

contributions to the development of the local economy.
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BE

TE-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHIEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and distribution
costs, administrative expenses and net impairment losses on

financial assets were analysed as follows:

7 BMESENER

Raw materials and consumables used

Employee benefit expense, including Directors’
emoluments (Note 12)

Transportation and loading expenses

Marketing and advertising expenses

Utilities and various office expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 13)

Research and development expenses

Repairs and maintenance expenses

Travelling expenses

Net impairment losses on financial assets
(Note 3(a)(ii))

Tax surcharges

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 74)

Short-term and low-value lease expenses
(Note 14)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17)

Impairment charge on property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)

(Reversal of)/provision for inventories
write-down (Note 20)

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Others

1% AR MR R B FE dn
BIXNK(BRIEESHE)
(Hizt12)
BB REHER
5 K HE B R AR
AAEZERPAZER
M KERREOTE
(H17£13)
IR
HIERIREER
EIRE
CREEREEMTIE
(H1:£3(a)(i))
& K Bt n
EREEENE (Hit14)
R REEERERX
(Htat14)
BmEEEZEHE W F17)
M KERREREERS
(H1#£13)
GEREXEECRE), &R
(#t#t20)
% 8 ED BN &
- ZHRBEER
- EREBREEA
Hih

Total cost of sales, selling and distribution costs,
administrative expenses and net impairment
losses on financial assets

K TREAIREREE
BEERTIRAR

2023

—®'-=
RMB’000

ARETR

13,437,648

2,253,995
1,156,571
1,100,647

990,824

808,830
339,836
180,377
154,584

123,317
101,080
54,201

49,412
30,822

5,883

(23,387)
(241,504)

5,900
2,218
418,198

20,949,452

ERBRHERA HERDHERA  THE
RANEHMEERBERL 2MAOT:

2022
—E- %
RMB’000
AR T

12,479,033

2,134,375
1,068,499
1,067,215

867,427

793,670
353,283
145,835
134,626

19,231
94,392
53,694

74,217
33,410

13,095
83,560

5,900
1,560
411,401

19,834,423
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8 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 8 MWK EHR
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETFIT
Finance costs: MEEA -
Interest expense MEEMA
- Borrowings - f&Ex 648,597 463,922
- Lease liabilities -MHEAE 1,496 1,521
Other finance charges H b B 75 B A 11,469 13,803
Total finance costs incurred EEZHBERBRTE 661,562 479,246
Less: Finance costs capitalised in buildings 8 : B A&R(L{EAEETEH
and machinery under construction-in- BFREEREZ
progress (Note 16) B8 A (Hit16) (14,985) (11,087)
646,577 468,159
Finance income: B 75 U 25
Interest income from cash and cash ReERBRSFEDHERA
equivalents (272,469) (830,056)
Exchange gain P 5= (882) (115,809)
(273,351) (445,865)
Finance costs, net RER - F8 373,226 22,294
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the capitalisation rate BHE_Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE #—
applied to funds borrowed generally and used for the BEFEREAIERBEREIR2ESMAZ
development of construction-in-progress was 2.83% (2022: BRI ERB283% (ZEZ2F :2.10%) °

2.10%) per annum.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE

9

TE-_ZF+-_A=t+—RHIEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9 FISBEHR
The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated TEHMBRIHE2MEHERDT -
statement of profit or loss represents:
2023 2022
=== ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETFTT
Current income tax EHMEH
— Current tax on profits for the year -EHMEHRER 644,021 770,263
- PRC withholding income tax - AR BT 87,314 176,016
Deferred income tax, net (Note 30) RIEFTSH - F 88 (A i230) 66,665 (62,293)
Income tax expense gt eE A 798,000 883,986

(@)

Taxation on Mainland China income has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Mainland China in which the Group’s
subsidiaries operate. The Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China are subject to Corporate
Income Tax (“CIT”) at the rate of 25%.

Certain subsidiaries were approved to be new and
high-technology enterprises and are entitled to the tax rate of
15%.

Hong Kong and overseas profits tax has been calculated at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the regions in which the
Group operates respectively.

The profits of Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group derived
since 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at a rate
of 5% upon distribution of such profits to investors in Hong
Kong, or at a rate of 10% for other foreign investors.
Deferred income tax liabilities have been provided for in this
regard based on the expected dividends to be distributed
from the Group’s Mainland China subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits generated since
1 January 2008.

@

(@)

B K B P 1S 15 2 4% PR AN 5 [ o B OK B B
BB ZEFERNABAIZE BT
KHE - RRAER B ARERARLZ MW
B R R AR R2B% AT R EPAISH »

MOMBAREERRSHEMEE A
TR T FAB% T -

A O EL A M) S B R R A
i R R BRI DU 0 B 7T B R SR 0
4 o

AEBONPREAEMRBARE _Z2ZENF
—A—HEENNE BERAREBEIMAK
VR EEDIKRZENE - BARE%H K
BAIEH  EREMINEIREE D IRZ
SRE - BIZEIZ10%T KM AR - 0
A 38 5, 22 % IR 3 AN S 18] 9 KB PR /B /2 )
—EENF-A-HRZMBRBHRE
HEEMELBEEHBABEORE -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rates

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

FREBERE)

(d)

AEBEBRBRHRAABEORE  LRAEE
W& R BRI 2 58 R R0 B R i A A RO

applicable to profits of the Group’s companies as follows: BB 0T
2023 2022
—g=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Profit before income tax B P45 35 B AR 3,605,404 2,833,286
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable EERNEZTRANEFNIZER
to profits of the Group’s companies R R G H M B E 782,447 696,409
Tax exemption and concession on the MBARIFMESHESR
profits of certain subsidiaries (141,275) (93,112)
Expenses not deductible for income tax TAINBIEE
purposes 31,398 160,291
Withholding tax on distributed profit and FEiR M ARERFEET A
unremitted earnings B TEIRFTIS 115,134 102,347
Others H 10,296 18,051
Income tax expense Frs®i&E A 798,000 883,986

There is no tax charge relating to components of OCI.

OECD Pillar Two model rules

The Group has main operation in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macao and Malaysia. It is within the scope of the
OECD Pillar Two model rules. As of the reporting date, there
is no public announcement in Mainland China and Macao.
Hong Kong has announced that it plans to implement the
Global Minimum Tax and HKSAR Domestic Minimum Top-up
Tax starting from 2025 onwards but it is still under public
consultation with the expectation that draft legislation will be
published in the second half of 2024. Malaysia published the
draft legislation in 2023, which introduced the Pillar Two rules
with effect from 1 January 2025 and was expected to be
enacted in 2024.

Hitir AW HB LR EMBHER -

OECDH = 1R %M Al

AEBERFEAM  FEEFE - REEP
MERFEDHEETR  OECDE I HIZ%
REAMBERN - BHEREBH FERH
MBPMBEEM AL MAREESHE
AEE T RAFREREIREERER
FEEERERAS  HEDEETARE
B EERBR - NET¥EF
N EXATRCR _E_=FQ H A
ER SIAFIHERA BT _RAF
—A—HREBWIEER =T ZUFR/M

&
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BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

9

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

()

OECD Pillar Two model rules (Continued)

Since the Pillar Two legislations in the jurisdictions of
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macao and Malaysia were not
effective at the reporting date, the Group has no related
current tax exposure. The Group applies the exception to
recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes, as
provided in the amendments to HKAS 12 issued in
November 2023.

In addition, since the Pillar Two legislation in the jurisdictions
that the Group operates in was not enacted or substantively
enacted as at the reporting date, and due to the uncertainty
of the announcement of the legislation and the complexities
in applying the legislation and calculating GloBE income, the
Group is in the process of assessing its exposure to the Pillar
Two legislation for when it comes into effect.

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

9 FEHRERE

() OECDE = iR Al (&)

MR B REE - FiE RPIMERAE A
FEBERME _XHERNREBHER

B REBEYERBERITHEEAR R
BR-_ZE_=F+—-ABMNHBTESTE
AIE125E (BRD WRE - A B ERER
KA FREE — S %R*EE%E’J EETH IR
BERBEEHNOBDIIME

BEoh - AR E AR WE B HER
SEXGMAERERRE RBMIELR
fii  MRREZOER A ENNHEEMENRER
ZOER N ET EGIoBEW A REFEN - NEE
ERHEE — AR AR FAZ N ER

10 SR W &=
(a) EX

BREABBERARRRERITE ARG
SEFERAFAE BTE BB NEF
BREGHE -

2022
—_EFT-—
Profit attributable to shareholders of the 7K /A R]#E 545 5 A FE 15 8
Company (RMB’000) (AR®ETIT) 2,800,533 1,925,249
Weighted average number of ordinary B 81T i IR pn i 5 AR 2
shares outstanding (thousands) (F A 1,159,752 1,162,121
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRERKZ(ARET) 2.415 1.657

@
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

10 SR W= (&)
(b) #358
FRBEREBERAAEETEENT A
M A ig o RIBEBHEITE B2 INEFE
HREGE -

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

BE_T_-—#kr_ZT__#+_-A
ZtT—BUEFE - ARRERBRE
BEUHEEFNEAR SREFRERST
BREAW SRR - B A H B &S

B 4E
BRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, share
option schemes is the only category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares of the Company. The diluted earnings per
share is the same as the basic earnings per share as the
potential ordinary shares in respect of outstanding share
options is anti-dilutive.

11 DIVIDENDS 11 RE

2023 2022
—g=-= —ZE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Interim, paid, RMBO0.70 SR EIRR B A
(2022: RMBO0.70) per ordinary share (Note) AR¥0.707T
(Z2==%F: AR¥0.7071)
(Hrat) 813,485 813,485
Final, proposed/paid, RMB0.70 & RERR R
(2022: RMBO0.70) per ordinary share (Note) Bk AR®0.707T
(Z==—=F : AR¥0.707T)
(K1 5) 813,485 813,485
1,626,970 1,626,970

Note:

The dividends paid in 2023 amounted to RMB1,626,970,000 (2023 interim:
RMBO.70 per share, 2022 final: RMBO0.70 per share). The dividends paid in
2022 amounted to RMB1,626,970,000 (2022 interim: RMBO0.70 per share,
2021 final: RMBO0.70 per share).

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of
RMBO0.70 per share, amounting to a total dividend of RMB813,485,000,
was proposed by the Board of Directors at a meeting held on 21 March
2024, subject to the final approval by the shareholders of the Company at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 17 May 2024. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Dividends payable to shareholders will be paid in HK$. The exchange rate
adopted by the Company for its payable is the middle rate of HK$ to RMB
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the business day preceding
the date of dividend declaration. The final dividend of RMBO0.70 per share
equivalent to HK$0.771588 per share using the exchange rate of HK$ to
RMB on 20 March 2024,which is 0.90722.

Bt

T =FRERKE AR %1,626,970,000T (= F
—ZFEFHBRARKBOTOT T - —F K
BRARBOION) —E-_—FREBBEARKE
1,626,970,0007C (—ZF — —F /i : & A R ¥#0.70
T B —FKRE HRAREOTOT) °

R_E-_NEF=ZA-_+—HETWNEEEHE L &34
KE T —FREBREEFRARK.70T - LLER
B A ARH813,485,0007T * AL MEIA - T _MF
AA+TEERTNFERRERAS LNRAARERR
MEBEARE - REFVBREPREREMRKRS -

B FREAREASEIRDE - NQRRREFTERA
WEXASKEEAM—EALEAPHAARRITA
HHASEARCEERPEEBE - LT _WF=A
Z+HEABE R ARKER0722ITE - HHRK
BERARKOTOTHEEN TR E0.771588 °

&
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12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 12 ETEFNEHR
2023 2022
—Eg_-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Wages and salaries HWMITE 1,864,994 1,768,353
Retirement and social benefits cost RIR Rt 2 1@ F A 344,005 299,833
Equity-settled share-based payment LR AERZHMES N
(Note 26) (Hii+26) 44,996 66,189
Total employee benefit expense BTRHMERR 2,253,995 2,134,375
Five highest paid individuals TNESHFHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEEAEBESFNOALMATBIEM (=

Group for the year include four (2022: five) Directors whose

T 5@)?% i 1P &Y 3 B £ Y 7E3951

emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 39. The WO R s —E - =FE ORI BRIML
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2022: none) individual (ZEZ=ZF B)ATHEHOT
during the year is as follows:
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Basic salaries, other allowances share options EZANZ B - H b 2B ME Y
and benefits-in-kind A 2= -
The emoluments fell within the following bands: EHFMETIHEHSHER
Number of individuals
AB
2022
—E-F
Emolument bands o B &
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 #1,500,001 —
(2022: equivalent to RMB1,294,201 to 72,000,000 (ZE ==
RMB1,725,600; FAEER ARE,294,201

2023: equivalent to RMB1,351,651 to
RMB1,802,200)
1,351,651 TZE AR
1,802,2007T)

fci/\ﬁﬁéﬁ 725,6007T
ZEZ=F:HERARE

@
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended 31 December 2023 H#E-F-=
+=ZB=+—HLEE

At 1 January 2023 —T-=%—H—H

Additions NE

Transfer from construction-in- REZIREA
progress (Note 16) (B1at16)

Transfer to investment properties BAREHERE
(Note 15) (H7:£15)

Depreciation for the year (Note 7)  E NI & (H1727)

Impairment charges for the year B (H727)
(Note 7)

Disposals &

Currency translation differences GNEE T E

Closing net book amount FRIREFE

At 31 December 2023 R-ZBE-=%F

Z—R=+—H

Cost BN

Accumulated depreciation and ZHITERRE
impairment charges

Net book amount IR R E

Freehold
land and
buildings
T RigF

RMB’000
ARETR

2,968,969

53,005

141,432

(1,475)
(244,035)

2,910,894

5,407,906

(2,497,012)

2,910,894

13 Y%

Machinery

HRRE
RMB’000
ARETR

3,991,276

204,983

555,002

(520,890)
(5.883)
(34,066)
(1,407)

4,189,015

9,755,641

(5,566,626)

4,189,015

CHEERRE

(0] {[d
equipment,
furniture
and fixtures
WAREBER
RILKE
RMB’000
ARETR

134,214

59,220

1,958

(42,902)

(1,121)
(69)

151,300

458,650

(307,350)

151,300

Motor
vehicles

Co ]

RMB’000
ARETR

(1,003)

17,660

(13,045)

4,615

Total

a1
RMB’'000
ARBTT

7,099,255

318,296

698,392

(1,475)
(808,830)

(CR:1:5))
(43,184)
(VZY)]

7,255,824

15,639,857

(8,384,033)

7,255,824
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_BE-_=%+-A=+—BILLEE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 W WBERBREE)
(Continued)
Office
Freehold equipment,
land and furniture Motor
buildings Machinery ~ and fixtures vehicles Total
MAHZER
T REF e XILEE =) BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TIT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2022 EE-—T-C
+=ZA=+—HLEE
At 1 January 2022 —E-—_%—HF—H 3,058,861 4,074,563 160,750 2,553 7,296,727
Additions RNE 33,202 180,456 8,902 3,192 225,752
Transfer from construction-in- RERIREA
progress (Note 16) (Hti#16) 79,996 283,608 1,636 - 365,240
Transfer from investment properties # % EEEHESE A
(Note 15) (H1315) 35,585 - - - 35,585
Depreciation for the year (Note 7) SR E (f1727) (235,299) (521,821) (35,741) (809) (793,670)
Disposals k= (7,439) (27,518) (960) (191) (36,108)
Disposal of a subsidiary BEENBRA - - (554) - (554)
Currency translation differences INEFTE =5 4,063 1,988 181 51 6,283
Closing net book amount FERIEETE 2,068,969 3,991,276 134,214 4796 7,099,255
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+=ZA=+—-H
Cost AR 5,236,404 9,245,028 409,777 19,521 14,910,730
Accumulated depreciation and 2EHMERRME
impairment charges (2,267,435) (5,253,752) (275,563) (14,725) (7,811,475)
Net book amount REFE 2,968,969 3,991,276 134,214 4,796 7,099,255

@
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 M¥ - BBRIJE(E)
(Continued)
Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated REBHEERFBERIE  ESM0T -
statement of profit or loss as follows:
2023 2022
—_g=-= B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFT
Manufacturing overheads included under cost #4 & A AN AP B9 4 & £
of goods sold 580,340 575,149
Selling and distribution costs B & SR AR 7,272 7,794
Administrative expenses THER 221,218 210,727
808,830 793,670
As at 31 December 2023, property, plant and equipment with a RZBZ=F+ZA=+—HB AKENFE
carrying amount of RMB8,424,000 (cost of RMB12,895,000) are A R %8,424,0007T (R B A K #12,895,0007T)
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings of B BERREEAAEERITERARE
RMB2,281,000(2022: property, plant and equipment with a 2281000 (Z T =Z Z F: F B AR
carrying amount of RMB9,675,000 (cost of RMB13,193,000) are 9,675,0007T (R & A R #13,193,0007T) #9 %)
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings of ¥ BRERXBAFAEERTERARE

RMB4,377,000) (Note 29). 4,377,0007T) 1E 5 # (I 7529) °

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

(a) EHEERERARANEE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

—g=-= —EF-=
+ZA=+—H e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETFTT

1,160,393 1,167,972
29,831 34,109

1,190,224 1,192,081

(17,675) (18,109)
(12,948) (16,636)

14 LEASES 14 #HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
Right-of-use assets FREEE
- Land use rights - T AR
- Buildings -
Total right-of-use assets BEAEEE
Lease liabilities HEBE
- Current - nE
- Non-current - ERE
Total lease liabilities BHEAE

(30,623) (34,745)

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2023 financial year were RMB73,409,000
(2022: RMB270,699,000).

@

R-E_ZFERNFAELEEEMNARE
73,409,0000(= & = — F: A R ¥
270,699,0007T) ©



e v

BrEEE RAA
REMESCERRR 175

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

14 LEASES (Continued) 14 HE (&)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

(b) EHFRIARAERN

EHMBEREIATAEHHEEZ 28

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=%F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥ETT

33,513 31,035
20,688 22,659

54,201 53,694

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEAENE
(Note 7) (K1 &7)
- Land use rights - T H AR
- Buildings - M

Interest expense (Note 8) MEF > (H:E8)

1,496 1,521

Short-term and low-value lease expenses 2 Hi MK (BEME EH X
(Note 7) (Bt77)

74,217

The total cash payment for leases in the year ended
31 December 2023 was RMB71,297,000 (2022:
RMB98,178,000), excluding the cash payment for land-use
rights.

RZEZ=F+-A=+—HIEhALH
FRRMIAORSN FEFHEEEN
BeNRBEAARET1,297,000L (=
— =% : AR¥98,178,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REMEME
2023 2022
—Eg=-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBEF T
At 1 January mn—H—H
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 166,696 216,293
Currency translation differences SN E ERR (226) 321
Transfer from/(to) property, plant and M KERLHEAS
equipment (Note 13) () (#i13) 1,475 (35,585)
Transfer from/(to) right-of-use assets FREEESE A (EH) 1,382 (8,114)
Depreciation for the year FAFE (5,967) (6,219)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 163,360 166,696
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H
Cost (DN 257,289 252,611
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RHTERRE
charges (CER:P1)] (85,915)
Net book amount R EDF (A 163,360 166,696
The above investment properties are located in Fujian, Guangxi, LT REUEEHEMNTRERE - BERE
Sichuan, Chongging, Guizhou, Shanghai and Tianjin the PRC, milE -EFm - EME - EBMERENH
Selangor and Johor, Malaysia, and depreciated on a straight-line BIRFE T ZEIM - ZHMN - LAERIEE20-40
basis over 20 to 40 years. FHE -
The Group’s investment properties are stated at historical cost at AEENKREEEEN SRS HRRE LK
the end of each reporting period. RARR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 BEMEME (&)
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties REUEEHECEBEZANEROEEOT -

are as follows:

2023 2022

—g=-= TEC

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFRT AR¥ETT

Rental income e WA 35,919 36,327
Direct operating expenses BEEENAN (5.806) (6,324)

Net book amount R E B 30,113 30,003

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated AEBFEERAHABRODTEATER
statement of profit or loss as follows:

2023 2022

—g=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEF T

Other income and other gains — net Emg AFIF G - F 5 5,967 6,219

16 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS 16 T I =

2023 2022

—g=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREETF T

At 1 January R—A—H 969,210 509,647

Additions NE 1,437,839 821,154

Currency translation differences SN T B =R 1,969 3,649

Transfer to property, plant and equipment BAYE - KENERE

(Note 13) (H1713) (698,392) (365,240)

At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 1,710,626 969,210
During the year ended 31 December 2023, finance costs HE_Z-_=F4+-_A=+—HLFE £&
capitalised in construction-in-progress amounted to TEBEEEEANMZBERNEABREAEARE
RMB14,985,000 (2022: RMB11,087,000) (Note 8). 14,985,0007C (= & = — £ : A R #11,087,000

7C) (B 5E8) ©

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BEEE

Trademarks Customer Computer

Goodwill and licences relationships software Total
HE BERLE EFRH B ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARBTRE ARBTR ARETRT ARETR

At 1 January 2023 R-Z-_=%—A—H

Cost X 2N 488,290 33,345 58,945 230,565 811,145
Accumulated amortisation Rt #s = (29,890) (28,661) (95,618) (154,169)
Net book amount R FE 488,290 3,455 30,284 134,947 656,976

Year ended 31 December BE-S—-=

2023 +-A=+—-BLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFME 488,290 30,284 134,947 656,976
Additions RE = = 14,344 14,344
Amortisation charge for the year # 4% F

(Note 7) (H#7) (5.894) (24,273) (30,822)
Closing net book amount HARREFE 488,290 24,390 125,018 640,498
At 31 December 2023 RNZEZ=ZF

+=ZRA=+-H

Cost X 2N 488,290 11,212 58,945 244,908 803,355
Accumulated amortisation Eg 3 = (8,412) (34,555) (119,890) (162,857)
Net book amount IR (A 488,290 2,800 24,390 125,018 640,498
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 B EE (&)
Trademarks Customer Computer
Goodwill  and licences  relationships software Total
BHE ARKAR EPHER BEE Fo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARB®TRH ARETT ARBTRT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—A—H

Cost B AR 488,290 32,456 58,945 267,540 847,231
Accumulated amortisation RETEH - (24,657) (22,766) (75,030) (122,453)
Net book amount 1R EFE 488,290 7,799 36,179 192,510 724,778

Year ended 31 December 2022 EHE_-ZT -
+ZA=+—HLIFE

Opening net book amount FUMREFE 488,290 7,799 36,179 192,510 724,778
Additions wNE - 908 - 8,693 9,601
Amortisation charge for the year # §4& f

(Note 7) (B at7) - (5,233) (5,895) (22,282) (83,410)
Disposals & - - - (43,903) (43,903)
Disposal of a subsidiary BEENBRAR - (19) - (71) (90)
Closing net book amount H 5 IR % 1 488,290 3,455 30,284 134,947 656,976
At 31 December 2022 RWZE——

+-A=+—8

Cost B AR 488,290 383,345 58,945 230,565 811,145
Accumulated amortisation RETEH - (29,890) (28,661) (95,618) (154,169)
Net book amount 1REFE 488,290 3,455 30,284 134,947 656,976
Amortisation has been charged to administrative expenses in the BHEEREMHABEROITHRERIIEE -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

17

18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

The Directors have performed an impairment review of the
carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2023 and have
concluded that no provision for impairment is required. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been
allocated to the lowest level of CGUs identified by business

segments.

A summary of goodwill by reporting segment is presented below:

17

AR J:l:/ ﬁ E (/é%)

8RB

é%AEﬁEAfo_EwL AR=+—Hz®
BIREERIBE SmASHERE-  BRE
AAMmME  BEES Eﬂi$’§lh¢z¥ﬁi”*ﬁiﬂ

DZBENBRSEEET

HEEORNKEDBBEINRNOT

MM E @
Hits

Tissue paper products
Others

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. The calculation of goodwill on the tissue
paper product segment uses cash flow projections based on
financial estimates made by the Directors, with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, covering a period of five years and
assuming revenue growth rate is 4.6% (2022: 4.6%) and gross
profit margins ranging from 23.0% to 25.0% (2022: 23.0% to
25.0%). The long-term growth rate is 2.0% (2022:2.0%). The cash
flows are extrapolated with reference to the production capacity of
the cash generating units acquired. The cash flow projections are
discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of 12.3% (2022: 12.4%) per
annum. Based on management’s assessment results, there was no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and
any reasonable change to the key assumptions would not lead to
an impairment.

PREPAYMENTS FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS
The balance represented prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and land use rights.

@

18

2023 2022
—g-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
479,713 479,713
8,577 8,577
488,290 488,290
REELELNTREBERIEFEAEE

H-®MEBOAELANARSRERR -

WREERBNTHER KBEESHENAF
HYBRRERBRFEEERERI6N(ZF

ZZF 1 4.6%) MEFEREE23.0% &25.0%
T F 1 23.0%E25.0%) c REIIERR A
20%(—FB-—4F: 2 o%)fﬁéi/.’%%}%ﬁﬁﬁﬁé

HETHEENEERE -BEREEAHR

#E12.8% (=T = = -124%)%&5u¢ﬂ$5\5

B EAREEEMNTH BE_T_=FK=

T_—_F+-_A=t+—HLEFE" ZSE@ﬂ?ﬁ

ERE BENAENERRIBCEHTE

BEEERE -

FRBEERMK
EAEABRTPOENRREBEDE  #8
CSERE L



e v

BREREEEFRAF

—EZFEFR 181

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& Ot B 75 3R |/ B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 €@ T A
(a) Assets (a) BE
2023 2022
—E'-= —ZE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBKATENESRHEE
- Trade and other receivables, - FEWER R R H b fE
excluding prepayments and value WK N RERA
added tax recoverable R N AR NG (E T 3,059,585 3,614,611
- Restricted bank deposits - BRHRITFR 300 302
- Long-term bank time deposits - RERITE BF 5K
(Note 23) (K1 7#23) 1,438,163 2,895,490
- Cash and bank balances (Note 23) -RERBITFR
(H:t23) 18,189,943 18,667,492
FVPL (Note 24) NAREBEFEEEE
AEHEENERMEE
(Kt it24) 212,370 212,572
Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) PTHESR T A (ft22) = 1,490
Total &&t 22,900,361 25,391,957
(b) Liabilities (b) &1&
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR T
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RESRK AT ENESRAE
- Trade and other payables, excluding — FE IR B K H b FE A
non-financial liabilities KK TEIEED
8B 4,127,631 4,345,112
- Borrowings (Note 29) ~- &R (Kt 5£29) 14,237,625 17,029,952
- Lease liabilities (Note 14) -BEaBEMWZ14) 30,623 34,745
Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) PTELR T A K z22) 15,548 32,838
Total = 18,411,427 21,442,647
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

20 INVENTORIES

20 78

2023 2022
—g-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T

1,940,546 1,699,042
2,159,099 2,629,516
252,396 216,377

Finished goods 2K o

Raw materials JR M 8

Spare parts and consumables e 14 208 #E fn
Total =11

4,352,041 4,544,935

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in
cost of goods sold amounted to RMB13,196,144,000 (2022:
RMB12,562,593,000).

The Group reversed a provision for inventories of RMB23,387,000
(2022: provided RMB13,095,000). These amounts have been
included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss (Note 7).

@

GFEXRATHERABERAILINABEERATHE
2B A AR13,196,144,000c (Z 2= —F : A
R #12,562,593,0007T) °

AL E B 17 B R E 2 5 A R 23,387,000
(ZZZZF : 512 AR#13,005,0007T) ° % &
HOBEEEAMFIERNEERAFR (HE7) °
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21 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

21 BYWIRR - EREBREMERRK
ANERRARRE

Trade receivables
Bills receivables

Less: provision for impairment

Trade and bills receivables, net

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
— Advance payments to suppliers
— Value added tax recoverables
— Interest income receivables
— Government grants receivables
— Prepaid expenses
— Others

Less: provision for impairment

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits,
net

Trade, bills and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

2023 2022
—g-= —F-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT AREF T

JE U BR 3R 2,711,595 2,968,424

e E B 7,403 24,710

2,718,998 2,993,134

W B (165,641) (61,247)

FEWERER R EWER - F88 2,553,357 2,931,887
HEmEWR - BRERRES

- FENERR - HER 666,531 722107

- ARG ER 489,767 468,346

- FEUF B 280,284 425,662

—- FE BT BB A 211,000 228,790

-FEBA 40,880 47,071

- Hi 28,428 28,272

1,716,890 1,920,248

B EEE (13,484) -
EmEWRR BRERRES

- B8 1,703,406 1,920,248

JEUWER R - R RSB R E A
FEW - BRER KRS 4,256,763 4,852,135
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

21 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
Part of the Group’s sales are on open account with credit terms
ranging from 30 days to 90 days. At 31 December, the aging
analysis of the trade and bills receivables based on invoice date
was as follows:

BUWERER - BUWEEREMERK
EARRUARES (2)
REEBRDHEEUDRZZEAN#ET  FEH
BIOKXEOX - R+ -_B=+—8 BREXR
REREEREZZAHTEZERD TN
T

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E- =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Within 30 days 30K LA A
31-180 days 31-180K
181-365 days 181-365K
Over 365 days 365K A £

937,106 961,667
1,517,859 1,724,960
88,922 189,311
175,111 117,196

2,718,998 2,993,134

As credit terms are short and most of the trade and bills
receivables are due for settlement within one year, the carrying
amounts of these balances approximated their fair values as at the
balance sheet date.

Information about the impairment of trade, bills and other
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3(a).

@

B 7 B R B A2 B A BE e K BB 0 1O B UK
RRANBREROR —FAIHEE REE
BEXRABEERFOR A EEEREEEBL -

BRI I E At B OR (B &
AEBEERR - 5MNER B R X E RS E R
A EE3(a) ©
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22
These amounts represented the fair value of foreign currency
options, foreign currency forwards, foreign currency swap
contracts and interest rate swap contracts entered into with
banks. These contracts are regarded as derivative financial
instruments.

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

TTEE®MIA

AT BERREELRITITZINIMNEDRE &
HISMNER K  INEEBMANENEEHENZ
RABEE - BLEAORERITESHM TR -

2023 2022
—E-=f —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Assets: BE:

Interest rate swap contracts FEFIHAE L 1,490

Liabilities: BfE:

Foreign currency options HNEE HA 42 -

Foreign currency forwards SNERERE A -

Foreign currency swap contract HNE B A (32,838)
(15,548) (32,838)

Total &t (15,548) (31,348)

Non-hedging derivatives are classified as current assets or
liabilities.

For information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives, please refer to Note 3(c).

LONG-TERM BANK TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH 23
AND BANK BALANCES

BEUHRTEEREROBARBDEEXRAG -

BRRTTESRTIERAEBAENAEAMNRR
L& B2 AME3(0)

RERTEHERNRERETHE

Eh
TA

2023 2022
—g-= —F-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARET T

1,438,163 2,895,490

10,168,187 12,678,889
8,021,756 6,088,603

18,189,943 18,667,492

Long-term bank time deposits RERITEHER
Cash and bank balances RERBITHER

- Bank time deposits - IRITEHTER

- Cash and cash equivalents -HekBEEEEYD
Total &5t

19,628,106 21,662,982
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

23 LONG-TERM BANK TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)
The cash and cash equivalents represented cash deposits held at
call with banks and in hand and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits as at 31 December
2023 was approximately 4.16% (31 December 2022: 3.63%) per
annum.

The carrying amounts of the long-term bank time deposits and
cash and bank balances were denominated in the following
currencies:

23 EERTEHERNRERETHE

(&)
ReRRSEMNBIRITBAER  FAR
&5 K5I E B Z A S T BB R
BHE -

R-TE-_=ZF+-"A=+—8H 87
FRELD4A6% (ZE__F+= HEJr B :
3.63%) °

REIRITERFRANR S MRTF RO IREE
AT EERER-

2023 2022
—g-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Long-term bank time deposits RERITEHER
RMB AR 1,050,000 1,910,000
us$ ETT 388,163 985,490
Total &5t 1,438,163 2,895,490
Cash and bank balances HERBITHER
RMB AR 9,667,598 10,828,245
us$ ETT 8,157,090 7,574,779
HK$ ot 162,930 74,387
Others Hifb 202,325 190,081
Total &5t 18,189,943 18,667,492

The Group’s bank deposits and cash denominated in RMB, US$
and HK$ are mainly deposited with banks in the PRC. The
conversion of these RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

@

AEENARYE XTI MBERTERLRS
DERBEARZRIT BhEE AREE M
BRI ELE S E DT EER D P EBTHIN
PEE IR ATEE
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24 U A A EBEFTEBEEEFHT AERH
PROFIT OR LOSS BEEWERmEE
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit NWAnBEAEAEZEHTAZHETH SR
or loss include the following: BERIE:

2023 2022
—g=-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Non-current assets RBEE
Unlisted preference shares R ETEE LR 212,370 212,572
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 g A
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EETRBELRR

Number
RMB’'000
ARETR

of shares

k88

R-ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—8HK
—E-—F+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022

1,162,120,917

123,345

26 U AERZHE
AKARR—_E——FHEA-_+NB(ZZ——
FHE)EXBBERETE - BiFEHTE
FEENEKENREBERERE - B LB
MITEEREAREDABERMIME - BEEEM
EBERITEBRIEE BREBIAR - AEH
WX FS TS AR SR &R
o

26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 26 May 2011
(2011 Scheme”). Pursuant to the scheme, share options had
been granted to the Directors and selected employees. The
options granted will be forfeited if the Directors and employees
leave the Group before the options are exercisable. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

&
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26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

26 URODBERCME (E)
KT 608 AR 0 B R B 2 I T 19 7T (2 (B

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: REEmT -
2022
—B-= —E-CfF
Average exercise Average exercise
price in HK$ per Options price in HKS$ per Options
share (thousands) share (thousands)
BREYTEE FEIRHE BRFGITEE B
B Fat ke Fat
At 1 January n—A—H 45.34 51,606 75.88 10,972
Granted (i) 2 T() - 41.48 44,747
Granted (i) B2 F i) - 40.30 1,526
Lapsed or forfeited B K 72.75 (5,639)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 45.34 51,606

The Board of Directors announced that on 18 January 2022
(“date of grant”), 44,747,000 share options to subscribe for a
total of 44,747,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company were granted to certain
directors and employees of the Group, under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 May 2021.
The validity period of the share options shall be from the date
of grant to 17 January 2026 and the share options shall
lapse at the expiry of the validity period. The share options
granted shall be exercisable during the following periods: (a)
up to 30% of the share options shall be exercisable from
18 January 2023 to 17 January 2024, (b) additional 30% of
the share options shall be exercisable from 18 January 2024
to 17 January 2025, (c) the remaining 40% of the share
options shall be exercisable from 18 January 2025 to
17 January 2026.

@

EZGEM 0 RIBEARRN2021F5717H
RANE R RERT & - 20221 A18H ([#%
FTH]) MASEETEEFLEERT
44,747,00017 B8 B 4 - 3R BB A $£44,747,000
B ERAY - BRI AR0.10/ T o IR = HAE M
BRI AR T2 BEE2026F1 A17H @ K&
ZHREEREE BRI - B THER
RERTE DA T BRI 1T - (2)30% 1Y i AR 7]
E2023F1 518H £2024F1 A17H B 17
55 - (b) 5 HN30% #Y i A% 1 A 7220241 A18
HZE2025F1 A178 8R171E © (0)#% T40%
/) % 19 7] 7£2025F1 A18H £2026% 1817
AHIR T -
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26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

(i)

The Board of Directors announced that on 21 December 2022
(“date of grant”), 1,526,000 share options to subscribe for a
total of 1,526,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company were granted to certain
employees of the Group, under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 21 December 2022. The validity
period of the share options shall be from the date of grant to
21 December 2026 and the share options shall lapse at the
expiry of the validity period. The share options granted shall
be exercisable during the following periods: (a) up to 30% of
the share options shall be exercisable from 21 December
2023 to 20 December 2024, (b) additional 30% of the share
options shall be exercisable from 21 December 2024 to
20 December 2025, (c) the remaining 40% of the share
options shall be exercisable from 21 December 2025 to
20 December 2026.

Out of the 51,606,000 outstanding options (31 December
2022: 51,606,000), 19,215,000 options (31 December 2022:
5,333,000) were exercisable as at 31 December 2023.

Based on fair value of the underlying ordinary shares, the
Group uses binomial model to determine the fair value of the
share options as of the grant date. Key assumptions are set
as below:

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

26 LR AERME (E)

(i)

EEGEM  BIEA R AR20226012 F21
AR g R AT & - 72022912 A21H
([H#FHD MAEEETREREZ D
1,526,00017 ¥ f% 1 - 3R 84 #£1,526,0000%
Lk - FIRARIEA0A0E T - EIRIENS
WER A T B R 220265124218 » AR
TER 8 S JE M B ARk o R T a9 BE AR A AT
£ LA HA R AT 1 ¢ (2)30% 19 B8 A% #E A] 7
2023F 12 A21H £2024F 12 520H B 17
- (b) 5 N30%H) B AR % 7] 7E2024F 12 A
218 E2025% 124208 M 171 - )% T
40% ) % 1 0] #E20254 12 A 21 B 220264
12H20H BRI 771 »

EHZE2023%F12A318 * £51,606,000
MERITEERE (2022912 A31
H : 51,606,000f7) # ' 19,215,000 %
# (2022912 A31H : 5,333,00019) &J1T
fi# o

REBELTERNAAEE  NEERA

“EABNEETRERTANBRENR
REE- - BARERDT:

Key assumptions

A 82 R 5%

Options Options
granted on granted on
18 January 21 December

2022 2022
—E-—F —E-—F
—A+N\H +-—A=-+—H
Ry B Ry B

Fair value at grant date
Share price at grant date
Exercise price

Risk free interest rate
Dividend vyield

Expected volatility (Note)
Expected life (in years)

RERHREER
TEE

B b A B X

it B 2 2

T8 HA K 8 = (K7 &)
TR HA A A HA (5F)
Note: The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is determined based on
the average weekly trading price volatility of the shares of
the Company.

REBMORAREE

HK$2.63-HK$3.84 HK$4.01-HK$4.97

HK$38.65 HK$40.30
HK$41.48 HK$40.30
0.68%-1.22% 3.51%-4.05%
4.88% 5.83%
24%-25% 23%-25%
2-4 24

TEERM B K - LATAHI AR (B [ 3R A I 24
ZHE REARNBRESAEATHRS
ER R RHETE -

By it -
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26

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

26 LRI AERZME (E)

EFEFRITEBERENIHBMITEE D
T~

Exercise price Options (thousands)

Expiry date — 17 January 2024 HEA -—F-_mF—A++H
Expiry date — 20 December 2024 E|EiH - — T =—WOMF+=-A=+H
Expiry date — 17 January 2025 R -—=-_hAF—A++tH
Expiry date — 5 October 2025 HEA - _75_3i¢+ﬂ HE
Expiry date — 20 December 2025 E|HH - —Z-AF+=-A=+H
Expiry date — 17 January 2026 HEA - :;:_/\ﬁfﬂ +tH
Expiry date — 20 December 2026 E|HiA - - <XF+=-A=+H

The total amount of the fair value of share options granted to
Directors and selected employees is expensed over the vesting
period. The share-based compensation expense for the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB44,996,000 (2022:
RMB66,189,000) (Note 12), and the remaining unamortised fair
value of approximately RMB25,153,000 (2022: RMB67,168,000)
will be charged to the consolidated income statement in the future
years.

The maximum number of shares available for issue after
considering the share options already granted under the 2021
Scheme are 71,480,742, which are not more than 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
approval of the 2021 Scheme.

The Board approved a share award scheme(the Scheme) on
11 September 2023. The Scheme is pursuant to which existing
Shares will be purchased by the trustee of the Scheme(the
Trustee) from the secondary market out of cash contributed by
the Company. During the period between 11 September 2023
and 31 December 2023 (both dates inclusive), the Trustee of the
scheme purchased an aggregate of 15,000,000 Shares on the
open markets for the purpose of the Scheme. During the period
between 1 January 2024 and 19 January 2024 (both dates
inclusive), the Trustee of the scheme purchased an aggregate of
2,800,000 Shares on the open markets for the purpose of the
Scheme.

in HK$ per fa IR R
share option 2022
TEE
BREES —TZ=F
() TR Fi
41.48 13,424 13,424
40.30 458 458
41.48 13,424 13,424
79.20 5,333 5,333
40.30 458 458
41.48 17,899 17,899
40.30 610 610
51,606 51,606
EEREHENEEEENERENAAEBE
BeBETEFHEARRAER -BEZZT
T+ A+ BLEFE EENAAE
B AN R #44,996,0000t (= T = = &F:
66,189,0007T) (Mi5E12) « FeA R CE N A R
BE#H A AR K25153,000C(= & = = F:

67,168,0007T) 2R @ ERE A FFEE -

NHReERE2BRE RE-_T - —F537
BT 2R BB EIRR71,480,7420% - it B 6L
W ARKRR & B EE B AR R AETRA
#10% °

EEEgRE_=FNA+—BHEH—E\ERD
HENETE - BIEBEZTE - ZAt8NIZEA (R
NUARFHEZREB - AMZEERA
B% 15 o #£2023F9H11H =2023F12HA31H I+
(EEEMXR) XTABKRLHMESEFHEE
15,000,0000% ° #£202441 51 H £20244 17 19
E(EEEMX) XTABRAHMISES
i E2,800,0000% °
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BE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE

27 OTHER RESERVES 27 Hibhf# &
Shares
held for share Capital Share-based
award  redemption Statutory Compensation Exchange
schemes reserve reserves reserve reserve Total
e 3 82 B =t 8 EXEE
iR 4 1] EEHE BRERE B Gk @

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT AR%®TRT AR®FRT AREBFR

(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Hfi(a) (Bizt b)) (i)

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—H—H 2,444,450 399,049 297,597 3,143,018
Other comprehensive income  E 47 4 Ye 2
- currency translation -NEMEER
differences 22,643 22,643
Employee share option BIBREE
schemes:
- value of employee -BIRKERE
services 44,996 44,996
Employee share award B IRG RE &
schemes:
- shares withheld for - R @ IR
share award schemes & 15 (368,969)

Appropriation to statutory BEERE M E28)
reserves (Note 28)

Liquidation of subsidiaries BENE LA
At 31 December 2023 RZZBZ=%
+=A=+-A (368,969) 2,483,742 444,045 320240 2,880,980
At 1 January 2022 N\—_E2-—_F—A—H - 1,922 2,352,539 332,860 175,327 2,862,648
Other comprehensive income  E 47 & Yt 2
- currency translation -NEIEEE
differences - - - - 122,270 122,270
Employee share option B TR ET &)
schemes:
- value of employee -BIRBER
services - - - 66,189 - 66,189
Appropriation to statutory BEEIRE (W 28)
reserves (Note 28) - - 92,385 - - 92,385
Liquidation of subsidiaries BENBAR - - (474) - - (474)
At 31 December 2022 jp
+-A=+—H - 1,922 2,444,450 399,049 297,697 3,143,018
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BE

— =

ZE+ZA=+—HIEFE

27 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

28

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Share Scheme Trust
withheld 15,000,000 ordinary shares (2022: none) of the Company for
an amount of approximately RMB368,969,000 (2022: none), which
had been deducted from the equity.

Statutory reserves represent statutory surplus reserve of the subsidiary
companies in Mainland China. The Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China are required to make appropriations
to statutory reserves from their profit for the year after offsetting
accumulated losses carried forward from prior years as determined
under Mainland China accounting regulations and before distribution
to shareholders. The percentages to be appropriated to such
statutory reserve are determined according to the relevant regulations
in Mainland China at rate of 10% or at the discretion of the board of
Directors of Mainland China subsidiaries, and further appropriation is
optional when the accumulated fund is 50% or more of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries.

Exchange reserve of the Group represents the difference arising from
the translation of the financial statements of companies within the
Group that have a functional currency different from RMB, the
presentation currency of the financial statements of the Group.

27 Hft R (&)

B st

(a)

E-T

# =F+tZA=+—BLEEFE BKH
2B T &= 751X 3115,000,000 F& A A &) i A%
(ZTZZ_F: 8 a8BHODARARE
368,969,000(= T == : &) EHNREEAH
TS R HIRR o
REBEFEREBTIEAEER P B KRB
REETERBBARES HEFRBEKEEMORQA
FERSEETEVBREMERAFFE (K
NAFEHRFTERE) S Ry RFDETFRE
Al BIBRIBUARBE T EERES - PEAA
RAIREFEORBEFBE - BRVEE R
FEEEIBFREM10% o L3I AR IR Bl X
AIHTEMBRAREESGRERTE - & A A
A TE BB R R R R E 5 A AR 50% 5 -
ASIRENTE -

ok 12

AEBELFRDEIETEAARB SRS
B2ERBERBRNMBHRRILB|EARE M E
ZESER-

RETAINED EARNINGS 28 B W=
2023 2022
—g-= TE-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
At 1 January w—A—H 16,257,244 16,051,047
Profit for the year F B 2,800,533 1,925,249
Appropriation to statutory reserves (Note 27) #1E55E w1 (B 5127) (39,292) (92,385)
2022/2021 final dividends paid (Note 11) T /- —FPR
RNEARR B (KraE11) (813,485) (813,485)
2023/2022interim dividends paid (Note 11) TE-=E/"F -2k
HhEARR S (A1) (813,485) (813,485)
Liquidation of subsidiaries BEEHB AR - 474
Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries  [ff B 2 7] 4 25 & &)
without change of control (171)
At 31 December WR+—A=+—8H 17,391,515 16,257,244

@
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29 &

Non-current
Long-term bank loans — unsecured (a)
Long-term bank loans — secured (a)

Current

Short-term bank loans — unsecured (a)

Current portion of long-term bank loans
— unsecured (a)

Trust receipt bank loans (a)

Current portion of other borrowings
— unsecured (a)

Current portion of long-term bank loans
— secured (a)

Total borrowings

(@) Bank loans and other borrowings
The carrying amounts of the bank
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
HKS$
uUss$
Other currencies

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
FEFEH
EHIRTER - B @) 330,250 1,999,000
RHRITER - EiF(a) 180 2,334
330,430 2,001,334
7||.§§
HHERITER - EE @ 10,621,301 14,319,923
EHRTERNRE IS
- &K () 2,862,500 415,433
RITIRIE B K (a) 421,293 206,419
EMmERNRB B
- | () 84,800
RHRTERNRE IS
- K (a) 2,101 2,043
13,907,195 15,028,618
= 14,237,625 17,029,952
(a) RITERRHEMER
borrowings are HITERRHEMEROREENR T EE
BEAL
2023 2022
—E-=5F —F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
AR # 9,143,864 8,876,487
g 4,962,351 6,811,413
E7T - 1,259,556
HEtEk 131,410 82,496
14,237,625 17,029,952
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a) Bank loans and other borrowings (Continued)
At 31 December, the Group’s long-term bank borrowings are
repayable as follows:

29 {:H:/TA(/'/\
(@ RTERREMERE)

RtZA=1+—R SEZEHRITER
ZEEHMAT

2023 2022
—g-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T

Between 1 and 2 years —FEMmEF
Between 2 and 3 years MR =F
Between 3 and 5 years —FHARF

16,127 2,001,150
283,053 184
31,250 -

330,430 2,001,334

As at 31 December 2023, the effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans and other borrowings is approximately
2.83% (2022: 2.10%) per annum.

As all the long-term bank loans and other borrowings charge
interest at fixed rates, the carrying amounts of the bank loans
and other borrowings approximated their fair values as at the
balance sheet dates.

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of RMB2,281,000
(81 December 2022: RMB4,377,000) were pledged by the
property, plant and equipment (carrying amount of
RMB8,424,000 (31 December 2022: RMB9,675,000) and cost
of RMB12,895,000 (31 December 2022: RMB13,193,000))
(Note 13).

The Group has complied with all loan covenants throughout
the reporting period.

@

R-E-_=F+-_F=+—H AEHR
TERREBEZRNEREN B XY
283%(ZZF==—F :210%) °

Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁ,&m&ﬁﬁﬂh K19 R A ]
EMBE  FURTERLEMERRNE
fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ@éﬁ’&ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ

—E - =FAREEFEARYES,424,000
7L (202212 A31H : 9,675,0007T)( R (&
A R #12,895,0007t (20224 12H31H
13,193,000 ) I ¥ 2 - B R HZE AN
& 3 4R 17 18 XA K #2,281,0007T (20224
12A318 : 4,377,0007t) (K1 7£13) 1E4K I ©

AEERNREHNETHEERRL -
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 B (#E)
(b) Super short-term commercial papers (b) BiEHmMES
During 2023, following super short-term commercial papers RIEZ=F LUTHEERESFZETT
were issued and matured: EIH§
Interest rate  Expiration term Mature date Amount
Fl = FI A HBR A o]
RMB’000
ARETFIT
2318 %2 B B SCP001 2.40% 180 days 2023-08-27 1,500,000
180K
2318 % B B SCP002 2.40% 178 days 2023-09-28 2,000,000
178K
2318 %2 B B SCP003 2.39% 180 days 2023-11-08 1,000,000
180K
2318 % B K SCP004 2.39% 179 days 2023-11-17 500,000
179K
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 IEIETER
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BRLEMSEHEENRBEEMGSHABEY TH
liabilities are as follows: N
2023 2022
—FT=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T
Deferred income tax assets BEEFIBHEE
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered — Bi@121E A & U @ /) IR T
more than 12 months FISEE 312,895 386,617
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered —- TE121E A AUy (Bl A9 iR IE
within 12 months FRiS & E 185,565 145,587
498,460 532,204
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFRHBHEE
- Deferred tax liability to be settled — BiB121E A 1& Y e B IR T
more than 12 months FRiSH B & (29,341) (31,282)
- Deferred tax liability to be settled — FE12{6 A A 4 [E] #Y 3R AT
within 12 months iEHaE (153,045) (118,151)
(182,386) (149,433)
Deferred income tax assets — net IBEFBH - F8 316,074 382,771

&
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:

30 EEFTEH ()

BEMSHRENEZBNT

2023
—g-=

RMB’000

ARETR

2022

—_—

RMB’000
AR®TIT

At 1 January wn—A—H

(Charge)/credit to consolidated statement of £ & #f FE &K & (30k ),

382,771

(66,665)
(32)

320,129

62,293
349

profit or loss B
Currency translation differences INEITE ERR
At 31 December wn+=—A=+—8H

316,074

382,771

The movements in the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Unrealised profit in
inventories arising from

intra-group transactions
EEBRAEEN
BEZAERAE

2023 2022

2023 2022 2023 2022

FRN BEFMSHEEMBECOREEEEH
AER-BHEREHE OZEHIT

BEFBHEE:
Provisions Tax losses
i RithiE

Total

e

2023 2022

bl T F Bebdebfl T —F Bebdeicholl T —F Bebdeichol T CF

RMB'000 JESIVEHeW RMB'000 JEGIVIEK(SN RMB'000 [SIVIERN)
I RRl AR T PNl A ST T PNahRel AR T PNGEES KT

At 1 January w—RA—H 113,923 142,661

Currency translation differences NEREESR
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A HHEXRF &L/
statement of profit or loss (18) 16,473 (28,738)

@

31,664 27,861 386,617 374,240

(52) 102

23,557 3,701 (73,722) 12,377

At 31 December R+-A=+—-8H 130,396 113,923 55,169 31,664 312,895 386,617 498,460

532,204 544,762

(33,692)

RMB’000 RMB’000

(52) 102

532,204
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

30 EEFTEH ()

Tax effect of fair value

Withholding income tax on adjustments on assets

unremitted earnings in recognised upon business

BEFEHER:

Tax effect of fair value

PRC subsidiaries combination Accelerated depreciation change on FVPL Total
NAREEHRERES
BhXELHHE REBERREENEE FAERRRNEHMEEY
AT X HHRERAGH ZARBEAE MERE AREELBZRBHE a5
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ot debb-l T - F ebdeicbdll T F Bebtdeichill T F Bebtdmickll T -7 kel T - F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT PNGEE \R%ETT PNSEEwl \RETT PSR ARETT PNSEEw \RETT PNSR
At 1 January w-A-8 113,319 33,458 35,634 2,656 2,011 - 149,433 224,633
Currency translation differences ~ SMEHEZH () (247) - (20) (247)
Charged/(credited) to EAHFERTMR/
consolidated statement of (E&)
profit or loss (73,669) (2,077) (2,176) 892 - 32,973 (74,953)
At 31 December “+=R=+—H 141,139 31,381 2,637 2,666 - 182,386 149,433

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB12,906,000 (2022:
RMB6,533,000) in respect of losses amounting to RMB78,219,000
(2022: RMB39,595,000), which are not subject to expiration and
can be carried forward against future taxable income.

The Group has been providing deferred income tax liabilities on
the withholding income tax on certain amount of the unremitted
earnings of some PRC subsidiaries following the dividend
distribution plan of the Company. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, deferred income tax liabilities of RMB204,367,000 have not
been recognised for the withholding income tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
in the PRC. The unremitted earnings will be
permanently reinvested, amounting to RMB4,087,338,000 as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

subsidiaries

WA RINEERRAABRELEMEHEENEE
REEEBRRUEELENARERHFEEERD
A B8 75 765 ) 2 1 R AR o AN &R B R 3t 4 O AP
RAA FHEBLIEHERARBERBMBANEBLRA
R 78219000 (=— & — — F: A R &
39,595,000) ERIEILEFTEHREE AR E
12,906,0007T (= & = = 4 : A R %6,533,000
JL) °

AEBREARNBRANSRETE - $ETFTER
B AR MARERFMBERINRBAEHTIZE
EFRENaE - BE_E-_=ZERK T -
+ZA=+-—HB AEEVARETEAKEB
NAEIMRERFBEE TSI NNIERAEHME
IR FERIEIE FT 1S 1 & & A R 204,367,000
Lot ERBRIESHBIERPHRE - RN =
T CFRZECFF+ A=+ —HBHKE
Uk A A R 4,087,338,0007T °

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

31 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 31 Bk - ENREBENHEMELSRR

ACCRUED CHARGES FEREH
2023 2022
—®¥== ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBEF T
Trade payables JE 11 B 3K 2,745,385 2,913,743
Bills payables J& 1 R IE 4,684 6,942
2,750,069 2,920,685
Other payables and accrued charges EtmENRRIEREA
- Accrued expenses and other payables -FEREAKEM 1,088,740 1,183,190
- Payables for purchase of property, - EMERR - s
plant and equipment NS EEE 278,248 241,237
- Employee benefit payable -ENBRIENE 220,981 217,555
- Other taxes payables - E EE TR 31,542 29,565
- Payables for share award scheme - FETEE T AR (0 B Eh &t &l 10,574 -

1,630,085 1,671,647

Trade,bills and other payables and accrued — JE{FIRFX ~ FERT 295 R H b
charges ENRRIEIRER 4,380,154 4,592,232
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

31 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 31 BAKRM ENEREMNEMENRR

ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued) RIRER (&
At 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade and bills payables R+ZA=+—H EHEIEENEEZER
based on invoice date was as follows: RIRBEZAHFEZRESTOT -
2023 2022
—_g=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Within 30 days 30K A 1,686,381 1,609,093
31-180 days 31-180k 1,051,641 1,299,393
181-365 days 181-365K 7,775 8,270
Over 365 days 365K A £ 4,272 3,929
2,750,069 2,920,685
The carrying amounts of trade, bills and other payables AR EEBRE  BARR - BENZEREM
approximate their fair value as at the balance sheet date due to ERNFREHEEEERBANEABEREQAAE
short-term maturity. HE -
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables were EAERREENEENREAENLTIES AE
denominated in the following currencies: fi7

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T

uUss$ eV 1,541,380 1,748,855
RMB AR #& 1,202,668 1,160,472
Other currencies HAth 6,021 11,358

2,750,069 2,920,685

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a) Cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax B PiT 45 B AT AE

Adjustments for: FEESE

Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREEITE
equipment (Note 13) (H1#£13)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEEZIE (KiF14)

(Note 14)

Depreciation of investment properties KREMEWEZITE
(Note 15) (H15%15)

Amortisation of intangible assets M EE B ME17)
(Note 17)

Impairment charges of property, plant and  #7% - # 25 & R # 8 R (E
equipment (Note 13) EE R

Unrealised fair value losses on derivative REBRITESHRIARNRE
financial instruments (Note 6) B Esia ([ it6)

Realised fair value gains on derivative EERTASRITEARE
financial instruments (Note 6) BFE (I t6)

Losses on disposal of property, plant and  #1% - #2S R&KE - BEEE
equipment, intangible assets and right-of- E R FREEE L EEIE

|

use assets (Note 6) (Kt:t6)
Share-based compensation expenses UMD AERZHME T H
(Note 26) (H17t26)
Fair value losses on FVPL (Note 6) NoanBEFEEEZH:
ANEBHEHNESREENAR
BEBKXFE W H26)

Interest income and other finance income  F| B UK 2§ & H b B %5 Uk 2§
Cash inflow arising from liquidation of g~ EEE W s

a subsidiary
Finance costs (Note 8)

858 (K 728)

Operating profit before working capital EEECEEALEFH

changes

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories

Decrease in trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, prepayments and
deposits

(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills
payables, other payables and accrued
charges

FEZRL,/(Em)

EWRFR N R RiE - At
FEYW SR - RN IRR RIZE
R

e IR R BN R4 - E
N R EERER
CR ),/

Cash generated from operations

KEEEZRESRAFE

2 EHATRERME

(@) EEEZHELENRERE

2023
—Eg-=

RMB’000
ARETT

3,605,404

808,830
54,201
5,967
30,822
5,883
15,461

(140,711)

28,399

44,996

3,301
(969,897)

(1,564)
635,108

4,126,200

200,776

450,762

(133,155)

4,644,583

2022
RMB’000
ARBFIT

2,833,286

793,670
53,694
6,219

33,410

31,348

(5,889)

69,245

66,189

(983,309)

454,356

3,352,219

(328,988)

780,239

999,560

4,803,030
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32 &4 ftBeRB LM (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWE KBERIEBE BEFLEERE
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets AREEFRBN

2023 2022
—®'-= —E- =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARET T

Net book value REFE 56,816 80,089
Losses on disposal of property, plant and ¥ % - #2E R RE - B E
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-  E R {F B#EEE L EEE
use assets (Note 6) (Htit6) (28,399) (69,245)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant — H &% - #8 KL R # -

and equipment, intangible assets and B EAEREREEE
right-of-use assets Fr 18 3 10,844
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+=-A=+—HILFE

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32 2 #tBE & KB XM (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(c) Debt reconciliation (c) BEHFALE

Short-term/

Super

Bank loans short-term

and other commercial
borrowings papers Leases Total

RITERT BEH 4
Hiti &= &% g ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT

Debt as at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F

-fB—Bf& 17,081,321 34,745 17,116,066
Cash flows Reng (3,469,208) (58,881) (21,885) (3,549,974)
Interest expense and other finance FMEERAR

charges 589,716 58,881 1,496 650,093

Addition of leases REME = 21,615 21,615
Disposal of leases REME = (5,301) (5,301)
Currency translation differences I EETE b - (47) 85,552
Debt as at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F

+-A=1+—-HE 14,287,428 30,623 14,318,051
Debt as at 1 January 2022 RZTEZZF

—A—RE® 18,272,907 - 28,450 18,301,357
Cash flows BehE (2,423,744) (53,734) (23,961) (2,501,439)
Interest expense and other finance FSBRREMTT

charges £H 410,188 53,734 1,621 465,443

Addition of leases REME - - 28,516 28,516
Currency translation differences IEHEZTR 821,970 - 219 822,189
Debt as at 31 December 2022 i ——

+-A=+—-HEH 17,081,321 - 34,745 17,116,066

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 FAREE
At 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent RZBZ=F+-A=+—H FAEELESE
liabilities (2022: Nil). RIARBE(ZETZ_F: |) o
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34 EiE
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had the following R-E-_=ZFRK-_F-_—_F#+-_A=+—H"
commitments: REBEZHAENT
(a) Capital commitments (a) EARMEIE
2023 2022
—g=-= ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for EENBRER
in respect of:
Machinery and equipment s R 539,801 511,979
Leasehold land and buildings HETHREF 729,342 213,248
1,269,143 725,227
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) BREHERIE
The Group is the lessor: SERAIATAA :
The Group leases out certain office premises under operating EEREBESEHRERNHEBEEF  BIEZ
lease agreements. The further aggregate minimum rental MERKEFTHEEBRBERBELT -

receivable under these leases is as follows:

2023 2022
—EBC-=% —ZE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT
Not later than 1 year —FA 34,248 24,726
Later than 1 year and not later than BB —FRETHBBREF

5 years 60,122 57,279
Later than 5 years 8 38 1 5,574 19,860

99,944 101,865

&
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35 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as

follows:

Investments in associates (a)
Investments in joint ventures (b)

2023
—EFE-=

RMB’000

ARE T

B b 3 41,352

HERE 15,502

56,854

The amounts recognised in the consolidated
are as follows:

income statement

2023

—®'C-=
RMB’000

ARBTR

Share of net gains/(losses) — associates
Share of net gains — joint ventures

FERE S bR 2 W (F8R) 697
BiEaEbE 2z E 2

@

b XARBEERENRE

REHEERBBERANERNSENOT

2022
—E- %
RMB’000
AR T

43,576

43,576

REHFBRABRHSEWT

2022
e

=

RMB’000
AR®ETIT

(13,574)

(13,574)
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EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

The detalils of investments in associates and joint ventures are as B & 1B

35 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 35 AR ZZRENKRE (&)
E 3

XENEELENREFBOT

follows:

(a) Associates

2023 2022

—g=-= TEC

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AREF T

At 1 January wn—A—AH 43,576 53,330

Addition NE = 428

Disposal BE (4,377) 5,669

Share of net gains/(losses) FEAE T M zs (B 18) 697 (13,574)

Currency translation differences HNEE T & = R 1,456 (2,277)

At 31 December wW+=ZA=+—H 41,352 43,576

(b) Joint ventures (b) 6%

2023 2022

—g=-= TE-

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREF T

At 1 January wn—A—H = -

Addition NE 15,500 -

Share of net gains FEAE T Y 2= 2 -

At 31 December W+—ZA=+—H~ -
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s AEBEEEABECEREE T ERBAONK

interests in the associates and joint ventures. FaiE-

&
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35 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 35 AR ZZRENKRE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

The particulars of the associates and joint ventures of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, all of which equity method is used to
account for, are set out as follows:

Place of business/ Particulars of

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—HIE REZFZEY
Rz AKEBAELEFBRHIMT

Principal activities

TEER

country of % of Nature of issued share capital/
Name of entity incorporation ownership interest relationship registered capital
HEMBIER E#TRE/
AT EH BERAH REEEERE tEME HEMEREE
2023 2022 2022
—F-= —F-C —T-=
Finnpulp Oy Kuopio, Finland 36.46% 36.46% Associate EUR
10,002 10,002
BRBERRA ERRR SR Btz B B
10,002 10,002
Sinolight (Jinjiang) Hygiene Products  Jinjiang, PRC 38.80% 38.80% Associate RMB RMB
Research Co., Ltd.* 29,411,800 29,411,800
PEEDHLRRARERAT BI1 8 Btz N ARE
PLEARR G 29,411,8007T
Xiamen Anjian Real Estate Operation ~ Xiamen, PRC 50.00% - Joint Venture RMB -
Co., Ltd.* 31,000,000
EFMZRTBEELERAF B - E RERE N -
31,000,0007T
V-camp (Xiamen) Network Xiamen, PRC 30% Associate RMB RMB
Technology Co., Ltd.* py XL 36,660,00070
TREH(EM)AEMRERAF  EM - TE Btz N ARE
PR VG A 36,660,0007T
Karrion Development Limited Hong Kong, PRC 50.00% 50.00% Associate HKD HKD
1,000,000 1,000,000
RNZERAERAA & FE Btz s B
(b 1,000,0007C

*

Y OEHEF)

For identification purpose only

Manufacturing, distribution
and sale of wood pulp

RE DH HEAR

Research and development of
personal hygiene materials
RENREEAGLERR

Real estate development and
operation

FHERERES

Design and promotion of
internet images

BT S RE Rt R

Development, distribution,
wholesaling and retailing of
medical, healthcare and
hygiene products

RE - mBESE BE.
EELHEERTE

’A
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36 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 36 EXAEREBALRS
TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, BN ARXEBEMBE R EERK EHE
directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise significant NEEREERH S —F (M5 —HEEN
influence over the other party in making financial and operation BREEFABEAFEN HNEFRSHLREE
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are BEAFEN  AZEEASRRBEBABAL-

subject to common control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BREMHVBERREMBESTEIIN R ==
statements, the Group had the following significant related party FER_ZEB__FARAEBETTUTEBER
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2023 and v

2022:

(a) Key management compensation (a) TEEBEAEH W

2023 2022
—E-= —F -

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other &E# * (£ E 8L - Efh 285 &

allowances and benefits-in-kind BEWH = 21,228 22335
Share-based payment AR BERO NS 11,408 19,119

Contributions to pension schemes RIKEFHEIHR 129 117

32,765 41,571

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
at 31 December 2023 which, in the opinion of the Directors, are
significant to the results of the year or form a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

37 TEME LT
TH—BRINRARAR_ZE_ZF+=A4
=+ —HBZXEZEWNBRA -EFMRAEZSTW
BRAAYAFEZEEBEATE  HIBRA
SEEEFEZERBH EFEZMRAEBI T

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

HMBLARZEN @<RBBER -

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
EEM AL BB R EETRE/ —¥-=x
AT EE i B A TREBREERE AMERFE (31583 31
%
Direct subsidiaries:
EEMBAT:
Hengan Mega Jumbo Investments Ltd.  Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, 9,000 ordinary shares, 100
company E-commerce,trading and HK$1,367,302,854
procurement in Hong Kong
BRLEREBRRA B BREMERA REBLEREZR ETEK B Z i %9,0008% -
5 RERE A5 ¥1,367,302,8547T
Hengan International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share, US$ 1 100
liability company
BRERERER AR RBRLEE BREAMLAF REBRSREERR BERIR - Aas1ET
Indirect subsidiaries:
EEMEAS :
Anhai International Trading Limited Macau, limited liability Trading and procurement in Macau Pataca de Macau 100,000 100
company
ZEARBERRAF B BEREAEAA RRFIREE 5 kiR J#F971100,0007T
Hengan (China) Investment Co., Ltd.* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Investment holding, trading and RMB1,180,000,000 100
enterprise procurement in the PRC
B (RE)REFRAF HE - RNERE REBARERE BHRERE AR %1,180,000,0007T
Hengan Industrial (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and procurement in Hong 2 ordinary shares, HK$2 100
company Kong
BREX(EAR)BERARA Bt BREMRA REEREE SRR @R - astEk
Hengan Pharmacare Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading, procurement and sales of 10,000 ordinary shares of 70
company personal hygiene products in HK$2,030,786
Hong Kong
B (BE) EXERAF B BREMERR REEREES KERLEEA i 10,0008 -
HERM A5 ¥#2,030,7867C

@
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLR (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREEHE HEME R FEfE R A HE 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HERBAS : (&)
PT. Hengan Global Indonesia, limited liability Distribution and sale of personal US$ 6,200,000 90.32
company hygiene products in Indonesia
BRBERERDA HERAT(HERAR]) - RIOERADAHREEEAGE 6,200,000 7T
BEREEDH il
Fujian Hengan Holding Xiamen Business  PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Trading in the PRC RMB100,000,000 100
Trade Co., Ltd. venture
BREZSEEMBHEERAA mERNRELE RPEAREES A R #100,000,0007C
Fujian Hengan Holding Co., Ltd. PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB511,407,600 99.02
venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BREZEEARLA mERHNRELE NP ESE SHEREEAAEE AR ¥511,407,6007C
P i
Guangdong Paper Products Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 18,000,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper in the
PRC
ERERBRERLA mE 2HERE REESE SHREEEERK 18,000,000 7T
Guangdong Hengan Paper Co., Ltd* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB288,880,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper in the
PRC
EREZBERRLA mE 2NELE NP ESE SEREEEERA A R #6288,880,0007T
Harmony Pharmacare Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing, distribution and sale 25,000,000 ordinary shares of 7
company of protective equipment in Hong HK$25,000,000
Kong
B#MERAR B BREMERA REBRE SHREENERM % 47 1225,000,000/% -
A & 725,000,000
Hengan (Jinjiang) Household Products ~ PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 15,800,000 100

Co., Ltd.

BR(BDEERRERRA

enterprise

RE2HNEDE

of personal hygiene products,
personal hygiene material
products and household products
in the PRC

RAESE  SERHEEAGER
e BEMERRER @

15,800,000% 7T

&
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLR (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREERE HEME AR REME R A
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (£)
Fujian Hengan Hygiene Material PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 40,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise of personal hygiene products and
household products in the PRC
BREZEEMHERAR mE - RNERE RPESE  SEREEHEMHR 40,000,000% &
FE R m
Quanzhou Jinjiang Hengan Hygiene PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB11,100,000 90.10
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
SMBELIEREEMBERAT mE RS ERE R BSE  SHREEFHEEMR AR #11,100,0007T
Hengan (Sichuan) Family Products PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 3,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.” enterprise of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BZ@INKERRERAH mE - RNERE NP ESE SHREEEAGE 3,000,000% 7T
A
Hengan (Xiaogan) Family Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB76,200,200 100
Co., Ltd." venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BR(ERREARERRF B R ERE RABEEE SEREERAGE AR #76,200,2007T
Fi
Hengan (Sichuan) Household Products ~ PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 16,380,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Bz@INEERRERAH hE - RNEERE NP ESE SHREEEAAGE 16,380,000% 7t
A
Hengan (Fushun) Household Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB73,660,000 100
Co., Ltd." venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Br(RIE)EERRERAR B R ERE RABE®EE SEREERAGE AR #73,660,0007C

@

o
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLR (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREEHE HEME R FEfE R A HE 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HERBAS : (&)
Hengan (Jiangxi) Household Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale HK$94,388,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BROIA)RERARERAH hE - FNHEERE NP RSE SHREEEAGE 7 1£.94,388,0007T
i
Hengan (Hefei) Living Co., Ltd.* PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB114,300,000 100
venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Bk (AE)EERRERAA mERNRELE R EE SHRHERAAGE AR #114,300,0007
Fi i
Hunan Hengan Paper Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 39,980,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HEEREERRLA mE - RNERE NP RSE SHREEEERK 39,980,000 1T
Jiangxi Hengan Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*  PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB15,000,000 100
enterprise of medical instrument, skin care
products and antiseptics in the
PRC
IEAERENNBEERRF mE 2AERE R B HHRNEEEEN A & #15,000,0007T
EEERMESH
Hengan (Xiaogan) Medical Instruments ~ PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$10,000,000 100
Technology Co., Ltd.” enterprise of medical instrument in the PRC
BR(ZR)BESHHBEARLA mE RNERE NP RSE SHREEBREN 10,000,000 7T
Hengan (China) Paper Industry PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 165,570,000 100

Co., Ltd.

BR (PE)REERDA

enterprise

RE2NELE

of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
R ERE SHRNEEERE

165,570,0005% 7T

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

37 TEMBLR (&

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREERE HEME AR REME R A
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (£)
Hengan (China) Hygiene Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 12,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
B (HE)EERRERAR hE - FNEERE NP ESE SHREERAAGE 12,000,000 7T
A
Hengan (Tianjin) Paper Co., Ltd. PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB105,731,005 100
venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(RR)AXERRF mE RS ERE RABERE SEREEEERS AR #105,731,0057C
Hengan (Guangxi) Paper Co., Ltd. PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB191,400,000 100
venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
B (ER) REERAF hE - FNEELE NP ESE SHREEEERK AR ¥191,400,0007C
Hengan (Hunan) Hearttex Paper PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB209,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.* venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BE(AE) LIENEEBERAR mE RN ERE REBESE SHREEEERK A & #209,000,0007
Hunan Hengan Living Paper Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB852,280,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HEEREERAERAR mE PR ELE NP ESE SHREEEERA A R #852,280,0007C
Hengan (Chongaqing) Living Paper PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB959,200,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(ER)EERAEERAA mE RS ERE REESE SHREEEERK A & #959,200,0007
Jinjiang Hengan Household Tissue PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 12,000,000 100

Product Co., Ltd.

BIBRRELEREERAT

@

venture

REPONRARE

of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
RPBERE SHEREEEERR

12,000,000% 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLR (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREEHE HEME R FEfE R A HE 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HERBAS : (&)
Shandong Hengan Paper Co., Ltd.* PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 188,710,000 100
venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
LWREBZEEFRAF hE - FNHEERE RPRSE SHREEEERK 188,710,000% 7t
Chongaing Hengan Hearttex Paper PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 21,987,500 100
Products Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
ERERLEDAARRERAA B R ERE NP BRSE SHREEEERK 21,987,500% 7T
Hengan Li Ren Tang (Jian) Cosmetics PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB32,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise of skin care products and daily
personal necessities in the PRC
BREAZ(ER)BILERAF mE RNERE RPESE  SHREEEEREA A R %32,000,0007T
SRiEE
Hengan (Wuhu) Paper Industry PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB874,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(EDAEERRA B RS ERE REBESE SHREEEERHK A K #874,000,0007C
Junichi (Xiamen) Maternal and Child PRC, wholly foreign-owned Trading pregnant women, infants and HK$24,000,000 100
Articles Co., Ltd. enterprise kid’s products in the PRC
E-(EFEERARERAR mE 2NELE RPRS 2R B5 RERRG 7 #24,000,0007C
Junichi Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability company  Trading the products for ladies and Japanese Yen 100,000 100
babies in Japan
E-HA gl BAR BEREART RAEXDHELRHZB M A 7£100,0007T
Hengan (Henan) Hygiene Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB82,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Bz(MmALERRERAR mE R ERE NP BESE SHREEAAEE A R #82,000,0007C

o

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLR (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREERE HEME AR REME R A
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (£)
Hengan (Zhejiang) Homecare Products ~ PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 100,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of packaged tissue paper in the
PRC
BN RELERRERAR hE - FNEERE NP RSE SHREEEERK 100,000,000% 7t
Fujian Hengan Homecare Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB394,930,500 100
Co., Ltd." venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BREXFRELERMAERDA B R ERE RABE®E SEREERAGE A & #394,930,5007C
Fi i
Wuhu Hengan Hearttex Paper Products  PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB105,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HEREZOMNAHRERAR hE - FNEELE NP ESE SHREEEERK A R %105,000,0007C
Xiamen Hengan E-commerce PRC, wholly foreign-owned Sales of cosmetic products and RMB2,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.* enterprise personal hygiene products via
online in the PRC
EFEREFHBAERLR mE - 2HERE R BB R A 4 AL R AE A AR #2,000,0007T
HERM
Xiamen Space Seven E-commerce PRC, wholly foreign-owned Sales of cosmetic products and RMB2,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise personal hygiene products via
online in the PRC
ENtEEHEFABAERRA mE - RNERE RABEEEEHE LR REA AR #2,000,0007C
EERM
Hengan Li Ren (Jiangxi) Cosmetics PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB35,880,000 100
Co., Ltd.* enterprise of skin care products and daily
personal necessities in the PRC
BREACIE) BILBERAF hE - 2MERE RPR#E SEREEEEREA A R #35,880,0007

@

A Mm@
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 FEMBLAR (&
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment and kind Principal activities and issued share capital/ Interest held
Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
AL S B R EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREEHE HEME R FEfE R A HE 2

%

Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)

EEMEAS: (&)

Xinjiang Hengan Paper Co., Ltd.* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB387,000,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HEERHERRLA hE - FNHEERE RPRSE SHREEEERK A R #387,000,0007C
Weifang Hengan Thermal Power PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 12,000,000 100
Co., Ltd." venture of heating and power in the PRC
HSBERATERRA B RS ERE RABRER S HE N K2 12,000,000 7T
Weifang Hengan Gas Co., Ltd.* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB10,000,000 100
enterprise of gas in the PRC
ASEZRRERLA mERNELE NP ESE  SEREERR AR %10,000,0007T
PT. Hengan Global Hygiene Products®  Indonesia, limited liability Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$10,000,000 70
company of papers in Indonesia
BRRRGERRERD A NERAE FEREARA ROFEALRRE HHRLE 10,000,000% 7t
HHm
Hengan (Malaysia) Investments British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Malaysia 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100
Company Limited liability company
Br(FREAG)REFRDR" ABRTES BREALA RERACKFRELR TRERIK AFET
Wang-Zheng Berhad Malaysia, Public Listed Limited  Investment holding in Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit (‘MYR”) 57.30
80,000,000
SRER" BREE ARMLTAR RERBESREREER 80,000,000 7 75 25 4 & 5
(TH#&D
Wang-Zheng Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Distributor of disposable fibre-based MYR 3,325,000 57.30
company products in Malaysia
EHESHERRA BRAL BREEAF RERBEEREHERRNDH 3,325,000% ¥
Quality Hero Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Manufacturing and sale of adult MYR 250,000 57.30
company diaper, baby diaper and sanitary
napkins products in Malaysia
BRELERAA BREE BREMEAF RERAGHE SHRHERAR 250,0005 %
BREREREED
[ ]

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLR (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
MR BB ER EBTRE/ —BC-=%
AT EH EE TREBREERE HEME AR REME R A
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (£)
Carefeel Cotton Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia, Limited liability Manufacturing and sale of facial MYR 2,187,500 57.30
company cotton products in Malaysia
RFERIZ(B)BRLF ERET BREERH RERALHE  HHRHELMKR 2,187,500 #
RIRTEEBER
New Top Win Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Importing, processing and trading of MYR 1,000,000 57.30
company papers in Malaysia
MeXEHERAR BRAEG ERAERH RERALED  MIRHELRR 1,000,000 %
Modern Alpine Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Trading of papers in Malaysia MYR 3,000,000 57.30
company
MREERAR BRAED BREERH RERAGREARRES 3,000,000% #
Hengan (Shaanxi) Homecare Products PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 24,980,000 100
Co., Ltd.* enterprise of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
B (BRE)XKELERRERAR hE - FNEERE RPERE  SEREEEAGER 24,980,000% 7T
mREERM
Hengan (Hubei) Paper Industry PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB100,000,000 100
Co., Ltd* enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BRI BXERRF mE 2NELE NP ERE SHEREEEERA A R #100,000,0007

@
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

37 TEMBLRE (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
EEM AL B E R EETRE/ —¥-=%
AT EE i A TREBREEREY HAMEFFE FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (&)
Fujian Hengan Hengpin E-commerce PRC, wholly foreign-owned Sales of cosmetic products and RMB10,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.* enterprise personal hygiene products via
online in the PRC
BREZERETFHKERAA mE2HERE R RERBHE ke REA AR #10,000,0007T
BERM
Hengan (Luxembourg) Investment Luxembourg, limited liability Investment holding in Luxembourg Euro 12,500 100
Company Limited company
BR(ERE)REFRAF" ERE FREARA RERBREREER 12,5008 7T
Hengan (Orient) Hygiene Product Russia, limited liability company  Manufacturing, distribution and sale Russian Ruble 600,000,000 51
Co., Ltd.* of personal hygiene products in
the Russia
BR(RA)BERRERLR REN AREEDR REBEREE  HHEREEEAEE 600,000,000/ 77
Fi i
Sunway Kordis Holding Ltd. Cayman, limited liability Investment holding in the PRC 2,099,999 ordinary shares of 100
company US$ 2,100
BREZERERA A" HE#HS AREERF RABEREREER & #M2,099,9990% -
AE2,100% T
Starful Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100
liability company
EXBRAF" RERLHEE BRECLR REBRSREARR TR AFET
Sunway Kordis Asia Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and consultancy in Hong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 100

BREMERRR

company
B5 BREARA

Kong
REERZE S RAARS

L@R1008 - & 5T A K100

&
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BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and kind Principal activities and

37 TEMBLR (&

Particulars of

issued share capital/ Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2023
EEM AL B E R EETRE/ —¥-=x
AT EE i B A TREBREERE AMERFE (31583 31
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (&)
Sunway Kordis (Shanghai) Limited* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale US$ 3,100,000 100
enterprise of household products in the PRC
BNZEERR(LE)ERAR mE - 2NELE RHRBEREE SHERHERAER 3,100,000% 7.
Wang-Zheng Hong Kong Trading Co. Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and procurement in Hong HK$10,000 100
Limited company Kong
ERFEESHERLA R AREERTA REBREE S RRE 10,0007 %
Hengan (Fujian) Investment company British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100
Limited liability company
BR(BR)REBERD A RERLBEE BRECLAR REBRSREBR BRERIR A1ET

* For identification purpose only

The non-controlling interests in respect of Hengan Pharmacare
Company Limited, Fujian Hengan Holding Co., Ltd., Quanzhou
Jinjiang Hengan Hygiene Science and Technology Co, Ltd., PT.
Hengan Global, PT. Hengan Global Hygiene Products, Hengan
(Orient) Hygiene Product Co., Ltd., Harmony Pharmacare Limited
and Wang-Zheng Berhad and its subsidiaries are not material.

For the non-wholly owned subsidiaries, the non-controlling
interests represent the remaining interests and the related voting
rights other than those held by the Company.

@

Y EHREE)

EBUATA 7%9@&%%‘7@% r<m
F)EXBRAA REELEBEERAT R
Mﬁ%imﬁﬁiﬂ&ﬁ@Au~Eﬁkﬁﬁ
BAR - BEXBERELARERAF BR (R
F)EERRAEREEAR  BEFBER QA
MEREBREHE A F

HRIFZEWMBAR  PEBRRERRKRGE
X B2 O T ok AR B R ORAE -
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HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 38 AREEABRREZSH K

OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

W+=-A=+—H
2022
 RMB'000
AREF T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries Mg A aRE 5,202,641 5,587,869
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bt BB A R FRIE 6,783,589 7,015,536
Other receivables, prepayments and H i R BR Z - TE IR B
deposits b 162 160
Cash and bank balances RERBITER 97,356 11,994
6,881,107 7,027,690
Total assets HEE 12,083,748 12,615,559
Equity M
Equity attributable to shareholders HBREATESREA
of the Company
Share capital % A 123,345 123,345
Other reserves (Note(a)) H b 8 (K7 7)) (168,633) 73,299
Retained earnings (Note(a)) B (K itE) 9,496,940 8,780,430
Total equity R 9,451,652 8,977,074
Liabilities B fg
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A< B B A B FRIE 1,484,348 1,809,080
Current liabilities Bk =K
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B AR RIE 13,328 -
Other payables and accrued charges HibEMIRRRIERE A 46,980 12,433
Borrowings &k 1,087,440 1,816,972
1,147,748 1,829,405
Total liabilities HwEE 2,632,096 3,638,485
Total equity and liabilities EZRE&ESst 12,083,748 12,615,559

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2024 and was signed on its behalf.

Director Director
EE EE
Sze Man Bok Hui Ching Lau
31 g

&

ARRBEHRRCAEFTER _T_MF=H
“t-H#tR IRREFEEE
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BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILFE

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 38 AR&EEBEBREERZESHXR (£
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company (a2 RSB R
Retained earnings Other reserves
HFl s Hibfttk
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥EFTT
At 1 January 2023 R-_E-_=F—H—H 8,780,430 73,299
Profit for the year F[E T H 2,343,480 -
Currency translation differences SNEET B E 58 - 82,041
2022 final dividend paid —EZFERAHERE (813,485) -
2023 interim dividend paid —EZZFDRTPHBRE (813,485) -

Employee share option schemes: BT &

- value of employee services -BIRBEE 44,996
Employee share award schemes: B TR 1D SR Eh T2l -

— shares withheld for share award schemes - R EEE B R RGD (368,969)
At 31 December 2023 WZZE_=F+-A=+—H 9,496,940 (168,633)
At 1 January 2022 WR_ZE__F—H—H 7,581,252 (361,842)
Profit for the year FEFE 2,826,148 -
Currency translation differences GNEEYTE 2 ER - 368,952
2021 final dividend paid ZE - FHRIRERF (813,485) -
2022 interim dividend paid ZE - F P HIRERF (813,485) -
Employee share option schemes: IR S

- value of employee services -BIRBEE - 66,189
At 31 December 2022 W-_ZE-_—_#+-A=+—H 8,780,430 73,299

-
®
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEMS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (a) EEREREEENS
The remuneration of every Director and the Chief Executive HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE"
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below: BREFRTHAHOTFHET

Employer's

contribution

toa
retirement
Discretionary Share-based benefit
Name of Director Salaries bonuses compensation scheme Total
Lkt  BAED
EEaE He e BifEs -3 o) kA I EXEE A &

RMB’000 RMB*000 RMB*000 RMB*000 RMB*000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARETR ARKTR

Director S

Mr. Sze Man Bok B3I A 511

Mr. Hui Lin Chit TEEEE 1,583

Mr. Hui Ching Lau FBEMEE 15,413

Mr. Xu Da Zuo FREEEE 1,781

Mr. Sze Wong Kim HEERIKAE 150

Mr. Hui Ching Chi HELEE 2,570

Mr. Li Wai Leung FEREE 2,426

Mr. Xu Wenmo (i) OB () 258

Mr. Hung Ching Shan (ii) B L 5E A (i) 77

Mr. Xu Shui Shen (i) KR 5 A (i) 384

Mr. Xu Chun Man (i) EEobtea()] 23

Independent BUFHTES

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong BERBLL

Mr. Theil Paul Marin Theil Paul Marin%t 4

Mr. Ho Kwai Ching, Mark MEFEE

Mr. Chen Chuang PR % &

Mr. Chan Henry (i) BR 84 58 4E 4 (i)

() Mr. Xu Wenmo was appointed as a Director on 24 August 2023. () FXBREERZZT_=FNAZTMAH

T AES-

(i) Mr. Hung Ching Shan, Mr. Xu Shui Shen and Mr. Xu Chun Man (i) HBFLEE FKRKEREMTFEMTER
retired from Director on 22 May 2023. Mr. Chan Henry retired ZE_=FRAZFT_BRESTEBUR
from Independent Non-Executive Director on 22 May 2023. F-BRBHEER_TE_=ZFRA=-T=

B IERITEETROARME -

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+-—BLFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEMSE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (a) EEREREEEMNE (&)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every Director and the Chief Executive BE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—BHIFE"
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below: BREFERITRAHNHFHOT
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary ~ Share-based benefit
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  compensation scheme Total
PARR D AR RIRETEIAE
XA we Fin [l %a ol EX A At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®FTRT AR®TR ARET:R
Director BE
Mr. Sze Man Bok X 18 % A 79 307 - 150 15 551
Mr. Hui Lin Chit HERTE 79 1,212 480 449 15 2,235
Mr. Hung Ching Shan HELEE 52 120 3 149 8 332
Mr. Hui Ching Lau HERELE 52 7,000 - 13,444 3 20,499
Mr. Xu Shui Shen FKREE 52 1,288 - 747 3 2,090
Mr. Xu Da Zuo BN 52 1,240 - 448 33 1,773
Mr. Xu Chun Man FEMEE 52 - - 149 3 204
Mr. Sze Wong Kim 12 B 4 52 - - 149 3 204
Mr. Hui Ching Chi HEMEE 79 1,393 475 598 17 2,562
Mr. Li Wai Leung TEBREE 79 1,346 431 448 17 2,321
Independent BIUkRTES
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chan Henry R HEE 104 - - - - 104
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong BRERLT 104 - - - - 104
Mr. Theil Paul Marin Theil Paul Marin%t 4 104 - - - - 104
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching, Mark AEEFRE 104 - - - - 104
Mr. Zhou Fang Sheng (i) B A S () 40 - _ _ _ 40
Mr. Chen Chuang (ii) 5% 38 4% 2 i) 64 - - - - 64
()  Mr. Zhou Fang Sheng retired from independent Non-Executive i)y  ARELRER2022F5 4208 B FFET
Director on 20 May 2022. EEBMRK-
(i)  Mr. Chen Chuang was appointed as an independent (iy  PRFE L AER202255 8208 W T d BB IE
Non-Executive Director on 20 May 2022. WITEE -
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ termination benefits

There were no termination benefits paid to any director at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group provided no consideration to third parties for making
available director’s services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of:

(i)  directors of the Company;

(i) bodies corporate controlled by such directors; and

(iii) entities connected with such directors as at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+-—BLFE

39 BEEME (£E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEERE ZRHREGHAPHEEHER
#®
HE-Z-_=Ffr=-_Z=-__F+=A
Zt+—BLFENTAESEM AAFKE
ARFIMNEERAEERMEEL —BHE
HEMEKHEBENEARS  THREEH
FHEEE MR-

RENEERERAE=ZSZANRE
Hez_—_T - —#jpR-_T-_-—&+ -4

ZST-HALEFE AEEYERERES
R ME =7 X HRE -

ER -EERREMXZNESN

TEHAEBRRATAZRANER £
ERXRREMRS

i) ARAMESE:
(i) AZEFEHOEARE: &

(i) EERXEFINEMSHEZEE
BFHMENER-

EERXRG  RFEAECHNERES

ARABBMEITLENERAAEEEBL R
FRAIFANEAREFELEARS &
AN MARRESERLAHERESR
HEE R -

&
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40 SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On 8 March, 2024, the Group completed the issuance of the first
tranche of super short-term commercial papers on the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors, with an
aggregate principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000, with a coupon
rate 2.1% per annum. The super short-term commercial papers
will mature in 180 days from the respective issue date.

On 18 March, 2024, the Group completed the issuance of the
second tranche of super short-term commercial papers on the
National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors,
with an aggregate principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000, with a
coupon rate 2.1% per annum. The super short-term commercial
papers will mature in 182 days from the respective issue date.
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